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9 PARTN ERSHIP 

9.1 INTRODUCTION

 

Section 13: Provisions when partnership deed is silent  

1 Remuneration No remuneration  

2 Profit and loss ratio  Profit or loss: Agreed ratio or Equal share (if not mentioned)  

Loss: No insisting on sharing of loss (if not mentioned)  

3 Interest on capital No interest on capital (apportion the profit in capital ratio if profit is 

insufficient for interest on capital)  

4 Interest on drawings  No interest on drawings  

5 (ÕÛÌÙÌÚÛɯÖÕɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÓÖÈÕ 6% on the loan (it is a charge) (no interest after dissolution) 

6 Number of persons Minimum: 2  

Maximum: 50 as per the Companies Rules  2014 

(but 100 as per the Companies Act 2013) 

Note: 6% rate of interest when interest on capital is allowed in deed without rate of interest.  

Note: 5% rate of interest when interest on drawings is allowed in deed without rate of interest.  

Note:  In the absence of an agreement, the interest or salary to partner is paid only if there is profit. 

 

Interest on drawings: Formula  

Formula (in case drawings every month for full year)  

ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ έὲ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫί Ὠὶὥύ άέὲὸὬ ὦὩὫὭὲὲὭὲὫ άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
ρσ

ς
 

ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ έὲ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫί Ὠὶὥύ άέὲὸὬ άὭὨὨὰὩ άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
ρς

ς
 

ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ έὲ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫί Ὠὶὥύ άέὲὸὬ ὩὲὨ  άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
ρρ

ς
 

 

Formula (in case drawings every month for six months)  

ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ έὲ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫί Ὠὶὥύ άέὲὸὬ ὦὩὫὭὲὲὭὲὫ άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
χ

ς
 

ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ έὲ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫί Ὠὶὥύ άέὲὸὬ άὭὨὨὰὩ άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
φ

ς
 

ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ έὲ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫί Ὠὶὥύ άέὲὸὬ ὩὲὨ  άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
υ

ς
 

 

Profit and loss appropriation a/c  

Profit and Loss Appropriation A/c  

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Interest on capital a/c ×××× By Profit and Loss a/c [Net profit]  ×××× 

 /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ2ÈÓÈÙà ××××  Interest on Drawings  ×××× 
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 /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"ÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕ ××××    

 Share of profit a/c ××××    

  ××××   ×××× 

 

Two methods of ÔÈÐÕÛÈÐÕÐÕÎɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÈÊÊÖÜÕÛÚȯ 

1. Fluctuating Capital Method and  

[All transactions relating to a partner are recorded in Capital A/c]  

2. Fixed Capital Method  

[Transactions relating to introduction or withdrawal of capital are recorded  

in Capital a/c and other transactions are recorded in Current A/c]  

 

Guaranteed Partnership:  

One of the partners is guaranteed for fixed profit by other partner or partners  

{CMA inter J13, 5 marks} 

 

PRACTICAL PROBLEMS  

 

Interest on Drawings | Interest on Capital | Profit Guarantee | Commission to Partners  

P/L Appropriation Accounts + Capital A/c  

Past Adjustments : rectification of error | change in deed  

 

Question 1:  Calculate interest on drawings (drawings against profit)  @ 12% p.a. for the following 

cases  

1. A withdraws 10,000 every month beginning for the full year  

2. B withdraws 15,000 every month end for the full year 

3. C withdraws 20,000 every month middle for the full year  

4. D withdraws 25,000, 30,000 and 40,000 on 1.7.18, 31.10.2018 and 1.1.2019 

Answer:  

ὃ  άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
ρσ

ς
ρπȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

ρσ

ς
χψππ 

ὄ  άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
ρρ

ς
ρυȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

ρρ

ς
ωȟωππ 

ὅ  άέὲὸὬὰώ ὨὶὥύὭὲὫίὙὥὸὩ έὪ ὍὲὸὩὶὩίὸ 
ρς

ς
ςπȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

ρς

ς
ρτȟτππ 

Ὀ ςυȟπππ
ρς

ρππ

ω

ρς
υυȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

υ

ρς
ωυȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

σ

ρς
τȟωυπ 

 

Question 2: A, B and C are partners sharing P/L in the ratio of 3:4:5. Their capitals as on 1.4.18 were 

1,00,000, 2,00,000 and 3,00,000. The profit for year 2018-19 is 2,00,000. A introduced 1,00,000 and 

4,00.000 on 1.9.18 and 31.12.18 respectively. B introduced 1,00,000 and 2,00,000 on 1.1.19 and 
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31.3.19 respectively. C withdrawn (drawings against capital) capital of 2,00,000 on 1.2.19. Find out 

interest on capital @ 12% p.a. 

Answer: Interest on capital 

ὃ ρȟππȟπππ
ρς

ρππ

υ

ρς
ςȟππȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

τ

ρς
φȟππȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

σ

ρς
σρȟπππ 

ὄ ςȟππȟπππ
ρς

ρππ

ω

ρς
σȟππȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

σ

ρς
ςχȟπππ 

ὃ σȟππȟπππ
ρς

ρππ

ρπ

ρς
ρȟππȟπππ

ρς

ρππ

ς

ρς
σςȟπππ 

 

Question 3: A, B and C are partners sharing P/L in the ratio of 3:2:1. Their capitals as on 1.4.18 were 

60,000, 40,000 and 30,000. The profit for year 2018-19 is 18,000. Appropriate the profits to the 

partners where the partner C is guaranteed for a minimum profit of 5,000 by (a) A1 (b) B2 and (c) 

Firm. 3 

 

Question 4: A, B and C are partners sharing P/L equally. Their capitals as on 1.4.18 were 1,00,000, 

60,000 and 40,000. Salary is payable to C 10,000. The profit for year 2018-19 is 50,000. B is entitled 

for a commission of 10% on 

1. NP4 

2. NP after all appropriation but before such commission 5 

3. NP after all appropriation and such commission 6 

 

Question 5: A, B and C are partners sharing P/L in the ratio of 3:2:1. Their capitals as on 1.4.18 were 

1,00,000, 60,000 and 40,000. The profit for year 2018-19 is 60,000 and drawings were 10,000, 5,000 and 

10,000. Appropriate the profits to the partners as per the deed given below 

1. C is given salary of 5,000 

2. Commission @ 10% on profit is payable to B 

3. Interest on capital @ 10% and interest on drawings @ 12% 

Prepare P/L Appropriation A/c and Capital A/c.  

Answer:  

Profit and Loss Appropriation A/c  

 Particula rs    Particulars    

To Interest on capital a/c   By P/L a/c ɬ Net profit   60,000 

 A: ρȟππȟπππρπϷ 10,000   Interest on Drawings    

 B: φπȟπππρπϷ 6,000   A: ρπȟπππρςϷ πȢυ 600  

 C: τπȟπππρπϷ 4,000 20,000  B: 5ȟπππρςϷπȢυ 300  

 
1 For A: 9,000 ï 2,000 = 7,000, for B: 6,000 and for C: 3,000 + 2,000 = 5,000 
2 For A: 9,000, for B: 6,000 ï 2,000 = 4,000 and for C: 3,000 + 2,000 = 5,000 
3For A: 9,000 ï 1,200 = 7,800, for B: 6,000 ï 800 = 5,200 and for C: 3,000 + 2,000 = 5,000 
4 Commission = 50,000 Ĭ10% = 5,000 and Profit for appropriation 50,000 ï 10,000 ï 5,000 =35,000  
5 Commission = ( 50,000 ï 10,000)Ĭ10% = 4,000 | Profit for appropriation 50,000 ï 10,000 ï 4,000 =36,000 
6 Commission = υπȟπππρπȟπππ σȟφσφ& Profit for appropriation 50,000 ï 10,000 ï 3,636 =36,364 
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 "ɀÚɯ2ÈÓÈÙà  5,000  C: 10ȟπππρςϷπȢυ 600 1,500 

 B: Commission a/c  6,000     

 P/L A/c       

  ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 15,250      

 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 10,167      

 "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 5,083 30,500     

   61,500    61,500 

 

Capital A/c  

 Particulars  A B C  Particulars  A B C 

To Drawings a/c 10,000 5,000 10,000 By Balance b/d 1,00,000 60,000 40,000 

 Int. on Drawings  600 300 600  Int. on Capitals 10,000 6,000 4,000 

 Balance c/d 1,14,650 76,867 43,483  Salary   5,000 

      Commission a/c  6,000  

      Share of profit  15,250 10,167 5,083 

  1,25,250 82,167 54,083   1,25,250 82,167 54,083 

 

Question 6:  A, B and C are partners in a firm with capitals of 50,000, 40,000 and 20,000 

respectively. They share profits and losses as: (i) Up to 10,000, in the ratio of 4:3:3 (ii) Above 10,000 

equally. The net profit of the firm for the year ended 31 st December, 2002 is amounted to 40,200 and 

the drawings of the partners were: A - 6,000, B-5,000, C- 3,000. 

You are required to prepare the Profit and Loss Appropriation A/c for the year ended 31.12.2002 and 

"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛÚɯÖÍɯÛÏÌɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɯÈÚÚÜÔÐÕÎȯɯȹÈȺɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓÚɯÈÙÌɯÍÐßÌËȰɯÈÕËɯȹÉȺɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓÚɯ

are fluctuating, after considering the following adjustments:  

1. ÐÕÛÌÙÌÚÛɯÖÕɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓÚɯÛÖɯÉÌɯ×ÈÐËɯɑɯƕƔǔɯ×ȭÈȭȮɯ 

2. interest on drawings to be charged @ 5% p.a. 

3. A to receive salary of 5,000 p.a.; and  

4. B and C to get commission @ 10% each on the net profit. 

Answer: 

Profit and Loss Appropriation A/c for the year ended 31 -12-2002 

 Particulars     Particulars    

To Interest on capital a/c   By P/L a/c ɬ Net profit   40,200 

 A: υπȟπππρπϷ 5,000   Interest on Drawings    

 B: τπȟπππρπϷ 4,000   A: φȟπππυϷ πȢυ 150  

 C: ςπȟπππρπϷ 2,000 11,000  B: 5ȟπππυϷ πȢυ 125  

  ɀÚɯ2ÈÓÈÙà  5,000  C: 3ȟπππυϷ πȢυ 75 350 

 Commission a/c  8,040     
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 B: 4,020      

 C: 4,020 8,040     

  ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ (4,000+2,170) 6,170      

 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ (3,000+2,170) 5,170      

 "ɀÚɯCapital  (3,000+2,170) 5,170 16,510     

   40,550    40,550 

 

(a) Fixed capital method: Partners Capital A/c  

 Particulars  A B C  Particulars  A B C 

To Balance c/d 50,000 40,000 20,000 By Balance b/d 50,000 40,000 20,000 

  50,000 40,000 20,000   50,000 40,000 20,000 

Partners Current A/c  

To Drawings a/c 6,000 5,000 3,000 By Int. on Capital  5,000 4,000 2,000 

 Interest on Drawings  150 125 75  Salary 5,000 --- ---- 

 Balance c/d 10,020 8,065 8,115  Commission a/c  --- 4,020 4,020 

      Share of profit  6,170 5,170 5,170 

  16,160 13,190 11,190   16,170 13,190 11,190 

 

(b) Fluctuating capital method: Partners Capital A/c 

 Particulars A B C  Particulars A B C 

To Drawings a/c 6,000 5,000 3,000 By Balance b/d 50,000 40,000 20,000 

 Interest on Drawings 150 125 75  Interest on Capitals 5,000 4,000 2,000 

 Balance c/d 60,020 48,065 28,115  Salary 5,000 --- ---- 

      Commission a/c  --- 4,020 4,020 

      Share of profit  6,170 5,170 5,170 

  66,170 53,190 31,190   66,170 53,190 31,190 

 

Question 7: A and B started a partnership on 1.1.2001 with respective capital contributions of 

1,20,000 and 40,000. Their Capital Account balances as on 31.12.2002 were: A- 2,09,500 and B-

90,500. The transactions recorded in the Capital Accounts during these two years were interest on 

capital @ 10% p.a. on initial investments and allocations of incomes. On 31.12.2002, it was further 

discovered that drawings of 42,000 by A and 30,000 by B had been wrongly treated as business 

Ìß×ÌÕÚÌÚȭɯ8ÖÜɯÈÙÌɯÙÌØÜÐÙÌËɯÛÖɯÈɯ×ÈÚÚɯÈɯÚÐÕÎÓÌɯÑÖÜÙÕÈÓɯÌÕÛÙàɯÛÖɯÈËÑÜÚÛɯÛÏÌɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛÚɯ

correctly on 31.12.2002. 
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Answer:  

Working Note 1: Ascertainment of Total Profit for 2 years  

 Particulars  A B Total  

 Balance of capital as on 1.1.2001 1,20,000 40,000 1,60,000 

Add  Interest on Capital for 2 Years @ 10% p.a.  24,000 8,000 32,000 

  144,000 48,000 1,92,000 

Add  Profit credited for 2 years (Balance) 65,500 42,500 1,08,000 

 Balance of capital on 31.12.2002 2,09,500 90,500 3,00,000 

 

Working Note 2: Ascertainment of Correct Profit  

 Particulars   

 Profits already credited (WN1) ( 65,500 + 42,500) 1,08,000 

Add  Drawings shown as expense ( 42,000 + 30,000) 72,000 

 Corrected profits to be shared equally (A: 90,000 and B: 90,000) 1,80,000 

 

Working Note 3: Ascertainment of Correct Capital Balances  

 Particulars  A B Total  

 Balance of capital as on 1.1.2001 1,20,000 40,000 1,60,000 

Add  Interest on Capital for 2 Years @ 10% p.a.  24,000 8,000 32,000 

  144,000 48,000 1,92,000 

Add  Adjusted profit for 2 years (WN2)  90,000 90,000 1,80,000 

  2,34,000 1,38,000 3,72,000 

Less Drawings  42,000 30,000 72,000 

 Corrected capital on 31.12.2002 1,92,000 1,08,000 3,00,000 

 

6ÖÙÒÐÕÎɯ-ÖÛÌɯƘȯɯ ËÑÜÚÛÔÌÕÛɯÖÍɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 

 Particulars  A B 

 Capital Balances as on 31.12.2002 (given) 2,09,500 90,500 

Less Corrected balances as on 31.12.2002 (WN4) 1,92,000 1,08,000 

 Required adjustment: excess (+) / short (-) (+)17,500 (-)17,500 

   

Journal Entry  

 ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ Dr. 17,500  

 3Öɯ!ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   17,500 

ȹ!ÌÐÕÎɯÛÏÌɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÈÊÊÖÜÕÛɯÈËÑÜÚÛÌËȺ 
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Question  8: Ram and Rahim agreed to share profits as follows: First 8,000 to Ram and the balance in 

2 : 1. The profits for the year are 11,600; the capitals being Ram 40,000 and Rahim 36,000. Interest 

on capital had been omitted from the books and is to be allowed at 5% p.a. Adjust the omission by 

passing entry 

{CMA inter D05, 6 marks}  

Answer:  

 Calculation of Profit   (actual) (Error)   

 Net profit   11,600 11,600  

Interest 

on capital 

Ram 2,000    

Rahim 1,800 3,800   

 Profit to be actually divided   7,800 11,600  

Share 

of Profit  

Ram   7,800 10,400  

Rahim  - 1,200  

Total 

[Profit + Interest]  

Ram  9,800 10,400 600 Dr 

Rahim  1,800 1,200 600 Cr 

  

1ÈÔÚɀɯ ɤÊɯ Dr. 600  

 3Öɯ1ÈÏÐÔɀÚɯ ɤÊ   600 

 

Additional Problems  

Question 1 : A, B, C and D are partners in a garage comprising, (i) petrol sales, (ii) Repairs and 

servicing, and (iii) Second-hand car dealing. A is responsible for petrol sales, B for repairs and 

servicing, and C for second-hand car dealing, while D acts purely in an advisory capacity . 

The partnership agreement provides for the following:  

a) $ÈÊÏɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɯÐÚɯÛÖɯÙÌÊÌÐÝÌɯÊÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕɯÖÍɯÛÏÌɯÕÌÛɯ×ÙÖÍÐÛɯÖÍɯÛÏÌɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯÖÞÕɯËÌ×ÈÙÛÔÌÕÛɯÈÚɯÜÕËÌÙɯɬ 

A ɬ 10%; B ɬ 15% and C ɬ 20%. 

b) A total salary of 11,000 is payable to D which is to be allocated among the above three 

departments in the ratio 3: 4: 4 respectively. 

c) 50% of the net profit of each department after charging commission and salary will be distributed 

to A, B and C as under ɬ 

 

Petrol Sales Repairs and Servicing  Second-hand Car Dealing  

A, B and C ɬ Equally  A : B : C = 2 : 2 : 1 A : B : C = 3 : 2 : 1 

 

d) The balance of the profit of the firm will be shared equally.  

e) The profits for the year ended 31.12.2002 were as under: Petrol sales: 20,000; Repairs and 

Servicing ɬ 40,000; Secondhand-car dealing ɬ 50,000.  

f) 3ÏÌɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓÚɯÈÙÌȯɯ ɯ- 40, 000; B ɬ 30,000; C ɬ 25,000; D ɬ 10,000. 

g) Interest on capital is payable @ 10% 
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You are required to prepare the Profit and Loss Appropriation Account for the year ended 31.12.2002.  

{CMA inter D03, 16 marks} 

Answer:  

Profit & Loss Appropriation A/c  

 Particulars     Particulars    

To Appropriated Profit [WN2]    By Net Profit    

 Capital A  31,000   Petrol 20,000  

 Capital B 31,000   Repair & Servicing  40,000  

 Capital C 28,500   Second Hand Car 50,000 1,10,000 

 Capital D  19,500 1,10,000     

   1,10,000    1,10,000 

 

WN1  Department  Total 

  Petrol  Repair  Second-hand  

 Profit  20,000 40,000 50,000  

Less Commission [10%, 15% & 20%] on profit 2,000 6,000 10,000  

Less Salary of D [ 11,000 shared in the ratio of 3:4:4] 3,000 4,000 4,000  

 Balance Profit 15,000 30,000 36,000  

 First Half of the Profit  7,500 15,000 18,000  

 Balance 7,500 15,000 18,000 40,500 

 Interest on Capital [10% on total capital]     10,500 

 Balance after interest on capital    30,000 

 

WN2  Capital  

  A B C D 

 Commission [WN1]  2,000 6,000 10,000  

 Salary    11,000 

 Interest on Capital [@10%] 4,000 3,000 2,500 1,000 

 Sharing First Half of the Profit [WN1]      

 Petrol [1:1:1] 2,500 2,500 2,500 - 

 Repair [2:2:1] 6,000 6,000 3,000  

 Second-hand [3:2:1] 9,000 6,000 3,000  

 Sharing balance profit [Equally]  7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 

  31,000 31,000 28,500 19,500 
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PARTNERSHIP ɬ TREATMENT OF GOODWILL & JOINT LIFE POLICY  

 

 Reconstitution of Firm   Adjustments    

1 Admission  1 New P/L ratio  1 General 

2 Retirement 2 Distribution of accumulated P/L  2 Capital  

3 Admission cum Retirement  3 Goodwill  3 Specific 

4 Death 4 Revaluation of Assets / Liabilities  

(Memorandum Revaluation A/c)  

4 Secret 

  5 Capital adjustment    

  6 Joint Life Policy   

  7 Section 37   

Reserves 

 Types Examples Purpose 

1 General Reserve P/L, General Reserve, Reserve Fund Multi  

2 Specific Reserve PDD, Investment Fluctuation Reserve, Workmen Compensation, Specific 

3 Capital Reserve Share forfeiture, Capital Reserve, Profit Prior to Incorporation, CRR Limited  

4 Secret Reserve Asset / Liabilities shown less / more than its book value [Prohibited]   

 

Goodwill: (intangible asset) reputation in terms of money based on future maintainable profit  

{CMA inter D03, J04, J05 & J06, 4, 4, 3 & 4 marks} 

Need for valuation of Goodwil l  - In case of  

1. Change in Profit Sharing Ratio,  

2. Admission of new partner,  

3. Retirement and/or death of partner,  

4. Sale of firm and  

5. Amalgamation of firm  

 

Reason Valuation Treatment    

1 Location 1 Simple Average Method 

[if profit has no trend] 

1 Non-cash method    

2 Size   Gaining Partner A/c Dr ××  

3 Patent 2 Weight Average Method 

[if profit has trend] 

  To Sacrificing Partner A/c   ×× 

4 Technical Know-how  2 Cash method    

5 Key person 3 Super Profit Method  Bank A/c Dr ××  

6 Market Situation 4 Capitalization Method   To Sacrificing Partner A/c   ×× 

  5 Annuity Method 3 Cash + Non-cash    

 

ὌὭὨὨὩὲ ὋέέὨύὭὰὰ  
ὍὲὧέάὭὲὫ ὖὥὶὸὲὩὶί ὅὥὴὭὸὥὰ

ὌὭί ίὬὥὶὩ έὪ ὴὶέὪὭὸ
ὃὒὒ ὉὼὭίὸὭὲὫ ὴὥὶὸὲὩὶίὧὥὴὭὸὥὰὖȾὒ 

Note: If firm is dissolved before expiry of term, then return the premium on goodwill  
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Practical Problems  

Calculation of new P/L sharing ratio  

Question 1: A and B share profit and loss in 4:3. C is joined for 1/8th share. Calculate the new profit 

and loss ratio 

Answer:  

ὃί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ ρ
ρ

ψ

τ

χ

τ

ψ
 

ὄί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ ρ
ρ

ψ

σ

χ

σ

ψ
 

ὔὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
τ

ψ
ȡ
σ

ψ
ȡ
ρ

ψ
 

 

Question 2: A and B share P/L in 4:3 C is joined for 1/8th ÚÏÈÙÌȭɯ ÍÛÌÙɯ"ɀÚɯÈËÔÐÚÚÐÖÕɯ ɯÈÕËɯ!ɯÚÏÈÙÌɯ

profit and loss in the ratio of 3:4. Calculate the new profit and loss ratio  

Answer:  

ὃί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ ρ
ρ

ψ

σ

χ

σ

ψ
 

ὄί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ ρ
ρ

ψ

τ

χ

τ

ψ
 

ὔὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
τ

ψ
ȡ
σ

ψ
ȡ
ρ

ψ
 

 

Question 3: A and B share profit and loss in the ratio of 4:3. C is admitted as new partner. A sacrifices 

1/2 of his share for C, and B sacrifices 1/3 of his share for C. Calculate new profit and loss ratio. 

Answer:  Old ratio ɬ sacrificing ratio  

ὃί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
τ

χ

τ

χ

ρ

ς

ς

χ
 

ὄί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
σ

χ

σ

χ

ρ

σ

ς

χ
 

ὅί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
τ

χ

ρ

ς

σ

χ

ρ

σ

σ

χ
 

ὔὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
ς

χ
ȡ
ς

χ
ȡ
σ

χ
ςȡςȡσ 

 

Question 4 : Babbu and Dabbu are partners, sharing profit or loss in the ratio 3:2. They admit Kachari 

for  ὸὬ  share of profits in the firms of which she takes ὶὨ  from Babbu and ὶὨ from Dabbu. Find 

the new profit sharing ratio.  

{CMA inter J14, 2 marks} 

Answer:  

ὄὥὦὦόί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
σ

υ

ρ

φ

ς

σ

ςς

τυ
 

Ὀὥὦὦόί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
ς

υ

ρ

φ

ρ

σ

σρ

ωπ
 

ὔὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
ςς

τυ
ȡ
σρ

ωπ
ȡ
ρ

φ

ττ

ωπ
ȡ
σρ

ωπ
ȡ
ρυ

ωπ
ττȡσρȡρυ 
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Question 5: S and N are partners sharing Profit/ (Loss) in the ratio of 5:3. They admit J into 

partnership for ὸὬ in the Profit / (Loss) in which J acquired ὸὬ share from S and ὸὬ share from N 

respectively. Calculate the new Profit / Loss sharing ratios of the partners. 

{CMA inter J16, 2 marks} 

Answer:  

Ὓȭί ὶὥὸὭέ ὥὪὸὩὶ ίὥὧὶὭὪὭὧὭὲὫ  
υ

ψ
ɀ
ρ

υ
 
ςυ ψ

τπ

ρχ

τπ
 

ὔȭί ὶὥὸὭέ ὥὪὸὩὶ ίὥὧὶὭὪὭὧὭὲὫ  
σ

ψ
ɀ
ρ

ρπ
 
ρυ τ

τπ

ρρ

τπ
 

ὔὩύ ὶὥὸὭέ  
ρχ

τπ
ȡ
ρρ

τπ
ȡ
σ

ρπ

τ

τ
 ςȡ ςȡ σ 

 

Question 6:  W and X are equal partners. They admit Y and Z as partners with 1/5 and 1/6 share 

respectively. What is the profit sharing ratio of all the partners?  

Answer : Let total profits or losses of the firm be 1 

ὡ ὥὲὨ ὢί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ ρ
ρ

υ

ρ

φ

ρ

ς

ρω

φπ
 

ὔὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ έὪ ὡȟὢȟὣ ὥὲὨ ὤ
ρω

φπ
ȡ
ρω

φπ
ȡ
ρ

υ
ȡ
ρ

φ

ρω

φπ
ȡ
ρω

φπ
ȡ
ρς

φπ
ȡ
ρπ

φπ
ρωȡρωȡρςȡρπ 

 

Goodwill: Calculation and Accounting Treatment  

Simple Average Method and Weighted Average Method  

Question 1:  "ÈÓÊÜÓÈÛÌɯÎÖÖËÞÐÓÓɯÜÕËÌÙɯƖɯàÌÈÙÚɀɯ×ÜÙÊÏÈÚÌɯÖÍɯƗɯàÌÈÙÚɀɯÚÐÔ×ÓÌɯÈÝÌÙÈÎÌɯ×ÙÖÍÐÛɯÔÌÛÏÖËɯÈÕËɯ

weighted average profit method from the profits for 20 19-20, 2018-19 and 2017-18 are 10,000, 8,000 

and 6,000 respectively. 

Answer:  

  i. Simple Average  ii. Weighted Average Method  

 Year Profit  Weight  Weighted Profit  

 2019-20 10,000 3 30,000 

 2018-19 8,000 2 16,000 

 2017-18 6,000 1 6,000 

 Total 24,000 6 52,000 

1 Average Profit  8,000  8,667 

2 Years of Purchase 2  2 

 Goodwill (1×2)  16,000  17,334 

 

Super Profit Method, Capitalisation Method and Annuity Method  

Question 2 : Sachin& Ganguly are partnership of a firm SG & Co. From the following information 

calculate the value of goodwill by (a) super profit method and (b) capitalization method:  

(i) Average capital employed in the business 5,00,000. 

(ii)  Net trading profit of the firm for the last three years 1,50,000; 1,70,000 and 1,90,000. 
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(iii)  Rate of return expected from capital having regard to risk involved @ 15% per annum. 

(iv)  Goodwill to be valued at 2 àÌÈÙÚɀɯ×ÜÙÊÏÈÚÌȭ 

Not in Exam: Also find out goodwill under annuity method. Annuity factor [AF] for 1 @ 10%for 3 

years is 2.486. 

{CMA inter D12, 5 marks}  

Answer : Calculate of Goodwill  

 Particulars  Calculation   

(a) Purchase of Super Profit Method    

1 Capital Employed [CE]   5,00,000 

2 Normal Rate of Return [NRR]   15% 

 Normal Profit [NP] (1×2)  5,00,000×15% 75,000 

(-) Actual Profit [AP] (or) Average  ρȢυὰ ρȢχὰ ρȢωὰ

σ
 

1,70,000 

 Super Profit [SP] 1,70,000 ɬ 75,000 95,000 

 Goodwill = 2 × SP  1,90,000 

(b) Capitalization Method   

 Goodwill  ωυȟπππ

ρυ
ρππ 

6,33,333 

 OR   

 Goodwill ɀ ὅὉ 
ȟ ȟ

ρππ ɬ 5,00,000 6,33,333 

(c) Annuity Method [Super Profit]   

 Goodwill Ὓὖ  ὃὲὲόὭὸώ Ὂὥὧὸέὶ 95,000 × 2.486 2,36,170 

 

Question 3: The profits of 20,000, 25,000, 5,000 and 30,000 earned in 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18 and 

2018-19 respectively. The following items are to be considered  

1. P&M purchased for 20,000 in 2017-18 was debited to purchases a/c [rate of depreciation @ 10% 

on SLM is to be provided]  

2. The closing stock in 2015-16 was undervalued by 2,000 

3. There was a fire accident and stock costing 4,000 lost in 2017-18. 

4. Existing manager drawing salary of 3,000 will leave from 1.4.2019 hence a new manger is 

recruited for a salary of 5,000. 

Find out goodwill under 3 years purchase of 4 years simple average profit.  

Answer:  

  Book Corrections  Correct 

 Year Profit  P&M  Dep. Stock Ab.Loss Profit  

 2015-16 20,000   2,000  22,000 

 2016-17 25,000   (2,000)  23,000 

 2017-18 5,000 20,000 (2,000)  4,000 27,000 
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 2018-19 30,000  (2,000)   28,000 

 Total      1,00,000 

 Average Profit       25,000 

(-) Increase in salary      2,000 

1 Future Maintainable Profit       23,000 

2 Years of Purchase      3 

 Goodwill (1×2)       69,000 

 

Question 4: Show the journal entry to adjust the goodwill on admission of the new partner C. The 

existing partners A and B share profit and loss in the ratio of 3: 2 and C is admitted for 1/5 th share of 

profit. The balance sheet of the firm is given below  

 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital A  70,000 Goodwill  -- 

Capital B 60,000 Fixed Asset 100,000 

Current Liabilities  20,000 Current Assets 50,000 

 150,000  150,000 

 

Goodwill of the firm valued at 25,000. C is not able to bring cash for his share of goodwill but cash 

brought in for capital is 40,000 

Answer:  

ὃί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ ρ
ρ

υ

σ

υ

ρς

ςυ
 

ὄί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ ρ
ρ

υ

ς

υ

ψ

ςυ
 

ὔὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
ρς

ςυ
ȡ
ψ

ςυ
ȡ
ρ

υ

ρς

ςυ
ȡ
ψ

ςυ
ȡ
υ

ςυ
ρςȡψȡυ 

 

 Working Note  A B C 

 Increase the goodwill (old ratio)  15,000 Cr. 10,000 Cr.  

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  12,000 Dr. 8,000 Dr. 5,000 Dr. 

  3,000 Cr. 2,000 Cr. 5,000 Dr. 

 

1) "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ Dr. 5,000  

  3Öɯ ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   3,000 

  3Öɯ!ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   2,000 

 (being goodwill adjusted)  



Sahasri Singar Academy 9.1.14 

2) Cash A/c Dr. 40,000  

  3Öɯ"ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ   40,000 

 ȹÉÌÐÕÎɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÐÕÛÙÖËÜÊÌËɯÉàɯ"ɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓȺ 

 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital A [70+3] 73,000 Goodwill [25 -25] ---- 

Capital B [60+2] 62,000 Fixed Asset 100,000 

Capital C [40-5] 35,000 Current Assets 90,000 

Current Liabilities  20,000   

 190,000  190,000 

 

Question  5: Keep the above illustration as it is except that the new partner C can bring his share of 

goodwill also in cash apart from his capital. 

1) CɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ A/c Dr. 5,000  

  3Öɯ ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   3,000 

  3Öɯ!ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   2,000 

 (being premium for GW brought in by C is shared by old partners  

2) Cash A/c Dr. 45,000  

  3Öɯ"ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ   45,000 

 (being ÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÐÕÛÙÖËÜÊÌËɯÉàɯ"ɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓȺ 

 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital A  73,000 Goodwill  ---- 

Capital B 62,000 Fixed Asset 100,000 

Capital C 40,000 Current Assets 95,000 

Current Liabilities  20,000   

 195,000  195,000 

 

Question 6: A & B are equal partners. C is coming as a new partner who pays 8,000 as premium for 

goodwill. The new profit sharing ratio among A, B & C is 4:3:2. Pass necessary journal entries 

showing the appropriation of premium money assuming that the premium for go odwill is 

immediately withdrawn by the old partners.  

Answer:  

 Working Note     

 
Ὃὡ  

ὖὶὩάὭόά έὪ ὫέέὨύὭὰὰ ὥ ὴὥὶὸὲὩὶ

ὧέὲὧὩὶὲὩὨ ὴὥὶὸὲὩὶίίὬὥὶὩ
ψȟπππ

ω

ς
σφȟπππ 
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  A  B C 

 Increase the goodwill (old ratio)  18,000 Cr. 18,000 Cr.  

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  16,000 Dr. 12,000 Dr. 8,000 Dr. 

  2,000 Cr. 6,000 Cr. 8,000 Dr. 

 

1) Cash A/c Dr. 8,000  

  3Öɯ"ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ   8,000 

 ȹÉÌÐÕÎɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÐÕÛÙÖËÜÊÌËɯÉàɯ"ɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓȺ 

2) CɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ A/c Dr. 8,000  

  3Öɯ ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   2,000 

  3Öɯ!ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   6,000 

 (being premium for GW brought in by C is shared by old partners ) 

3)  ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ Dr. 2,000  

 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ Dr. 6,000  

  To Cash A/c   8,000 

 (being premium for goodwill withdrawn immediately)  

 

Question 7: A and B are partners in a firm sharing profits & losses in the ratio of 3:2. C is coming for 

1/3rd share, is to pay 30,000 as premium for goodwill but pays only 15,000. As between A and B, 

they decided to share profits & losses equally. 

Answer:  

 Working Note     

 
Ὃὡ  

ὖὶὩάὭόά έὪ ὫέέὨύὭὰὰ ὥ ὴὥὶὸὲὩὶ

ὧέὲὧὩὶὲὩὨ ὴὥὶὸὲὩὶίίὬὥὶὩ
σπȟπππ

σ

ρ
ωπȟπππ 

  A  B C 

 Increase the goodwill (old ratio)  54,000 Cr. 36,000 Cr.  

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  30,000 Dr. 30,000 Dr. 30,000 Dr. 

  24,000 Cr. 6,000 Cr. 30,000 Dr. 

 

Cash A/c Dr. 15,000  

 3Öɯ"ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ   15,000 

(being cash ÐÕÛÙÖËÜÊÌËɯÉàɯ"ɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓȺ 

"ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ Dr. 30,000  

 3Öɯ ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   24,000 

 3Öɯ!ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   6,000 

(being goodwill adjusted)  
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Question 8: A and B share profit and  loss in the ratio of 3:2. They decided to share their future profit 

and loss in the ratio of 4:5. Goodwill is valued at 45,000. Pass the journal entry/s to adjust the 

goodwill to show the impact of change in profit and loss ratio.  

Answer:  

 Working Note  A B 

 Increase the goodwill (old ratio)  27,000 Cr. 18,000 Cr. 

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  20,000 Dr. 25,000 Dr. 

  7,000 Cr. 7,000 Dr. 

 

!ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ Dr. 7,000  

 3Öɯ ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   7,000 

 

Joint Life Policy  

Question 1 : X, Y and Z are partners sharing profits and losses in the ratio of 2:2:1. On 1st January 2000, 

they took out a joint life policy of 100,000. Annual premium of 5,000 was payable on 1st January 

each year. Last premium was paid on 1.1.2003. Y died on 1.3.2003, and policy money was received on 

31st March, 2003. 

The surrender values of policy as on 31st December of each year were as follows: 

2000 ɬ Nil; 2001 ɬ 1,000; 2002 ɬ 2,500. 

Show necessary accounts and Balance sheet as on 31st Dec, each year, assuming that: 

1. premium is charged to profit and loss Account every year. (premium method)  

2. premium is debited to Joint Life Policy A/c and the balance of the Joint Life Policy A/c is adjusted 

every year to its surrender Value. (surrender va lue method)  

3. premium is debited to JLP A/c & a sum equal to premium is debited to JLP Revenue (JLP reserve 

method)  

Answer:  

Year Premium  Cumulative  

Surrender Value  

Current  

Value  

Loss of 

Premium  

2000 5,000 - - 5,000 

2001 5,000 1,000 1,000 4,000 

2002 5,000 2,500 1,500 3,500 

2003 5,000    

Note: Sum assured of 100,000 is received on 1.3.2003 the date of death of one of the partners. 

Case I. Joint Life Policy (Premium Method)  

JLP Premium ɬ debited to P/L a/c& Claim ɬ credited to capital a /c 

01.01.2000  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To Cash   5,000 

31.12.2000  Profit and Loss a/c  5,000  
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  To Joint Life Policy a/c   5,000 

01.01.2001  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

   To cash a/c   5,000 

31.12.2001  Profit and Loss a/c  5,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   5,000 

01.01.2002  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To cash a/c   5,000 

31.12.2002  Profit and Loss a/c  5,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   5,000 

01.01.2003  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To Cash   5,000 

31.03.2003  Cash a/c  100,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   100,000 

31.03.2003  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 95,000  

  3Öɯ7ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ   38,000 

  3Öɯ8ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ   38,000 

  3Öɯ9ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ   19,000 

 

Joint Life Policy A/c  

Date  Debit   Date  Credit   

01.01.00 To  Cash  5,000 31.12.00 By  Profit & Loss A/c  5,000 

   5,000    5,000 

01.01.01 To  Cash  5,000 31.12.01 By  Profit & Loss A/c  5,000 

   5,000    5,000 

01.01.02 To  Cash  5,000 31.12.02 By  Profit & Loss A/c  5,000 

   5,000    5,000 

01.01.03 To  Cash  5,000 31.03.03 By  Cash  1,00,000 

31.03.03  7Ȯɯ8ɯȫɯ9ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ 95,000     

   95,000    1,00,000 

 Note: Nothing will appear in balance sheet  

 

Case II. Joint Life Policy (Surrender Value Method)  

JLP Premium is treated as asset up to its surrender value  

01.01.00  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To Cash   5,000 

31.12.00  Profit and Loss a/c  5,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   5,000 
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01.01.01  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To cash a/c   5,000 

31.12.01  Profit and Loss a/c  4,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   4,000 

01.01.02  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To cash a/c   5,000 

31.12.02  Profit and Loss a/c  3,500  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   3,500 

01.01.03  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To Cash   5,000 

31.12.03  Cash a/c  100,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   100,000 

31.12.03  Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 92,500  

  3Öɯ7ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ   37,000 

  3Öɯ8ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ   37,000 

  3Öɯ9ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ   18,500 

 

Joint Life Policy A/c  

Date  Debit   Date  Credit   

01.01.00 To  Cash  5,000 31.12.00 By  Profit & Loss A/c  5,000 

   5,000    5,000 

01.01.01 To  Cash  5,000 31.12.01 By  Profit & Loss A/c  4,000 

      Balance c/d 1,000 

   5,000    5,000 

01.01.02 To Balance b/d 1,000 31.12.02 By  Profit & Loss A/c  3,500 

01.01.02  Cash  5,000   Balance c/d 2,500 

   6,000    6,000 

01.01.03 To  Balance b/d 2,500 31.03.03 By  Cash  1,00,000 

01.01.03  Cash  5,000     

31.03.03  7Ȯɯ8ɯȫɯ9ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ 92,500     

   95,000    1,00,000 

 

Balance Sheet 2000-01 

Liabilities   Assets  

  Joint Life Policy a/c Nil  

2001 ɬ 02 

  Joint Life Policy a/c 1,000 
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2002 ɬ 03 

  Joint Life Policy a/c 2,500 

 

 Case III. Joint Life Policy (JLP Reserve Method)  

 JLP Premium is treated as asset up to its surrender value  

Year JLP Reserve a/c is created to adjust the loss on JLP 

2000 Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To Cash   5,000 

 Profit and Loss a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To JLP Reserve a/c   5,000 

 JLP Reserve a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   5000 

2001 Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To Cash   5,000 

 Profit and Loss a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To JLP Reserve a/c   5,000 

 JLP Reserve a/c Dr. 4,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   4,000 

2002 Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To Cash   5,000 

 Profit and Loss a/c Dr. 5,000  

  To JLP Reserve a/c   5,000 

 JLP Reserve a/c Dr. 3,500  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   3,500 

2003 Joint Life Policy a/c Dr. 5,000  

 To Cash   5,000 

 Cash a/c Dr. 100,000  

  To Joint Life Policy a/c   7,500 

  To JLP Reserve   92,500 

 JLP Reserve a/c Dr. 95,000  

  3Öɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ   95,000 

 

Joint Life Policy A/c  

Date  Debit   Date  Credit   

01.01.00 To  Cash  5,000 31.12.00 By  JLP Reserve a/c 5,000 

   5,000    5,000 

01.01.01 To  Cash  5,000 31.12.01 By  JLP Reserve a/c 4,000 
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      Balance c/d 1,000 

   5,000    5,000 

01.01.02 To Balance b/d 1,000 31.12.02 By  JLP Reserve a/c 3,500 

01.01.02  Cash  5,000   Balance c/d 2,500 

   6,000    6,000 

01.01.03 To  Balance b/d 2,500 31.03.03 By  Cash  1,00,000 

01.01.03  Cash  5,000     

31.03.03  JLP Reserve a/c 92,500     

   1,00,000    1,00,000 

 

Joint Life Policy Reserve A/c  

Date  Debit   Date  Credit   

01.01.00 To  Joint Life Policy a/c  5,000 31.12.00 By  Profit and Loss a/c 5,000 

   5,000    5,000 

01.01.01 To  Joint Life Policy a/c  4,000 31.12.01 By  Profit and Loss a/c 5,000 

  Balance c/d 1,000     

   5,000    5,000 

31.12.02 To  Joint Life Policy a/c  3,500 01.01.02 By  Balance b/d 1,000 

31.12.02  Balance c/d 2,500 31.12.02  Profit and Loss a/c 5,000 

   6,000    6,000 

31.03.03 To /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊ 95,000 01.01.02 By  Balance b/d 2,500 

    31.12.02  Joint Life Policy a/c  92,500 

   95,000    95,000 

 

Individual insurance policy  

Question: Partners share P/L in the ratio of 3 : 2: 1. Y died on 1.1.2021.  

Partner LIC Policy  Surrender Value  

X 1,00,000 20,000 

Y 60,000 10,000 

Z 40,000 10,000 

Answer:  Amount realised on death  

Partner LIC Policy  Surrender Value  Amount realized   

X 1,00,000 20,000 20,000  

Y 60,000 10,000 60,000 Policy amount as Y died 

Z 40,000 10,000 10,000  

   90,000  
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Bank A/c Dr. 90,000  

 To JLP   90,000 

JLP A/c Dr. 90,000  

 To X Capital A/c    30,000 

 To Y Capital A/c    20,000 

 To Z Capital A/c    10,000 
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9.2 PARTNERSHIP ɬ ADMISSION OF A NEW PARTNER

 

Practical Problem  

Question 1: Rain and Storm are partners in a firm sharing profits and losses as 3:2 respectively. Their 

Balance sheet on 31.12.2000 stands as under: 

 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities    Assets   

Creditors   35,000 Cash  4,000 

Capital Accounts:    Debtors 22,000  

 Rain 40,000  (-) Provision for doubtful debts  2000 20,000 

 Storm 20,000 60,000 Stock  18,000 

   Machinery   20,000 

   Land & Building   33,000 

  95,000   95,000 

 

On 1.1.2001, they agreed to take Dust as a partner on the following conditions:  

1. Goodwill of the firm shall be valued at 23,750 and Dust shall pay his share of goodwill in cash. 

2. Dust shall contribute 15,000 as his share of capital. 

3. Land and Building shall be valued at 42,000. Machinery shall be depreciated by 5,000. Provision 

for doubtful debts shall be raised to 3,000 and another provision shall be made for a probable 

liability for damages amounting to 1,300. 

4. Profit & loss sharing ratio shall be so adjusted that, between Rain & Storm the former ratio is 

maintained, while between Storm & Dust there shall be the same ratio as between Rain & Storm. 

5. The capital shall be adjusted (without disturbing the ultimate total capital) so as t o correspond 

with the new ratio, the excess or deficit being transferred to their respective current accounts. 

Show the journal entries tothe above arrangement and prepare the opening B/S of the new firm 

Answer:  

 Journal Entries   Dr.  Cr. 

1 Land and Building A/c  Dr. 9,000  

  To Revaluation A/c    9,000 

 (Being land and building appreciated)     

2 Revaluation A/c  Dr. 7,300  

  To Machinery A/c    5,000 

  To Provision for Doubtful Debts A/c.    1,000 

  To Liability for Damages A/c    1,300 

 (Being machinery written down and provision for DD and damages created)  

3 Revaluation A/c ( 9,000 ɬ 7,300) Dr. 1,700  
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Balance Sheet of the New firm as on 1 st January, 2001 

Liabilities    Assets   

Capital Accounts:   Land and Building [33+9]   42,000 

 Rain 38,700  Machinery [20-5]  15,000 

 Storm 25,800  Stock  18,000 

 Dust 17,200 81,700 Debtors 22,000  

Current A/c    (-) Provision for DD [2,000+ 1,000] 3,000 19,000 

 Rain  5,320 Cash ( 4,000 + 20,000)  24,000 

Creditors   35,000 Current A/c    

Liability for Damages   1,300  Storm 3,120  

    Dust 2,200 5,320 

  1,23,320   1,23,320 

 

Working Notes  

(1)ὔὩύ ὶὥὸὭέ  σȡςḊȡ σȡς  ωȡφȡτ 

 

 

 

  To Rain Capital A/c    1,020 

  To Storm Capital A/c    680 

 (Being revaluation profit ÛÙÈÕÚÍÌÙÙÌËɯÛÖɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊȺ    

4 Cash A/c Dr. 15,000  

  To Dust Capital A/c    15,000 

 (Being cash brought in for capital )    

5 Cash A/c (WN2) Dr. 5,000  

  To Rain Capital A/c    3,000 

  To Storm Capital A/c    2,000 

 (Being cash for premium for goodwill shared by old partners)     

6 Rain Capital A/c.(WN 3) Dr. 5,320  

  To Rain Current A/c    5,320 

 (Being excess capital of rain transferred to current a/c)    

7 Strom Current A/c (WN 3) Dr. 3,120  

 Dust Current A/c  Dr. 2,200  

  To Storm Capital A/c    3,120 

  To Dust Capital A/c    2,200 

 ȹ!ÌÐÕÎɯËÌÍÐÊÐÛɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÖÍɯ2ÛÖÙÔɯÈÕËɯ#ÜÚÛɀÚɯÛÙÈÕÚÍÌÙÙÌËɯÛÖɯÊÜÙÙÌÕÛÚɯÈɤÊȺ 
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(2) 

  A  B C 

 Increase the goodwill (old ratio)  14,250 Cr. 9,500 Cr.  

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  11,250 Dr. 7,500 Dr. 5,000 Dr. 

  3,000 Cr. 2,000 Cr. 5,000 Dr. 

(3) 

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 

Dr.  Particulars  Rain Storm Dust  Cr. Particulars  Rain Storm Dust  

To Current a/c (bal) 5,320 ---- ---- By Bal. b/d 40,000 20,000 --- 

 R/S Capital A/c   5,000  Bank A/c.  ----  ---- 20,000 

      Revaluation A/c  1,020 680 ---- 

      #ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 3,000 2,000 ---- 

 Balance1 38,700 25,800 17,200  Current a/c (Bal)  ---- 3,120 2,200 

  44,020 25,800 22,200   44,020 25,800 22,200 

(4) 

Revaluation A/c  

 Debit    Credit   

To Decrease in plant and machinery 5,000 By Increase in land and building  9,000 

 Provision for bad debts A/c.  1,000    

 Liability for damages  1,300    

 /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊɯɬ Profit  

(Rain ɬ 1,020; Storm ɬ 680 

1,700    

  9,000   9,000 
 

Hidden Goodwill  

Question 2: A and B are partners sharing profits and losses in the ratio of 3: 2. Their Balance Sheet 

stood as under on 01.01.2003. 

Liabilities    Assets   

Capital Accounts  A 29,000 Buildings   35,000 

 B 15,000 Machinery   19,000 

Reserve  10,000 Furniture   5,000 

Creditors   28,500 Stock  15,000 

Outstanding Expenses  4,000 Debtors 9,400  

   Less : Provision for Bad Debts 400 9,000 

   Prepaid Insurance  1,500 

   Cash  2,000 

  86,500   86,500 

 
1Total of capital-balances of all partners is shared in new P/L ratio ((60,000 + 15,000 +5,000 + 1,700) = 81,700) 
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C is admitted as a new partner introducing a capital of 21,000. The capitals of the partners are to be 

adjusted in the new profit sharing ratio, which is 5: 3: 2 taking C ɀs capital as base. C is to bring 

premium for ÎÖÖËÞÐÓÓɯÐÕɯÊÈÚÏȭɯ&ÖÖËÞÐÓÓɯÈÔÖÜÕÛɯÐÚɯÉÌÐÕÎɯÊÈÓÊÜÓÈÛÌËɯÖÕɯÛÏÌɯÉÈÚÐÚɯÖÍɯ"ɀÚɯÚÏÈÙÌɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯ

profits and capital contributed by him. Following revaluations are made:  

i. Stock to be depreciated by 5%;  

ii.  Provision for bad debts is to be raised to 500;  

iii.  Furniture to b e depreciated by 10%;  

iv.  Buildings are revalued at 41,350. 

Prepare necessary Ledger Accounts and the Balance Sheet of the new firm. 

{CMA inter D04, 14 marks} 

Answer:  

Revaluation A/c  

Particulars  Amount  Particulars  Amount  

To Stock A/c 750 By  Building A/c  6,350 

 Furniture A/c  500    

 Provision for Bad Debts A/c  100    

 Partner Capital A/c      

 A ɬ 3,000     

 B ɬ 2,000 5,000    

  6,350   6,350 

 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities   Amount  Asset  Amount  

Capital A/c    Building   41,350 

A 52,500  Machinery   19,000 

B 31,500  Furniture   4,500 

C 21,000 1,05,000 Stock  14,250 

Creditors   28,500 Sundry Debtors 9,400  

Outstanding Expenses  4,000 Less: Provision 500 8,900 

   Prepaid insurance  1,500 

   Cash (WN1)  48,000 

  1,37,500   1,37,500 

 

Working Notes:  

  A  B C Total  

 Capital  29,000 15,000 -  

 Reserve 6,000 4,000   

 Revaluation Profit  3,000 2,000   
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1 Total 38,000 21,000 21,000 80,000 

2 3ÖÛÈÓɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯȻÜÚÐÕÎɯ"ɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÉÈÚÌȼ    1,05,000 

 Goodwill [2 ɬ 1]    25,000 

 

Partner Capital A/c  

Dr.  Particulars  A B C Cr. Particulars  A B C 

To  ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ -- -- 2,500 By Balance b/d 29,000 15,000 -- 
 

!ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ -- -- 2,500 
 

Reserve A/c 6,000 4,000 -- 
 

Balance c/d 52,500 31,500 21,000 
 

Revaluation A/c  3,000 2,000 -- 

     
 

Cash A/c -- -- 26,000 

      "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 2,500 2,500  

     
 

Cash A/c 12,000 8,000  

  52,500 31,500 26,000   52,500 31,500 26,000 

 

Cash A/c 
 

Particulars   
 

Particulars   

To Balance b/d 2,000 By    
 

 ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 11,500 
 

  

 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 8,500 
 

Balance c/d (B/F) 48,000 

 "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 26,000    

  48,000   48,000 

 

Question 3: The Balance Sheet of P & R, Partnership Firm, as at 31st March, 2003 is as follows: 

Liabilities    Assets  

Capital Account :    Land and Building  14,400 

P 26,400  Machinery  14,000 

R 33,600 60,000 Furniture  2,200 

Contingency Reserve  6,000 Stock 26,000 

Sundry Creditors   9,000 Sundry Debtors 6,400 

   Cash at Bank 12,000 

  75,000  75,000 

 

P & R share Profits and Losses as 1:2. They agree to admit S (who also hasa business of his own) as a 

third partner from 01.04.2003. 

The Assets are revalued as under:Goodwill 6,000, Machinery 18,000, Land and Building 30,000, 

Furniture 6,000. S brings the following Assets into Partnership ɬ Goodwill 7,500, Furniture 2,800, 

Stock 13,600. 
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Profits in the new firm are to be shared equally by the three Partners and the Capital Accounts are to 

be so adjusted as to be equal.  

Prepare Revaluation A/c, Partners Capital A/c and Balance Sheet after the admission of S. 

{CMA inter J03, 4+6+6=16 marks | modified} 

Answer:  

Revaluation A/c  
 

Particulars   Amount  
 

Particulars  Amount  

To Partner Capital A/c    By Machinery A/c  4,000 

 /ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 7,800   Land & Building A/c  15,600 

 1ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 15,600 23,400  Furniture A/c  3,800 

   23,400   23,400 

 

Partner Capital A/c  
 

Particulars  P R S 
 

Particulars  P R S 

To 2ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ(WN) 2,500 500 - By Balance b/d 26,400 33,600 -- 

 Balance c/d 52,700 52,700 52,700 
 

Contingency 2,000 4,000 -- 

     
 

Revaluation P/L 7,800 15,600 -- 

     
 

/ɯȫɯ1ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ(WN) -- -- 3,000 

     
 

Furniture A/c  -- -- 2,800 

     
 

Stock A/c -- -- 13,600 

     
 

Bank A/c 19,000 -- 33,300 

  55,200 53,200 52,700   55,200 53,200 52,700 

Note: (ÛɯÐÚɯÈÚÚÜÔÌËɯÛÏÈÛɯ1ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÐÚɯÛÈÒÌÕɯÈÚɯÉÈÚÌɯÛÖɯÊÈÓÊÜÓÈÛÌɯÙÌÔÈÐÕÐÕÎɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓȭ 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities    Asset  

Sundry Creditors   9,000 Machinery  18,000 

Partner Capital A/c    Land & Buildings  30,000 

P 52,700  Furniture  8,800 

R 52,700  Stock 39,600 

S 52,700 1,58,100 Sundry Debtors 6,400 

   Cash and Bank 64,300 

  1,67,100  1,67,100 

 

 Working note  P R S 

 Increase the goodwill of Firm (old ratio)  2,000 Cr. 4,000 Cr.  

 Increase the goodwill of S (old ratio)    7,500 Cr. 

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  4,500 Dr. 4,500 Dr. 4,500 Dr. 

  2,500 Dr. 500 Dr. 3,000 Cr. 
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Question 4: Ranu & Mili are partners in a firm sharing profits & losses in  the ratio of 2:1 

 

Balance sheet of the firm on 31.12.2002 was as follows: 

Liabilities    Assets   

Creditors   7,000 Investments  25,000 

Investment provision   2,000 Stock  15,000 

General Reserve  10,500 Debtors 20,000  

Workmen compensation Fund   6,000 Less: Provision for bad debts 2,500 17,500 

Capital A/c: Ranu 30,000  Bills Receivable  12,500 

Capital A/c: Mili  24,500 54,500 Bank  10,000 

  80,000   80,000 

 

On the above date, Manisha is admitted for 2/5th share in the profits or losses of the firm. Following 

adjustments were made at the time of admission: 

a. Manisha is required to bring in 50,000 as capital. 

b. Her goodwill was calculated at 12,000. 

c. Ranu and Mili purchased a Machinery on hire purchase system for 15,000 of which only 500 are 

to be paid. Both machinery and unpaid liability did not appear in the Balance sheet.  

d. There was a joint life policy on the lives of Ranu and Mili for 75,000. Surrender value of the 

policy on the date of admission amounted to 12,000. 

e. Accrued incomes not appearing in the books were 500. 

f. Market value of investments is 22,500. 

g. Claim on account of compensation is estimated at 750. 

h. S, an old customer, whose account was written-off as bad, has promised to pay 1,750 in 

settlement of the full claim.  

i. Provision for bad debts is required at 3,000. 

/ÙÌ×ÈÙÌɯ1ÌÝÈÓÜÈÛÐÖÕɯ ɤÊȮɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊɯȫɯ!/S after the admission of Manisha 

Answer:    

Revaluation A/c  

 Debit    Credit   

To Investment Provision A/c (Nt 1)  500 By Accrued income A/c  500 

 Prov. For bad debts A/c. 500  Workmen Comp. Fund A/c (Note 2)  5,250 

 Creditors A/c (hire purchase)  500  Bank A/c [Joint Life Policy] 12,000 

 /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊÚɯɬ Profit  

(Ranu ɬ 20,833; Mili ɬ 10,417 

31,250  Machinery A/c  15,000 

  32,750   32,750 
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/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 

 Particulars  Ranu Mili  Manisha   Particulars  Ranu Mili  Manisha  

To Ranu / Mili    12,000 By Balance b/d 30,000 24,500 ---- 

 Balance c/d 65,833 42,417 38,000  Revaluation A/c  20,833 10,417 ---- 

      General Reserve 7,000 3,500 ---- 

      Manisha A/c  8,000 4,000 ---- 

      Bank A/c ---- ---- 50,000 

  65,833 42,417 50,000   77,833 48,417 50,000 

 

Balance 2ÏÌÌÛɯÖÍɯÛÏÌɯ%ÐÙÔɯȹÈÍÛÌÙɯ,ÈÕÐÚÏÈɀÚɯÈËÔÐÚÚÐÖÕȺ 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital A/c   Machinery  15,000 

Ranu 65,833 Investment  25,000 

Mili  42,417 Stock 15,000 

Manisha 38,000 Debtors  20,000  

Creditors + HP installment  7,500 (-) Provision for Doubtful Debt  3,000 17,000 

(7,000+500)  Bills Receivable 12,500 

Investment Provision ( 2,000 + 500) 2,500 Accrued income 500 

Workmen Comp Fund (6,000-5,250) 750 Bank (10,000 + 50,000 + 12,000) 72,000 

 1,57,000  1,57,000 

Working Notes: 

1. Since there is a fall in the market value of investments of 2,500, investment provision is increased 

form 2,000 to 2,500. 

2. Workmen compensation fund is nothing but retained profit. Therefore, it is credited to 

Revaluation A/c. AÓÛÌÙÕÈÛÐÝÌÓàȰɯÐÛɯÊÖÜÓËɯÏÈÝÌɯÉÌÌÕɯÊÙÌËÐÛÌËɯÛÖɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯÖÓËɯ

profit sharing ratio.  

3. Since Manisha is not paying the required amount of premium for goodwill. Therefore, 30,000 

goodwill will be adjusted through the Capital Accounts of the partners.  

4. There will be no entry for the promise made by S, since it is an event and not a transaction.  

 

Admission of Partner with Memorandum Revaluatio n Method  

0ÜÌÚÛÐÖÕɯƙȯɯ%ÖÓÓÖÞÐÕÎɯÞÈÚɯÛÏÌɯ!ɤ2ɯÖÍɯ ȫ!ȮɯɁÞÏÖɯÞÌÙÌɯÚÏÈÙÐÕÎɯ×ÙÖÍÐÛɯȫɯÓÖÚÚɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯÙÈÛÐÖɯÖÍɯƖȯƕɂɯÖÕ 

31.12.2006: 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital Accounts   Plant and machinery  12,00,000 

 A 10,00,000 Building  9,00,000 

 B 5,00,000 Sundry debtors 3,00,000 
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Reserve fund 9,00,000 Stock  4,00,000 

Sundry creditors  4,00,000 Cash 1,00,000 

Bills payable  1,00,000    

 29,00,000  29,00,000 

3ÏÌàɯÈÎÙÌÌËɯÛÖɯÈËÔÐÛɯȿ"ɀɯÐÕÛÖɯÛÏÌɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚÏÐ×ɯÖÕɯÛÏÌɯÍÖÓÓÖÞÐÕÎɯÛÌÙÔÚȯ  

1. The goodwill of the firm was fixed at 105,000. 

2. That the value of stock and plant and machinery were to be reduced by 10%. 

3. That a provision of 5% was to be created for doubtful debts. 

4. That the building account was to be appreciated by 20%. 

5. There was an unrecorded liability of 10,000.  

6. Investments worth 20,000 (Not mentioned in the B/S) were taken into account. 

7. That the value of reserve fund, the values of liabilities & the values of assets other than cash 

are not to be altered. 

8. C was to be given 1/4th share in the profit and was to bring capital equal to his share of profit 

after all adjustments. 

Prepare Memorandum Revaluation Account, Capital account of the partners and the Balance Sheet of 

the newly reconstituted firm.  

{CA inter N07, 16 marks} 

Answer:  

Memorandum Revaluation A/c  

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Stock 40,000 By Building  1,80,000 

 Plant & machinery  1,20,000  Investments 20,000 

 Provision for doubtful debts  15,000    

 Unrecorded liability  10,000    

 /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯCapital A/c (OR)      

  A  10,000     

  B 5,000 15,000    

  2,00,000   2,00,000 

To Building  1,80,000 By Stock 40,000 

 Investments 20,000  Plant & machinery  1,20,000 

    Provision for doubtful debts  15,000 

    Unrecorded liability  10,000 

    /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊɯȹ-1Ⱥ  

    A  7,500  

    B 3,750  

    C 3,750 15,000 

  2,00,000   2,00,000 
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/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 

 Particulars  A B C  Particulars  A B C 

To Reval. Loss 7,500 3,750 3,750 By Balance b/d 10,00,000 5,00,000 - 

 Reserve  4,50,000 2,25,000 2,25,000  Reserve  6,00,000 3,00,000 - 

 A (W.N.3)  - - 17,500  C (W.N.3) 17,500 8,750 - 

 B (W.N.3) - - 8,750  Reval.  Profit 10,000 5,000  

 Balance (nt) 11,70,000 5,85,000 5,85,000  Cash (Bal)     8,40,000 

  16,27,500 8,13,750 8,40,000   16,27,500 8,13,750 8,40,000 

-ÖÛÌȯɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÐÚɯÈËÑÜÚÛÌËɯÉÈÚÌËɯÖÕɯ"ɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓ 

 

Balance Sheet of newly reconstituted firm as on 31.12.2006 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital Accounts   Plant & Machinery  12,00,000 

 A 11,70,000 Building  9,00,000 

 B 5,85,000 Sundry Debtors 3,00,000 

 C 5,85,000 Stock 4,00,000 

Reserve Fund 9,00,000 Cash (1,00,000 + 8,40,000) 9,40,000 

Sundry Creditors  4,00,000   

Bills Payable  1,00,000    

 37,40,000  37,40,000 

 

Working Notes:  

1. New ratio calculation  
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2. Goodwill adjustment  

  A  B C 

 Increase the goodwill (old ratio)  70,000 Cr. 35,000 Cr.  

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  52,500 Dr. 26,250 Dr. 26,250 Dr. 

  17,500 Cr. 8,750 Cr. 26,250 Dr.  
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9.3 PARTNERSHIP ɬ RETIREMENT  OF A PARTNER  

 

Question 1 : A, B and C are partners sharing in the ratio 3:2:1. Calculate new ratio if; 

1. If A retires.  

2. If B retires. 

3. If C retires. 

Answer:  

 Retire  New ratio  

1 A 2:1 

2 B 3:1 

3 C 3:2 

 

Question 2 : A, B and C are partners sharing in the ratio 3:2:1. A retires and his share is taken over by 

B 2/6th  and C 1/6th. Calculate new ratio.  

Answer:  
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Question 3 : A, B and C are partners sharing profits in the ratio 3:2:1. B retires and his share was 

acquired by A and C in the ratio 2:1. Calculate new ratio. 

Answer:  
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Calculation of Gaining Ratio  

Question  4:A, B and C are partners sharing profits and losses in the ratio of ,  and  respectively. B 

retires form the firm and A& C decide to share future profits and losses in the ratio of 3:2. 

Answer: New ratio ɬ old ratio  
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Question 5 : W, A, B and C are partners sharing profits and losses in the ratio of , ,  and  

respectively. B retires and W, A and C decide to share future profits and losses equally. 

Answer: New ratio ɬ old ratio  
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Question 6: A, B and C are partners sharing profits and losses in the ratio of 25:15:9. B, retires and it is 

decided that profit sharing ratio between A &C will be the same as existing between B and C. 

Answer: New ratio ɬ old ratio  
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Question 7 : A, B and C are partners sharing profits and losses in the ratio of ,  and . B retires and 

surrenders th of his share in favour of A and remaining in favour of C.  

Answer:  
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Question 8 : A, B & C are partners sharing profits and losses in the ratio of , and  respectively. B 

retires and his share is taken by A and C in the ratio of 2:1. Then immediately W is admitted for ὸὬ 

share of profit, half of which was gifted by A and remaining share was taken by W equally from A 

and C. 

Answer:  

After retirement of B  

ὃί ὲὩύ ίὬὥὶὩ
ρ

ς

σ

ρπ

ς

σ

χ

ρπ
 



Partnership ς Retirement 9.3.3 
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After admission of W  
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Comprehensive  

Question 1: On 31-3-1995, the Balance Sheet of M/s A, B and C sharing profits and losses in 

proportion to their capitals, stood as follows:  

 

 

 

On 31st ,ÈÙÊÏɯƕƝƝƙȮɯɁ ɂɯËÌÚÐÙÌËɯÛÖɯÙÌÛÐÙÌɯÍÙÖÔɯÛÏÌɯÍÐÙÔɯÈÕËɯÛÏÌɯÙÌÔÈÐÕÐÕÎɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɯËÌÊÐËÌËɯÛÖɯÊÈÙÙàɯ

on. It was agreed to revalue the assets and liabilities on that date on the following basis: 

1. Land and Buildings be appreciated by 30% 

2. Machinery is to be depreciated by 20% 

3. Stock is to be valued at 75,000. 

4. Provision for bad debts is to be made at 5%. 

5. Old credit balances of Sundry Creditors 20,000 is to be written-off. 

6. Joint Life Policy of the partners surrendered and cash obtained 80,000. 

7. Goodwill of the entire firm be valued at ƕȮƘƔȮƔƔƔɯȫɯ ɀÚɯÚÏÈÙÌɯÖÍɯÛÏÌɯ&ÖÖËÞÐÓÓɯÉÌɯÈËÑÜÚÛÌËɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯ

accounts of B & C who share the future profits equally. No Goodwill A/c being raised.  

8. The capital of the firm is to be the same as before retirement. Individual capital is in their profit 

sharing ratio.  

9.  ÔÖÜÕÛɯËÜÌɯÛÖɯɁ ɂɯÐÚɯÛÖɯÉÌɯÚÌÛÛÓÌËɯÖÕɯÛÏÌɯÍÖÓÓÖÞÐÕÎɯÉÈÚÐÚȯɯƙƔǔɯÖÕɯÙÌÛÐÙÌÔÌÕÛɯÈÕËɯÛÏÌɯÉÈÓÈÕÊÌɯƙƔǔɯ

within one year.  

Prepare Revaluation A/c, Capital A/c of partners, Cash & Bank A/c and Balance Sheet as on 1.4.1995 

of M/s. B&C. 

  

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities    Assets  

Sundry Creditors.    1,00,000 Land and Buildings  2,00,000 

Capital A/cs.   Machinery  3,00,000 

A 2,00,000  Stock 1,00,000 

B 3,00,000  Sundry Debtors 1,00,000 

C 2,00,000 7,00,000 Cash and Bank 1,00,000 

  8,00,000  8,00,000 
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Answer: In the Books of M/s/ A, B and C  

Revaluation A/c  

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Machinery A/c  60,000 By Land and Buildings A/c  60,000 

 tock A/c  25,000  Sundry Creditors A/c  20,000 

 Provision for bad debts A/c   5,000  JLP 80,000 

  ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 20,000    

 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 30,000    

 "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 20,000    

  1,60,000   1,60,000 

  

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 

Dr.  Particulars  A B C Cr. Particulars  A B C 

To A Cap (GW)  ---- 10,000 30,000 By Balance b/d 2,00,000 3,00,000 2,00,000 

 Bank (50% ) 1,30,000  ----   Reval A/c 20,000 30,000 20,000 

 A Loan A/c  1,30,000  ----   !ɀÚɯ"È×ɯȹ&6Ⱥ 10,000  ----  ---- 

      "ɀÚɯ"È×ɯȹ&6Ⱥ 30,000  ----  ---- 

 Bal (required)  ---- 3,50,000 3,50,000  Bank (Bal)  ---- 30,000 1,60,000 

  2,60,000 3,60,000 3,80,000   2,60,000 3,60,000 3,80,000 

Note: JLP can otherwise be credited to revaluation a/c  

 

Cash and Bank A/c 

To Balance b/d 1,00,000 By  ɀÚɯCapital A/c  1,30,000 

 Joint Life Policy A/c   80,000  Balance c/d 2,40,000 

 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ  30,000    

 "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 1,60,000    

  3,70,000   3,70,000 

 

Balance sheet of M/s. B and C as on 1st April, 1995  

Liabilities    Assets   

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊÚ   Land and Buildings   2,60,000 

 B 3,50,000  Machinery   2,40,000 

 C 3,50,000 7,00,000 Closing Stock   75,000 

 ɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕɯ ɤÊ  1,30,000 Sundry Debtors 1,00,000  

Sundry Creditors    80,000 (-) Provision for Bad Debts   5,000  95,000 

   Cash and Bank Balances  2,40,000 

  9,10,000   9,10,000 
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 Working note for GW  A B C 

 Increase the goodwill (old ratio)  40,000 Cr. 60,000 Cr. 40,000 Cr. 

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  - 70,000 Dr. 70,000 Dr. 

  40,000 Cr. 10,000 Dr. 30,000 Dr.  

 

Admission c um Retirement  

Question 1: Ram, Rahim and Robert are partners, sharing Profits and Losses in the ratio of 5:3:2. It 

was decided that Robert would retire on 31.3.2005 and in his place Richard would be admitted as a 

partner with new profit sharing ratio among Ram, Rahim and Richard at 3: 2: 1. 

 

Balance Sheet of Ram, Rahim and Robert as at 31.3.2005 

Liabilities    Assets   

Capital Accounts:   Cash in hand  20,000 

 Ram  1,00,000  Cash in Bank  1,00,000 

 Rahim  1,50,000 Sundry Debtors  5,00,000 

 Robert  2,00,000 Stock in Trade  2,00,000 

General Reserve  2,00,000 Plant & Machinery   3,00,000 

Sundry Creditors   8,00,000 Land & Building   5,30,000 

Loan from Richard    2,00,000    

  16,50,000   16,50,000 

 

Retirement of Robert and admission of Richard is on the following terms:  

a. Plant & Machinery to be depreciated by 30,000. 

b. Land and Building to be valued at 6,00,000. 

c. Stock to be valued at 95% of book value. 

d. Provision for doubtful debts @ 10% to be provided on debtors. 

e. General Reserve to be apportioned amongst Ram, Rahim and Robert. 

f. 3ÏÌɯÍÐÙÔɀÚɯÎÖÖËÞÐÓÓɯÛÖɯÉÌɯÝÈÓÜÌËɯÈÛɯƖɯàÌÈÙÚɯ×ÜÙÊÏÈÚÌɯÖÍɯÛÏÌɯÈÝÌÙÈÎÌɯ×ÙÖÍÐÛÚɯÖÍɯÛÏÌɯÓÈÚÛɯƗɯàÌÈÙÚȭɯ

The relevant figures are: 

1. Year ended 31.3.2002 - Profit 50,000 

2. Year ended 31.3.2003 - Profit 60,000 

3. Year ended 31.3.2004 - Profit 55,000 

g. Out of the amount due to Robert 2,00,000 would be retained as loan by the firm and the 

balance will be settled immediately.  

h. 1ÐÊÏÈÙËɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÚÏÖÜÓËɯÉÌɯÌØÜÈÓɯÛÖɯƙƔǔɯÖÍɯÛÏÌɯÊÖÔÉÐÕÌËɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÖÍɯ1ÈÔɯÈÕËɯ1ÈÏÐÔȭ 

Prepare: (i) Capital accounts of the partners; and (ii) Balance Sheet of the reconstituted firm. 
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Answer:  

Dr. Partnersõ Capital a/c Cr. 

To Ram Rahim Robert Richard By Ram Rahim Robert Richard 

Revaluation 10,000 6,000 4,000 - Balance b/d 100,000 150,000 200,000 - 

Robertõs Loan1   200,000  General reserve 100,000 60,000 40,000 - 

Bank   58,000  Ram / Rah(WN)   22,000 - 

Rob Cap (WN)  3,667 - 18,333 Loan A/c transfer - - - 200,000 

Bal. c/d 190,000 200,333 - 195,167 Bank - - -  13,500 

 200,000 210,000 262,000 213,500  200,000 210,000 262,000 213,500 

Assumptions:  

1. Richards loan is considered as part of his capital 

2. Memorandum revaluation method is followed for goodwill treatment. Hence it is raised and 

cancelled. 

Balance Sheet as at 31.3.2005 after the admission 

Liabilities    Assets   

Capital Accounts:   Land and Building    6,00,000 

 Ram  1,90,000 Plant and Machinery   2,70,000 

 Rahim  2,00,333 Stock  1,90,000 

 Richard  1,95,167  Debtors  4,50,000 

Sundry Creditors   8,00,000 Cash at Bank1  55,500 

Loan from Robert    2,00,000 Cash in hand   20,000 

  15,85,500   15,85,500 

 

 Revaluation A/c   

Dr.  Particulars   Cr. Particulars    

To Plant and Machinery  30,000 By Land and Building   70,000 

To Stock 10,000 By /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊȯ   

To Debtors 50,000   Ram 10,000  

    Rahim 6,000  

    Robert  4,000 20,000 

  90,000    90,000 

 

1. ὋέέὨύὭὰὰ
ȟ ȟ ȟ

ς ρȟρπȟπππ 

2. Working note for GW  Ram Rahim Robert Richard 

 Increase the goodwill (old ratio)  55,000 Cr. 33,000 Cr. 22,000 Cr.  

+ Reduce the goodwill (new ratio)  55,000 Dr. 36,667 Dr.  18,333 Dr. 

   3,667 Dr. 22,000 Cr. 18,333 Dr. 

 

 
1ὕὴὩὭὲὭὲὫ ὧὥὴὭὸὥὰὙέὦί ὧὥὴὙὭὧὬί ὅὥὴ ρȟππȟπππυψȟπππρσȟυππυυȟυππ 



Death Of A Partner 9.4.1 

9.4 PARTNERSHIP ɬ DEATH  OF A PARTNER  

 

Death of a partner  

1. )ÖÜÙÕÈÓɯÌÕÛÙàɯÛÖɯÛÙÈÕÚÍÌÙɯËÌÊÌÈÚÌËɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯÚÏÈÙÌɯÖÍɯ×ÙÖÍÐÛɯÜ×ɯÛÖɯÛÏÌɯËÈÛÌɯÖÍɯËÌÈÛÏɯ 

#ÌÊÌÈÚÌËɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯÚÏÈÙÌɯÊÈÓÊÜÓÈÛÌËɯÈÚɯ×ÌÙɯÈÎÙÌÌËɯÛÌÙÔÚɯÖÙɯÉÈÚÌËɯÖÕɯ×ÙÌÝÐÖÜÚɯàÌÈÙÚɀɯ×ÙÖÍÐÛ 

P/L Suspense A/c Dr. ××××  

 3Öɯ#ÌÊÌÈÚÌËɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÈɤÊɯ   ×××× 

2. 2ÌÊÛÐÖÕɯƗƛȯɯ#ÌÓÈàɯÐÕɯÚÌÛÛÓÌÔÌÕÛɯÛÖɯÛÏÌɯËÌÊÌÈÚÌËɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯÌÚÛÈÛÌɯȹ#ÌÌËɯÐÚɯÚÐÓÌÕÛȺ 

Maximum of:  

(a) Interest @ 6% p.a. on the amount due to them  

(b) the share of profit earned for the amount due to the partner  

Conditions: The surviving partners continue to carry on the business of the firm.  

 

Question 1:  Unsettled capital of C 52,000 (Date of retirement: 30.9.08, financial year 2008-09). Net 

Profit earned by the firm after Cɀs retirement 25,000. Capitals of A: 57,000 and B 76,000) 

Answer: C is entitled 7,027: The maximum of the following:  

(a) Interest @ 6% p.a. = υςȟπππ ρȟυφπ 

(b) The profit earned  by his capital  
ȟ   ȟ

ȟ   ȟ   ȟ
χȟπςχ 

 

Question 2: A, B and C were partners of a firm sharing profits and losses in the ratio of 3:4:3. 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March,1998 

Liabilities    Assets   

Capital Accounts:   Fixed Assets  100,000 

 A 48,000  Current Assets   

 B 64,000   Stock 30,000  

 C 48,000 160,000  Debtors 60,000  

Reserves  20,000  Cash in hand 30,000 120,000 

Sundry Creditors   40,000    

  220,000   220,000 

 

The firm had taken a joint life policy for 100,000; the premium periodically paid was charged to 

Profit and Loss Account. Partner C died on 30th September 1998. It was agreed between the surviving 

partners and the legal representatives of C that: 

1. Goodwill of the firm will be taken at 60,000 

2. Fixed Assets will be written down by 20,000 

3. In lieu of profits, C should be paid at the rate of 25% p.a. on his capital as on 31-3-98,  
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Policy money was received and the legal heirs were paid off. The profits for the year ended 31-3-99, 

after charging depreciation of 10,000 (depreciation up to 30-Sep was agreed to be 6,000), were 

48,000. 

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ#ÙÈÞÐÕÎÚɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛÚɯÚÏÖÞÌËɯÉÈÓÈÕÊÌÚɯÈÚɯÜÕder:     

1.  ɀÚɯËÙÈÞÐÕÎÚɯ- 18,000 (drawn evenly over the year) 

2. !ɀÚɯËÙÈÞÐÕÎÚɯ- 24,000 (drawn evenly over the year) 

3. "ɀÚɯËÙÈÞÐÕÎÚɯ- (up-to-date of death) 20,000 

On the basis of the above figures, please indicate the entitlement of the legal heirs of C, assuming that 

they had not been paid anything other than the share in the Joint Life Policy.   

[CA inter N00]  

Answer: Determination of entitlement of legal heirs of C  

 Profits for the half year ended 31 st March, 1999:   

 Profits for the year ended 31st March, 1999 (after depreciation) 48,000  

Add  Depreciation 10,000  

 Profits before depreciation 58,000  

 Period 01.04.98- 

30.09.98 

01.10.98- 

31.03.99 

 Profit split for two half years (assumed: evenly spread)  29,000 29,000 

Less Depreciation [I half 6,000 and II half 4,000] 6,000 4,000 

 Profits 23,000 25,000 

 

Capital Accounts of partners as on 30 th September, 1998: 

 Particulars  A B C  Particulars  A B C 

To Fixed Assets  6,000 8,000 6,000 By Balance c/d 48,000 64,000 48,000 

 Drawings  9,000 12,000 20,000  Reserve* 6,000 8,000 6,000 

      Goodwill  18,000 24,000 18,000 

 "ɀÚɯ$ßÌÊÜÛÖÙɯ ɤÊ - - 52,000  P/L Appropriation*  - - 6,000 

 Balance c/d 57,000 76,000 -      

  72,000 96,000 78,000   72,000 96,000 78,000 

* (Interest on 48,000 @ 25% for 6 m) 

 

(3) Section 37 of the partnership Act : C is entitled 7,027: The maximum of the following:  

(a) Interest @ 6% p.a. = υςȟπππ ρȟυφπ 

(b) The profit earned  by his capital  
ȟ   ȟ

ȟ   ȟ   ȟ
χȟπςχ 

 

Question:  A  ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯÓÖÈÕɯÚÛÈÕËÚɯÈÛɯ30,000 after his retirement. I t has to be paid in four annual 

equal instalments and that the loan is to carry interest at 6% per annum. Pass the journal entry and 

prepare ledger for repayment of the loan. 

Answer:  
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  I Year II Year  III Year  IV Year  

  Dr.  Cr. Dr.  Cr. Dr.  Cr. Dr.  Cr. 

Interest on Loan A/c Dr. 1,800  1,350  900  450  

 3Öɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕɯ ɤÊ   1,800  1,350  900  450 

          

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕɯ ɤÊ Dr. 9,300  8,850  8,400  7,850  

 To Bank A/c   9,300  8,850  8,400  7,850 

          

P/L A/c Dr. 1,800  1,350  900  450  

 To Interest on Loan A/c   1,800  1,350  900  450 

 

1ÌÛÐÙÐÕÎɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛ 

Year Dr  Particulars   Year Cr Particulars   

1 Year To Cash χȟυππρȟψππ 9,300 1 Year By Capital Account  30,000 

  Balance c/d 22,500   Interest Account  1,800 

   31,800    31,800 

II year  Cash χȟυππρȟσυπ 8,850 II year  Balance b/d 22,500 

  Balance c/d 15,000   Interest A/c (6% on 22,500) 1,350 

   23,850    23,850 

III year   Cash 8,400 III year   Balance b/d 15,000 

  Balance c/d 7,500   Interest Account  900 

   15,900    15,900 

IV year  Cash 7,950   Balance b/d 7,500 

       450 

   7,950    7,950 

 

Additional Problems  

Question  1: Asha, Bhipasa and Chitra are partners in a partnership firm sharing profits and losses as 

8:7:5. From 1.4.09 the partners decided to change their profit sharing ratio as 5:4:1 and for that 

purpose the following adjustments were agreed upon. Balance Sheet of the firm as on 31.3.2009 was 

as under.  

 

Liabilities     Asset   

Capital a/cs    Plant &machinery   80,000 

Asha 50,000   furniture   10,000 

Bipasha 40,000   Stock   40,000 

Chitra  30,000 1,20,000  Trade Debtors  52,000  

Reserves  30,000 Less Provision  (2,000) 50,000 

!ɀÚɯÓÖÈÕɯ  20,000     

Trade Creditors  40,000     
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    Bank   30,000 

  1,20,000    1,20,000 

 

(i) Furniture and Machinery were to be depreciated and appreciated by 5% and 10% respectively. 

(ii) Provision for bad debts was to be increased by 3,000. 

(iii) P&L A/c of the firm for the year ended 31.3.10 showed a net profit of 68,700. 

(iv) A contingent liability of 10,000 was to be treated as actual liability. 

The partners decided not to alter the book values of the assets, liabilities and reserves but 

recorded the change by passing one single journal entry.  

 

You are required:  

a) To show a single journal entry adjusting the capitals of the partners as on 1-4-09, and  

b) To show the P&L A/C for the year ended 31.3.10 after considering the following adjustments:  

(i) Interest on capital at 5% 

(ii)  (ÕÛÌÙÌÚÛɯÖÕɯ!ɀÚɯÓÖÈÕɯÈÕËɯ 

(iii)  Transfer 20% of the divisible profit to the reserves after charging such reserve. 

{CMA inter D10, 10 marks} 

Answer:  

Memorandum Revaluation A/c  

 Particulars     Particulars    

To Furniture   500 By Machinery   8,000 

 Provision for Debtors   3,000  Reserves  30,000 

 Contingent Liability   10,000     

 /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤ"       

 Asha 8/20  9,800      

 Bipasha 7/20  8,575      

 Chitra 5/20  6,125 24,500     

   38,000    38,000 

 Machinery   8,000  Furniture   500 

     Provision for Debtors   3,000 

     Contingent Liability   10,000 

 Reserves  30,000  /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤ"   

     Asha 5/10  12,250  

     Bipasha 4/10  9,800  

     Chitra 1/10  2,450 24,500 

   38,000    38,000 

 

Adjustment Entry  

 ÚÏÈɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ (9,800 ɬ 12,250) Dr. 2,450  
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!Ð×ÈÚÏÈɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ (8,575 ɬ 9,800) Dr. 1,225  

 3Öɯ"ÏÐÛÙÈɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ (6,125 ɬ 2,450)   3,675 

 

Profit and Loss A/c for the year ended 31.3.2010 

 Particulars     Particulars    

To Interest on capital @ 5%   By Balance b/d  67,500 

 Asha (50,000ɬ 2,450) 2,378   (68,700 ɬ 1,200)   

 Bipasha (40,000 ɬ 1,225) 1,938   (Interest on loan @ 6%)  

 Chitra (30,000 + 3,675) 1,684 6,000     

 Reserve (61,500×20/120)  10,250     

 /ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤ"ȯ       

 Asha 5/10 25,625      

 Bipasha 4/10 20,500      

 Chitra 1/10 5,125 51,250     

   67,500    67,500 

 

Question 2: Following is the B/S of A, B & C who were the partners as on 31.3.22. 

Balance sheet as at 31.3.1922 

Liabilities   Assets  

 ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 33,600 Plant and Machinery   49,000 

!ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ  25,200 Furniture and fittings   4,800 

"ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ  12,000 Stock in Trade 22,800 

Sundry creditors  12,000 Sundry debtors 21,600 

15% Mortgage Loan  16,600 Cash on hand 1,000 

  Cash at bank  200 

 99,400  99,400 

 

They share profits and losses in the ratio of 2:2:1 on 1st April, 2022, C retired from the firm and 

claimed his share of secret reserve/profits arising out of the following.  

a. During the year ended 31.3.2022 purchase of Machinery at a cost of 10,000 was charged to 

purchase account, the erection charges of 600 being charged to machinery repairs account. 

(Depreciation is to be charged at 10% p.a.) 

b. 600 received from Mr. X on 31.3.22 towards rent of the property sublet was credited to his 

personal accounts instead of to rent account so as to reduce his debit balance from 1,000 to 400 

debit on 31.3.22. 

c. Interest on mortgage loan was paid in advance up to 31.5.22 and the whole amount was charged 

to interest account during the year ended 31.3.22. 

d. After rectifying the above errors, it was mutually decided as under:  
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1. The goodwill of the firm is valued at 5 times the average profits of the last 3 years. Such profits 

should be correct profits & not the book profits. The book profits for the last 3 financial year were: 

2019-20 18,380; 2020-21 32,000; 2021-22 ,7,471. 

2. Plant & Machinery to be depreciated by 10% and provision for bad doubtful debts to be made at 

5% on sundry debtors. 

3. The goodwill should not appear in the books.  

4. There is a liability for 501 for bill discounted. This has to be accounted for. 

5. C should be paid half of his dues in cash which shall be brought in by A and B in their profit 

ÚÏÈÙÐÕÎɯ×ÙÖ×ÖÙÛÐÖÕɯÈÕËɯÛÏÌɯÖÛÏÌÙɯÏÈÓÍɯÚÏÈÓÓɯÉÌɯÓÌÍÛɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯÉÜÚÐÕÌÚÚɯÈÚɯ"ɀÚɯÓÖÈÕɯÍÌÛÊÏÐÕÎɯÈÕɯÐÕÛÌÙÌÚÛɯ

of 18% p.a. 

Prepare Profit & Loss A/c, Revaluation A/c, Capital A/c of the partners and the Balance Sheet of 

 ȫɯ!ɯÈÍÛÌÙɯ"ɀÚɯÙetirements 

{CA inter M94}  

Answer:  

Profit and Loss Adjustment A/c  

 Particulars    Particulars   

To /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊɯȹƖȯƖȯƕȺ  By Plants and Machinery A/c  9,540 

  A  4,222  Interest on Mortgage Loan  415 

  B 4,222  Sundry Debtors A/c (Rent) 600 

  C 2,111    

  10,555   10,555 

 

Revaluation A/c  

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Provision for doubtful debts  1,110 By /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊɯȹ+ÖÚÚȺ  

 Depreciation (Plant & Machinery)  5,854  A 2,986 

 Liabilities for bills discounted  501  B 2,986 

    C 1,493 

  7,465   7,465 

 

Capital A/c 

Dr. Particulars A B C Cr. Particulars A B C 

To Revaluation A/c (loss) 2,986 2,986 1,493 By Balance b/d 33,600 25,200 12,000 

 Cõs Capital A/c ( GW) 11,401 11,401 -  P/L Adjustment A/c 4,222 4,222 2,111 

 Cash A/c - - 17,710  Aõs Capital A/c - - 11,401 

 Cõs Loan A/c - - 17,710  Bõs Capital A/c (GW) - - 11,401 

 Balance c/d 32,290 23,890 -  Cash A/c 8,855 8,855 - 

  46,677 38,277 36,913   46,677 38,277 36,913 

Cash paid 17,710 to C is out of the receipts from A and B  [ 8,855 each] 
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Balance Sheet of M/s A and B as on 1.4.2022 

Liabilities    Assets   

Capital A/c :    Plant and Machinery  58,540  

 A   32,290 Less: Depreciation 5,854 52,686 

 B  23,890 Furniture and Fittings   4,800 

"ɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕɯÈɤÊ  17,710 Stock in Trade  22,800 

15% Mortgage Loan  16,600 Sundry Debtors 22,200  

Liabilities   501 Less: Provision  1,110 21,090 

for bills discounted    Interest on Loan prepaid   415 

Creditors   12,000 Cash in hand  1,000 

   Cash at Bank  200 

  1,02,991   1,02,991 

Working Notes:  

Sundry Debtors  

1  Opening Debtors as on 31.3.1993 21,600 

 Add  Rent received from Mr. X  600 

  Adjusted Debtors  22,200 

 

Calculation of Goodwill  

2  Year Profit  

  2019-20 18,380 

  2020-21 32,000 

  2021-22 [7,471+10,555] 18,026 

  Total Profit [TP]  68,406 

  Average Profit [AP] = TP/3 22,802 

  Number of years of purchase 5 

  Goodwill = AP × 5  114,010 

 1/5 1ÌÛÐÙÐÕÎɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ2ÏÈÙÌɯÖÍɯ&6 22,802 

 

Calculation of balance of Plant and Machinery  

3  Opening Plant and Machinery  49,000 

 Add  Machinery Purchased 10,000  

 Add  Installation charge  600  

  Total 10,600  

 Less Depreciation 1,060 9,540 

  Closing Plant and Machinery  58,540 
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9.5 PARTNERSHIP ɬ DISSOLUTION  

 

Practical Problems  

1. Dissolution by single lot sale  

a. Dissolution ɬ basic 

b. Dissolution with a partner insolvent [Garner Vs. Murray Model or Deed]  

c. Dissolution with all partners insolvent (preparation of Deficiency A/c)  

2. Dissolution by piece -meal 

a. Capital proportionate method  

b. Maximum loss method  

 

Steps 

1. Open ledgers: RealisationA/c | Capita l A/c | Bank A/c  

2. Record the B/S items (once) 

a. Assets ɬ Debit side of Realisation A/c [BV]  

b. Liabilities ɬ Credit side of Realisation A/c [BV]  

c. Capital ɬ Capital A/c  

d. Accumulated P/L ɬ Capital A/c (shared in old ratio to old partners)  

3. Post the adjustment entries (twice) 

a. Sale of Assets / taken by partner / given for debt  

Bank A/c ɤɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊɤɯ+ÐÈÉÐÓÐÛÐÌÚɯ ɤÊ Dr . ×××  

 To Asset A/c [RV]   ××× 

b. Settlement of Liabilities / taken by partner / by asset 

Liabilities A/c  Dr . ×××  

 To !ÈÕÒɯ ɤÊɯɤɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊɯɤɯ ÚÚÌÛɯ ɤÊ   ××× 

c. Realisation Expenses 

RealisationA/c Dr . ×××  

 To Bank A/c (Expenses)   ××× 

4. Close the ledgers: RealisationA/c | Capita l A/c | Bank A/c  

 

Insolvency and Garner Vs. Murray Rule (insolvent partner Wilkins)  

Situation Exist : 

1. Three partners in the firm  

2. One partner is insolvent  

3. Loss in Realisation A/c 

4. No deed to share the loss of deficiency due to insolvent partner 

Judgement: 

1. Solvent partners should bring cash for realisation loss  

2. Solvent partners should share the deficiency in their capital ratio  

{CMA i nter J09, 4 marks} 
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Piecemeal Distribution:  For the distribution of amount received from gradual realization of assets 

the following two methods are used:  

(i) Highest relative capital method  or Proportionate Capital Method or Absolute Surplus Capital 

Method  

(ii)  Maximum loss method  

Priority of distribution:  

(a) Payment of expenses on realization and external liabilities. 

(b) Payment of internal debts. 

(c) Payment of Partners loan. 

(d) /ÈàÔÌÕÛɯÖÍɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓȭ 

{CMA inter D11, 5 marks}  

 

Dissolution ɬ basic 

Question 1: X, Y and Z are partners of the firm XYZ and Co., sharing Profits and Losses in the ratio of 

4:3:2.  Following is the Balance sheet of the firm as at 31st March, 2008: 

 

Liabilities   Assets  

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓÚȯ  Fixed Assets 5,00,000 

 X 4,00,000 Stock in trade 3,00,000 

 Y 3,00,000 Sundry debtors 5,00,000 

 Z 2,00,000 Cash in hand 10,000 

General Reserve 90,000   

Sundry Creditors  3,20,000   

 13,10,000  13,10,000 

 

Partners of the firm decided to dissolve the firm on the above said date. It was found that a credit 

purchase of 20,000 in January, 2008 had not been recorded in the books of the firm. 

Fixed assets realized 520,000 and book debts 440,000. 

Stocks were valued at 250,000 and it was taken over by partner Y. 

Creditors allowed discount of 5% and the expenses of realization amounted to 6,000. 

You are required to prepare: (i) Realization A/c; (ii) Partners capital A/c; and (iii) Cash account.  

{CA inter N08, 8 marks} 

Answer:  

Realization A/c  

Dr.  Particulars   Cr. Particulars   

To Fixed assets 5,00,000 By Creditors  3,20,000 

 Stock in trade 3,00,000  Cash (5,20,000+4,40,000) 9,60,000 

 Debtors 5,00,000  Y (Stock taken over) 2,50,000 

 Cash ɬ Expenses 6,000  Capital a/c (Loss)  
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 Cash ɬCreditors  3,23,000   X 44,000 

 (3,40,000x 95% )    Y 33,000 

      Z  22,000 

  16,29,000   16,29,000 

  

Partnersõ Capital A/c 

Dr. Particulars X Y Z Cr. Particulars X Y Z 

To Realization A/c 44,000 33,000 22,000 By Balance b/d 4,00,000 3,00,000 2,00,000 

 Realization A/c - 2,50,000 -  General reserve 40,000 30,000 20,000 

 Cash 3,96,000  47,000 1,98,000         

  4,40,000 3,30,000 2,20,000   4,40,000 3,30,000 2,20,000 

 

Cash A/c 

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Balance b/d 10,000 By Realization A/c (Expenses) 6,000 

 Realization A/c  9,60,000  Realization A/c (Creditors)  3,23,000 

 (Fixed assets and   X Capital A/c  3,96,000 

 book debts realized)   Y Capital A/c  47,000 

     Z Capital A/c  1,98,000 

  9,70,000   9,70,000 

 

Question 2: ASHA, REKHA, and ASHOK are partners sharing Profits and Losses in the ratio of 5:3:2 

respectively. On March 31, 2007 they decided to dissolve the partnership firm and on that date their 

Balance Sheet was as follows:  

 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital  Account :  Cash at Bank 12,000 

Asha 96,000  Debtors 50,400  

Ashok 84,000 1,80,000  PDD 2,400 48,000 

General Reserve 24,000 1ÌÒÏÈɀs Capital  12,000 

Creditors  72,000 Land & Building  96,000 

Bills Payable 24,000 Stock 54,000 

,ÙÚȭ ÚÏÖÒɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕ 12,000 Furniture  36,000 

Investment Fluctuation Fund  6,000 Bills Receivable 30,000 

  Investments 30,000 

 3,18,000  3,18,000 

 

The terms of dissolution are as follows: 
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a) 22,800 were paid to a Creditor as against only 15,600 provided for in the books of Accounts 

b) There was a bad debt of 8,400 and discount of 10% was allowed to Debtors. 

c) Bills payable were due on an average after 3 months were paid immediately  at a discount of 12% 

p.a. 

d) Investment realized 26,400; Land and Building was sold for 1,20,000, Stock realized 20% less. 

e)  ÚÏÖÒɯÈÎÙÌÌËɯÛÖɯ×Èàɯ,ÙÚȭɯ ÚÏÖÒɀÚɯÓÖÈÕɯÈÕËɯÛÖÖÒɯÖÝÌÙɯÍÜÙÕÐÛÜÙÌɯÈÛɯ33,600 

f) A rebate of 1,200 was given to Bills Receivable and Expenses of dissolution were 3,600 which 

were paid by Rekha. 

/ÙÌ×ÈÙÌɯ1ÌÈÓÐÚÈÛÐÖÕɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛȮɯ!ÈÕÒɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛɯÈÕËɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛɯÛÖɯÊÓÖÚÌɯÛÏÌɯÉÖÖÒÚɯÖÍɯÍÐÙÔȭ 

{CMA inter D07, 12 marks} 

Answer:  

Realisation A/c  

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Debtors A/c 50,400 By Provision A/c  2,400 

 Land &  BuildingA/c  96,000  Creditors A/c  72,000 

 Stock A/c 54,000  Bills Payable A/c 24,000 

 Furniture A/c  36,000  Mrs. Ashok loan A/c  12,000 

 Bills Receivable A/c 30,000  Investment Fluctuation Fund A/c  6,000 

 Investment A/c  30,000  Ashok Capital A/c   

 Cash A/c   (Furniture A/c)  33,600 

 (Creditors ) 79,200  Cash A/c  

 (Bills Payable) 23,280  (Debtors) 37,800 

 1ÌÒÏÈɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ   (Investment) 26,400 

 (Realisation Expenses) 3,600  (Land & Building ) 1,20,000 

 Ashok Capital A/c    (Stock) 43,200 

 ȹ,ÙÚȭɯ ÚÏÖÒɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕȺ 12,000  (Bills Receivable) 28,800 

    Partner Capital A/c   

    Asha 4,140  

    Ashok  2,484  

    Rekha 1,656 8,280 

  4,14,480   4,14,480 

 

Partnerõs Capital A/c 

 Particulars Asha Rekha  Ashok  Particulars Asha Rekha  Ashok 

To Balance -- 12,000 -- By Balance c/d 96,000 -- 84,000 

 Realisation A/c     General Reserve A/c 12,000 7,200 4,800 

 (Furniture)  -- 33,600  Realisation A/c  --  

 (Loss) 4,140 2,484 1,656  (Mrs. Ashokõs Loan)   12,000 
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 Cash A/c 1,03,860 -- 65,544  (Expenses)  3,600  

      Cash A/c -- 3,684 -- 

  1,08,000 14,484 1,00,800   1,08,000 14,484 1,00,800 

 

Cash A/c 

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Balance b/d 12,000 By Realisation A/c   

 Realisation A/c    (Creditors A/c)  79,200 

 (Debtors) 37,800  (Bills Payable) 23,280 

 (Investment) 26,400  AshaɀÚ Capital  1,03,860 

 (Land & Building ) 1,20,000  AshokɀÚ Capital  65,544 

 (Stock) 43,200    

 (Bills Receivable) 28,800    

 1ÌÒÏÈɀÚɯCapital A/c  3,684    

  2,71,884   2,71,884 

 

Dissolution ɬ Single Partner Insolvent  

Question 3: Neptune, Jupiter, Venus and Pluto had been carrying on business in partnership 

sharing profits and losses in the ratio of 3 : 2 : 1 : 1. They decide to dissolve the partnership on the 

basis of the following Balance Sheet as on 30th April, 2003: 

 

Liabilities    Assets   

Capital A/c    Premises  120,000 

 Neptune  100,000  Furniture   40,000 

 Jupiter 60,000 160,000 Stock  100,000 

General Reserve  56,000 Debtors  40,000 

Capital Reserve  14,000 Cash  8,000 

Sundry Creditors   20,000 Capital Overdrawn:    

Mortgage Loan  80,000  Venus 10,000  

    Pluto 12,000  22,000 

  3,30,000   3,30,000 

 

1. The assets were realised as under: 

Debtors 24,000 Stock 60,000 Furniture  16,000 Premises 90,000 

2. Expenses of dissolution amounted to 4,000. 

3. Further Creditors of 12,000 had to be met. 

4. General Reserve unlike Capital Reserve was built up by appropriation of profits.  
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8ÖÜɯÈÙÌɯÙÌØÜÐÙÌËɯÛÖɯËÙÈÞɯÜ×ɯÛÏÌɯ1ÌÈÓÐáÈÛÐÖÕɯ ɤÊȮɯ/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛÚɯÈÕËɯÛÏÌɯ"ÈÚÏɯ

Account assuming that Venus became insolvent and nothing was realised from his private estate. 

Apply the principles l aid down in Garner vs. Murray.   

Answer:   

Realization A/c  

 Particulars    Particulars    

To Sundry assets A/c  By Sundry creditors A/c   20,000 

 Premises 1,20,000  Mortgage Loan  80,000 

 Furniture  40,000  Cash A/c (assets sold):   

 Stock 1,00,000  Premises 90,000  

 Sundry Debtors  40,000  Furniture  16,000  

 Cash A/c (creditors paid)  32,000  Stock 60,000  

 Cash A/c (loan paid) 80,000  Debtors 24,000 1,90,000 

 Cash A/c (expenses) 4,000  Capital Accounts:   

     Neptune  54,000  

     Jupiter 36,000  

     Venus 18,000  

     Pluto 18,000 1,26,000 

  4,16,000    4,16,000 

       

Cash A/c 

 Particulars     Particulars   

To Balance b/d  8,000 By Realization A/c (creditors)  32,000 

 Realization A/c (assets) 1,90,000  Realization A/c (expenses) 4,000 

 Capital A/c  (Loss)   Mortgage loan 80,000 

  Neptune  54,000   Neptune's Capital A/c  1,18,857 

  Jupiter 36,000   Jupiter's Capital A/c  73,143 

  Pluto 18,000 1,08,000    

 Pluto's Capital A/c    2,000    

   3,08,000   3,08,000 

 

Partnersô Capital A/c 

Particulars Neptune Jupiter  Venus Pluto Particulars Neptune Jupiter  Venus Pluto 

To     By     

Balance b/d - - 10,000 12,000 Balance b/d 1,00,000 60,000 - - 

Realization 54,000 36,000 18,000 18,000 GR 24,000 16,000 8,000 8,000 

V's Capital 11,143 6,857 - - CR 6,000 4,000 2,000 2,000 

Cash A/c 1,18,857 73,143 - - Cash A/c 54,000 36,000 - 18,000 
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     N's Capital - - 11,143 - 

     J's Capital - - 6,857 - 

     Cash A/c - - -  2,000 

 1,84,000 1,16,000 28,000 30,000  1,84,000 1,16,000 28,000 30,000 

 

Question 4 : Dissolution of Firms (Single Partner Insolvent and Profit on Realization):  

Balance Sheet As At 31st March, 1995 

Liabilities    Assets  

Capital Accounts:  Land 50,000 

F.Kapil  200,000  Buildings  250,000 

S.Kapil 200,000  Office Equipment  125,000 

R.Dev 100,000 500,000 Computers  70,000 

Current Accounts:   Debtors 400,000 

F.Kapil  50,000  Stocks 300,000 

S.Kapil 150,000  Cash at Bank 75,000 

R.Dev 110,000 310,000 Other Current Assets 22,600 

Loan from NBFC 500,000 Current A/c   

Current Liabilit ies 70,000 B.Dev 87,400 

  1380,000  1380,000 

 

The partners have been sharing profits and losses in the ratio of 4:4:1:1. It has been agreed to dissolve 

the firm on 1.4.1995 on the basis of the following understanding: 

a. The following assets are to be adjusted to the extent indicated with respect to the book values: 

Land  200% Computers 70% Stocks 90% Buildings  120% Debtors 95% 

b. In the case of loan, the lenders are to be paid at a prepayment premium of 1%. 

c. B. Dev is insolvent and no amount is recoverable from him. His father, R. Dev however, agrees to 

bear 50% of his deficiency. The balance of the deficiency is agreed to be apportioned according to 

law. 

Assuming that th e realization of the assets and discharged of liabilities is carried out immediately 

ÚÏÖÞɯÛÏÌɯ"ÈÚÏɯ ɤÊȮɯ1ÌÈÓÐáÈÛÐÖÕɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛɯÈÕËɯÛÏÌɯ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ ÊÊÖÜÕÛÚȭ 

 

Answer: In the books of M/s Kapil and Dev  

Cash A/c (Bank Column)  

 Particular    Particular   

To Balance b/d 75,000 By Realization A/c (S. Liabilities)  5,75,000 

 Realization A/c (S. Assets) 12,46,600  /ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊÚȯ  

    F. Kapil 2,42,600 

    S.Kapil 3,42,600 
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    R.Dev 1,61,400 

  13,21,600   13,21,600 

  

Realization A/c  

 Particular     Particular    

To Land  50,000 By Current Liabilities   70,000 

 Building   2,50,000  Loan from NBFC  5,00,000 

 Office equipment   1,25,000  Cash A/c:   

 Computers  70,000   Land 1,00,000  

 Debtors  4,00,000   Buildings  3,00,000  

 Stocks  3,00,000   Office Equipment  1,25,000  

 Other Current Assets  22,600   Computers 49,000  

 Cash A/c:     Debtors 3,80,000  

  Current Liabilities  70,000    Stock 2,70,000  

  Loan from NBFC 5,05,000 5,75,000  Other current assets 22,600 12,46,600 

 /ÈÙÛÕÌÙɀÚɯ"ÜÙÙÌÕÛɯ ɤÊȯ       

 Profit on realization:        

 F.Kapil  9,600      

 S.Kapil 9,600      

 R.Dev 2,400      

 B.Dev 2,400 24,000     

   18,16,600    18,16,600 

 

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"ÜÙÙÌÕÛɯ ɤÊɯȻin thousands]  

 Particular  F.K S.K R.D B.D  Particular  F.K S.K R.D B.D 

By Balance b/d - - - 87.4 To Balance b/d 50.0 150.0 110.0 - 

 BD 59.6 159.6 112.4   Realization 9.6 9.6 2.4 2.4 

       Partnersõ Capital - - - 85.0 

  59.6 159.6 112.4 87.4   59.6 159.6 112.4 87.4 

Capital A/c  

 Current A/c  - - - 85.0  Balance b/d 200.0 200.0 100.0 - 

 BD (WN)  17.0 17.0 51 -  Current A/c  59.6 159.6 112.4  

 Cash A/c 242.6 342.6 161.4 -  FK(WN)  - - - 17.0 

       SK (WN) - - - 17.0 

       RD (WN)  - - - 51.0 

  259.6 359.6 212.4 85.0   259.6 359.6 212.4 85.0 
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WN:  

 F. Kapil  S. Kapil  R. Dev S. Dev 

First 50% of loss   42.5 Dr 42.5 Cr 

Second 50% of loss 17 Dr 17 Dr 8.5 Dr 42.5 Cr 

Total  17 Dr 17 Dr 51 Dr 85.0 Cr 

 

Dissolution ɬ All Partner Insolvent  

Question  5: A, B and C were equal partners in a firm. Their Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2015 was 

as follows: 

 

Liabilities   Assets  

 ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 1,60,000 Building  4,00,000 

"ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 1,00,000 Machinery  4,00,000 

 ɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕ 2,00,000 Furniture and Fixtures  1,60,000 

Creditors  10,00,000 Stock 1,60,000 

  Book Debts 2,00,000 

  Cash at Bank 10,000 

  !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓȹ.ÝÌÙËÙÈÞÕȺ 1,30,000 

 14,60,000  14,60,000 

 

The firm was dissolved as all the partners were declared insolvent. The assets were realized as under: 

 Particulars   

 Book Debts 45% 

Less Building  1,60,000 

 Stock 1,00,000 

 Machinery  2,00,000 

 Furniture and Fixtures  40,000 

 Realization expenses were 10,000 

Partner Private Assets ( ) Private Liabilities ( ) 

A 2,50,000 2,50,000 

B 2,00,000 1,80,000 

C 2,30,000 2,50,000 

{CMA inter J15, 12 marks} 

 

Answer:  Dissolution  

Realisation A/c  

Dr.  Particulars   Cr. Particulars    

To Building  4,00,000 By Bank   

 Machinery  4,00,000  (Book debts) 1,10,000  
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 Furniture  1,60,000  (Building ) 1,60,000  

 Stock 1,60,000  (Stock) 1,00,000  

 Book debts 2,00,000  (Machinery ) 2,00,000  

 Bank- realization exp. 10,000  (Furniture ) 40,000 6,10,000 

    Realization loss  7,20,000 

  13,30,000    13,30,000 

 

Bank A/c  

Dr.  Particulars   Cr. Particulars   

To Balance b/d 10,000 By Realization 10,000 

 Realization A/c 6,10,000  Creditors A/c (BF) 6,30,000 

 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 20,000    

  6,40,000   6,40,000 

 

Creditors A/c  

Dr.  Particulars   Cr. Particulars   

To Bank 6,30,000 By Balance b/d 10,00,000 

 Deficiency A/c(B.F) 3,70,000    

  10,00,000   10,00,000 

 

 ɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕ A/c 

Dr.  Particulars   Cr. Particulars   

To Deficiency A/c(B.F) 2,00,000 By Balance b/d 2,00,000 

  2,00,000   2,00,000 

 

 

Partnerõs Capital A/c 

Dr. Particulars A B C Cr. Particulars A B C 

          

To Balance b/d  1,30,000  By Balance b/d 1,60,000  1,00,000 

 Realization loss 2,40,000 2,40,000 2,40,000      

 (7,20,000 in 1:1:1)     Bank A/c  20,000  

      Deficiency A/c 80,000 3,50,000 1,40,000 

  2,40,000 3,70,000 2,40,000   2,40,000 3,70,000 2,40,000 

 

Deficiency A/c  

Dr.  Particulars   Cr. Particulars   

To AɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 80,000 By Creditor  3,70,000 
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 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 3,50,000   ɀÚɯLaon A/c 2,00,000 

 "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 1,40,000    

  5,70,000   5,70,000 

 

Dissolution ɬ Piecemeal Distribution  

Question  6: A, B and C are partners share profit and loss in the ratio of 5:3:2. Their capital balance of 

A, B and C as on the date of dissolution are 12,000, 3,000 and 5,000. The assets realized after paying 

liabilities as 4,000, 5,000 3,000 and 3,000 in I, II, III and IV realization. From the given information 

prepare a statement of distribution of realizable  amount  under (a) capital proportionate method (b) 

maximum loss method  

Answer:  

Capital Proportionate Method  Order of payment  Ratio  

Ratio 5 3 2   

Partners A B C   

Capital  12000 3000 5000   

Capital per share 2400 1000 2500   

Capital based on lowest share 5000 3000 2000 III ɬ A, B & C [5:3:2] 

Excess 7000 --- 3000   

Capital per share 1400  1500   

Capital based on lowest share 7000  2800 II ɬ A &  C [5:2] 

Excess --  200 I ɬ C only  Full  

 

Cash Distribution under Capital Proportionate Method  

Partners  A  B C 

Opening Balance  12000 3000 5000 

I Realization 4000 200   200 

 3800 2714  1086 

Balance after I Realization  9286 3000 3714 

II Realization ɬ 5000 [A and C 5:2 Ratio]  3571 --- 1429 

Balance after II Realization  5715 3000 2285 

III Realization ɬ 3000 [A, and C] 1000 715  285 

[A, B and C] 2000 1000 600 400 

Balance after III Realization  4000 2400 1600 

IV Realization ɬ 3000  1500 900 600 

Deficiency   2500 1500 1000 
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Maximum Loss Method  

  Total  A  B C 

 Capital  20000 12000 3000 5000 

 Maximum loss after I Realization (20,000 ɬ 4,000) 

(distributed in profit and loss ratio)  

16000 8000 4800 3200 

  4000 4000 -1800 1800 

Ⱦ   ËÑÜÚÛÔÌÕÛɯÖÍɯ!ɀÚɯ+ÖÚÚɯÐÕɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÙÈÛÐÖɯÛÖɯ ȫ"ɯȻƕƖȯƙȼ  -1270 1800 -530 

 Cash Paid out of I Realization 4000 2730 -- 1270 

 Balance after I Realization 16000 9270 3000 3730 

 Maximum Loss after II Realization (16,000 ɬ 5,000) 11000 5500 3300 2200 

  5000 3770 -300 1530 

  ËÑÜÚÛÔÌÕÛɯÖÍɯ!ɀÚɯ+ÖÚÚɯÐÕɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ1ÈÛÐÖ 300 -211 300 -89 

 Cash Paid out of II Realization 5000 3559 -- 1441 

 Balance after II Realization 11000 5711 3000 2289 

 Maximum Loss after III Realization (11,000 ɬ 3,000) 8000 4000 2400 1600 

 Cash paid out of III Realization  3000 1711 600 689 

 Balance after III Realization 8000 4000 2400 1600 

 Maximum Loss after IV Realization (8,000 ɬ 3,000) 5000 2500 1500 1000 

 Cash Paid out of IV Realization 3000 1500 900 600 

 Deficiency  5000 2500 1500 1000 

 

Question  7:  

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities   Assets  

Creditors  2,00,000 Fixed Assets 45,00,000 

Bank Loan 5,00,000 Cash and Bank 2,00,000 

+ɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕ 10,00,000   

Capital     

L 15,00,000   

M 10,00,000   

S 5,00,000   

 Total  47,00,000  47,00,000 

 

Partners share profits equally. A firm of Chartered Accountants is retained to realise the assets and 

distribute the cash after discharge of liabilities. Their fees which are to include all expenses are fixed 

at 100,000. No loss is expected on Realization since fixed assets include valuable land and building.  
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Realizations are:  

Installments   

I [including cash]  5,00,000 

II  15,00,000 

III  15,00,000 

IV 30,00,000 

V 30,00,000 

 

The Chartered Accountant firm decided to pay off the partners in ȿ'ÐÎÏÌÙɯ1ÌÓÈÛÐÝÌɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ,ÌÛÏÖËɀȭɯ

You are required to prepare a statement showing distribution of cash with necessary workings.  

{CA inter N95}  

Answer:  

 in thousands 

Statement of Piecemeal Distribution (Higher Relative Capital method)  

 Particulars   

Avail  

Crs Bank 

Loan 

+ɀÚ 

Loan 

Capital A/c  

L M  S 

 Balance due  200 500 1000 1500 1000 500 

 Instalment I  (less liquidator fees) [500 ð 100]       

 Payment to creditors and loan [Ratio 2:5] 400 114 286 - - - - 

 Balance Due after Installment I  86 214 1000 1500 1000 500 

 Installment II  1500       

 Payment to creditors and loan 300 86 214 - - - - 

  1Ì×ÈàÔÌÕÛɯÖÍɯ+ɀÚɯ+ÖÈÕ 1000 - - 1000 - - - 

  Payment to L (WN)  200 - - - 200 - - 

 Balance due after installment II  - - - 1300 1000 500 

 Installment III  1500 - - -    

  Payment to L (WN)  300 - - - 300 - - 

  Payment to L & M (WN)  1000

 
- - - 500

 

500

 
- 

  Payment to all the partners 200 - - - 67 67 66 

 Balance due after Installment IV - - - 433 433 434 

 InstallmentIV: All partners  3000 - - - 1000 1000 1000 

 Realization profit   - - - 567 567 566 

 Installment V: All partners  3000 - - - 1000 1000 1000 

 Realization profit   - - - 1567 1567 1566 
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WN  

Capital Proportionate Method  Payment Ratio 

Partners L M  S Order   

Profit sharing ratio (i)  1 1 1   

      

Capital Balance (ii) 15,00 10,00 5,00   

Capital per share (ii/i)  15,00 10,00 5,00   

"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÙÌØÜÐÙÌËɯÛÈÒÐÕÎɯ2ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯȹÐÐÐȺ 5,00 5,00 5,00 III ɬ [L, M & S]  1:1:1 

Excess Capital (iv) = (ii) ɬ (iii)  10,00 5,00    

Excess Capital per share (iv/i) 5,00 5,00    

"È×ÐÛÈÓɯÙÌØÜÐÙÌËɯÛÈÒÐÕÎɯ,ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯȹÝȺ 5,00 5,00  II ɬ [L & M]  1:1 

Higher Relative Excess v = (iv) ɬ (iv)  5,00   I ɬ [L]  Full  

 

Question  8: A, B and C are partners sharing profits and losses in the ratio of 5:3:2. Their capitals were 

9,600, 6,000 and 8,400 respectively. After paying creditors, the liabilities and assets of the firm 

were: 

 

Liability   Assets  

Liability for loans from :   Investments  1,000 

Spouses of partners  2,000 Furniture  2,000 

Partners  1,000 Machinery  1,200 

  Stock  4,000 

 

The assets realized in full in the order in which they are listed above, B is insolvent. You are 

required to prepare a statement showing the distribution of cash as and when available, applying 

maximum possible loss procedure. 

{CA inter N99 | CMA inter D02, 8 marks}  

Answer: Statement of Distribution of Cash  

 Realization  Loan /ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓÚ 

  Spouse partners  A B C 

 Balances due 2,000 1,000 9,600 6,000 8,400 

i. Sale of investments [ 1,000] 1,000     

 Balance after investment  1,000 1,000 9,600 6,000 8,400 

ii.  Sale of furniture  [ 2,000] 1,000 1,000    

 Balance after furniture  - - 9,600 6,000 8,400 

iii.  Sale of machinery [ 1,200]      

 Maximum loss  to partners in P/L ratio 22,800 (24-1.2) 11,400 6,840 4,560 
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 Balance after loss   (1,800) (840) 3,840 

 Deficiency of A and B written off against C [CR] 1,800 840 2,640 

 Cash paid   ɬ ɬ 1,200 

 Balances in capital accounts   9,600 6,000 7,200 

iv.  Sale of stock [ 4,000]      

 Maximum loss  to partners in P/L ratio 18,800 (22.8-42) (9,400) (5,640) (3,760) 

 Amounts at credit and cash paid   200 360 3,440 

 Balances in capital accounts left unpaidɭLoss 9,400 5,640 3,760 

 

 





Partnership ς Amalgamation 9.6.1 

9.6 PARTNERSHIP  ɬ AMALGAMATION | SALE | CONVERSION  

 

Types of Practical Problems  

a. Amalgamation:  tw o or more sole proprietors or firms form  new partnership firm;  

b. Absorption:  one existing partnership firm absorbs a sole proprietorship  / firm ; 

c. Sale to a company: one existing partnership firm sold to running company  

d. Conversion:  Partnership firm converted and incorporated a company  

 

Steps 

 Methods of Purchase  

Consideration 

  Dissolution of  

Sold Business 

  Entry & B/S in  

Purchasing Business 

1 Lump-sum Method 1 Realization A/c 1 Business Purchase 

2 Net Assets Method 2 Purchase Consideration A/c 2 Recording Assets and Liabilities 

3 Net Payment Method 3 Purchaser A/c 3 Settlement of Purchase Consideration 

  4 Capital A/c 4 Balance Sheet 

 

Amalgamating sole trades and formation of firm  

Question 1:A and B carry on independent  business in provisions and their position on 31.12.2002 are 

reflected in the given Balance sheet: 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities  A B Assets A B 

Trade creditors 1,10,000  47,000 Stock-in-trade 1,70,000  98,000 

Sundry Creditors for Expenses  750  2,000 Sundry Debtors  89,000  37,000 

Bills payable  12,500  ---- Cash at bank  13,000  7,500 

Capital A/c  1,53,000  95,500 Cash in hand  987  234 

   Furniture and Fixtures   2,750  1,766 

   Investments  513  ---- 

 2,76,250 1,44,500  2,76,250 1,44,500 

 

Both of them want to form a partnership firm from 1.1.2003 on the following understanding:  

a. The capital of the partnership firm would be 3,00,000 which would be contributed by them in 

the ratio of 2:1. 

b. The assets of the individual business would be evaluated by C at which values, the firm will take 

them over and the value would be adjusted against the contribution due by A and B.  

c. C gave his valuation report as follows:  

1. Assets of A: Stock-in-trade to be written down by 15% and a portion of the sundry debtors 

amounting to 9,000 estimated unrealizable not to be assumed by the firm; furniture and 

fixtures to be valued at 2,000 and investments to be taken at market value of 1,000. 
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2. Assets of B: Stocks to be written up by 10% and sundry debtors to be admitted at 85% of their 

value; rest of the assets to be assumed at their book values. 

d. The firm is not to assume any creditors other than the dues on account of purchases made. You 

are required to pass necessary journal entries in the books of A and B.  

Also prepare the opening Balance Sheet of the firm as on 1st Jan 2003. 

{CMA inter J09, 10 marks} 

Answer:  

Realization A/c 

 Particulars A B  Particulars A B 

To  Stock  1,70,000 98,000 By  Creditors for purchases  1,10,000 47,000 

 Debtors  89,000 37,000  Creditors for expenses  750 2,000 

 Bank  1,30,000 7,500  Bill payable 12,500  

 Cash 987 234  Purchase consideration  1,18,987 101,750 

 Furniture 2,750 1,766  Capital a/c Loss 34,763  

 Investment 513 -     

 Capital a/c 750 -     

 Capital a/c [Crs. for exp] - 2000     

 Capital a/c [Profit] - 4,250     

  2,77,000 150,750   2,77,000 150,750 

 

Purchase consideration a/c 

 Particulars  A B  Particulars  A B 

To   Realization  1,18,987 1,01,750 By  AB firm  1,18,987 1,01,750 

  1,18,987 1,01,750   1,18,987 1,01,750 

 

AB Firm A/c  

 Particulars  A B  Particulars  A B 

To  Purchase consideration  1,18,987 1,01,750 By  Capital  1,18,987 1,01,750 

  1,18,987 1,01,750   1,18,987 1,01,750 

 

Capital A/c  

 Particulars  A B  Particulars  A B 

To  Purchase consideration  1,18,987 1,01,750 By  Balance b/d 1,53,000 95,500 

 Realization (Loss) 34,763   Realization Profit  750 4,250 

     Realization (Crs for exp)  2,000 

  1,53,750 1,01,750   1,53,750 1,01,750 
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 Journal Entry   A & Co   B & Co 

   Dr  Cr  Dr  Cr 

1 Realization A/c  Dr. 1,96,250   1,44,500  

 To Stock-in-trade A/c    1,70,000    98,000 

 To Sundry Debtors A/c     9,000   37,000 

 To Cash at bank A/c    13,000    7,500 

 To Cash in hand A/c    987    234 

 To Furniture & Fixture     2,750    1,766 

  To investments A/c    513   - 

        

2 Creditors for Purchases Dr. 1,10,000   47,000  

 Creditors for Expenses Dr.  750   2,000  

 Bills Payable A/c Dr.  12,500   -  

 To Realization A/c   1,23,250   49,000 

        

3 New Firm A/c (Note 1)  Dr. 1,18,987   1,01,750  

 To Realization A/c   1,18,987   1,01,750 

        

4 Realization A/c [creditors]  Dr.  750   2,000  

 To Capital A/c     750   2,000 

        

5 Capital A/c  Dr.  34,763     

 Realization A/c      4,250  

 To Realization a/c    34,763    

  To Capital A/c       4,250 

        

6 Capital in New Firm  Dr. 1,18,987   1,01,750  

 To New Firm A/c    1,18,987   1,01,750 

        

7 Capital A/c  Dr. 1,18,987   1,01,750  

 To Capital ɬ New Firm    1,18,987    

 

Balance Sheet of New Firm as on 1st January, 2003 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital Accounts:   Furniture & Fittings   3,766 

A 2,00,000 Investments  1,000 

B 1,00,000 Stock-in-trade 2,52,300 
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Creditors for purchases 1,57,000 Sundry Debtors 1,11,450 

Bills payable  12,500 Cash at bank 

( 13,000+7500+81,013-1,750) 

 99,763 

  Cash in hand ( 987+234)  1,221 

 4,69,500  4,69,500 

 

Working Notes: Calculation of Purchase Consideration  

 Particulars  A B 

 Furniture  2,000 1,766 

 Investments 1,000  --- 

 Stock-in-trade 1,44,500 1,07,800 

 Sundry Debtors 80,000 31,450 

 Cash at bank 13,000 7,500 

 Cash in hand 987 234 

  2,41,487 1,48,750 

Less Sundry Creditors for purchases 1,10,000 47,000 

 Bills payable (Assumed arising out of credit purchases) 12,500  ---- 

 Net assets taken over by the new firm  1,18,987 1,01,750 

 Capital as per agreement 2,00,000 1,00,000 

Less Net assets taken over 1,18,987 1,01,750 

 Cash to be introduced (+)/withdrawn ( -) (+)81,013 (-)1,750 

 

Amalgamation of Firms:  

Question 2: Firm X & Co. consists of partners A and B sharing Profits  and Losses in the ratio of 3:2. 

The firm Y & Co. consists of partners B and C sharing Profits and Losses in the ratio of 5:3. 

On 31st March, 2006 it was decided to amalgamate both the firms and form a new firm XY & Co., 

wherein A, B and C would be partners sharing Profits and Losses in the ratio of 4:5:1. 

 

Balance Sheet as at 31.3.2006 

Liabilities  X & Co Y & Co Assets X & Co  Y & Co 

Capital:   Cash in hand/bank 40,000 30,000 

A 1,50,000 --- Debtors 60,000 80,000 

B 1,00,000 75,000 Stock  50,000 20,000 

C --- 50,000 Vehicles --- 90,000 

Reserve 50,000 40,000 Machinery  1,20,000 --- 

Creditors  1,20,000 55,000 Building  1,50,000 --- 

 4,20,000 2,20,000  4,20,000 2,20,000 
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The following were the terms of amalgamation: 

1. Goodwill of X & Co., was valued at 75,000. Goodwill of Y & Co. was valued at 40,000. Goodwill 

a/c not to be opened in the books of the new firm but adjusted through the Capital a/c of the 

partners. 

2. Building, Machinery and Vehicles are to be taken over at 200,000, 1,00,000 and 74,000 

respectively. 

3. Provision for doubtful debts at 5,000 in respect of X & Co. and 4,000 in respect of Y & Co. are to 

be provided.  

You are required to: 

1. Show, how the Goodwill value is adjusted amongst the partners.  

2. Prepare the B/S of XY & Co. as at 31.3.2006 by keeping partnersɀ capital in their profit sharing 

ÙÈÛÐÖɯÉàɯÛÈÒÐÕÎɯÊÈ×ÐÛÈÓɯÖÍɯȿ!ɀɯÈÚɯÛÏÌɯÉÈÚÐÚȭɯ3ÏÌɯÌßÊÌÚÚɯÖÙɯËÌÍÐÊÐÌÕÊàɯÛÖɯÉÌɯÒÌ×ÛɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯÙÌÚ×ÌÊÛÐÝÌɯ

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"ÜÙÙÌÕÛɯÈɤÊȭ 

{CA inter M06}  

Answer:  

(i)  Adjustment for raising and writing off of goodwill  

 Raised in old profit sharing ratio  Total  Written off  Difference  

 X & Co. 3:2 Y & Co.5:3  in new ratio   

A. 45,000 --- 45,000 Cr. 46,000 Dr. 1,000 Dr. 

B. 30,000 25,000 55,000 Cr. 57,500 Dr. 2,500 Dr. 

C.  15,000 15,000 Cr. 11,500 Dr. 3,500 Cr. 

 75,000 40,000 1,15,000 1,15,000 Nil  

 

Balance Sheet of X Y & Co.(New firm) as on 31.3.2006 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital Accounts:  Vehicle 74,000 

 A 1,72,000 Machinery  1,00,000 

 B 2,15,000 Building  2,00,000 

 C 43,000 Stock 70,000 

Current Accounts:   Debtors 1,31,000 

 A 22,000 Cash & Bank 70,000 

 C 18,000   

Creditors  1,75,000   

 6,45,000  6,45,000 

 

Working Notes:  

1. Balance of Capital Accounts at the time of amalgamation of firms ( .) 

 X &Co. Profit and loss sharing ratio 3:2   ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ !ɀÚɯCapital  
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Balance of Capital A/c in the balance sheet of the new firm as on 31.3.2006  

 A -  B -  C -  

Balance b/d: X & Co. 1,95,000 1,30,000 -- 

  Y & Co. -- 87,500 57,500 

 1,95,000 2,17,500 57,500 

Adjustment for goodwill   (1,000)  (2,500)  3,500 

 1,94,000 2,15,000 61,000 

Total capital 430,000 (Bɀs capital as base) 

to be contributed in 4:5:1 ratio.  

 

1,72,000 

 

2,15,000 

 

43,000 

Transfer to Current Account   22,000  --- 18,000 

 

Realization A/c  

 Particulars  X & Co Y & Co  Particulars  X & Co  Y & Co 

To  Cash 40,000 30,000 By  Creditors  120,000 55,000 

 Debtors 60,000 80,000     

 Stock 50,000 20,000  Purchase Consideration 325,000 145,000 

 Machinery  120,000 -  Realization Loss   

 Building  150,000 -  !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ  12,500 

 Vehicles - 90,000  "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ  7,500 

 Realization Profit        

  ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 15,000      

 !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 10,000      

  445,000 220,000   445,000 220,000 

 

 Balance as per Balance Sheet 1,50,000 1,00,000 

 Reserves 30,000 20,000 

 Realisation profit (Building)  30,000 20,000 

 Realisation loss (Machinery) (12,000) (8,000) 

 Provision for doubtful debt.  (3,000)  (2,000) 

 Y & Co. Profit and loss sharing ratio 5:3  1,95,000 1,30,000 

  !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 

 Balance as per Balance sheet 75,000 50,000 

 Reserves 25,000 15,000 

 Revaluation (vehicle) (10,000) (6,000) 

  Provision for doubtful debts  (2,500) (1,500) 

  87,500 57,500 
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Purchase consideration a/c 

 Particulars  X & Co Y & Co  Particulars  X & Co Y & Co  

To   Realization  325,000 145,000 By  AB firm  325,000 145,000 

  325,000 145,000   325,000 145,000 

 

XY Firm A/c  

 Particulars  X & Co Y & Co  Particulars  X & Co  Y & Co 

To  Purchase consideration  325,000 145,000 By   ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ 195,000  

     !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 130,000 87,500 

     "ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ  57,500 

  325,000 145,000   325,000 145,000 

 

Capital A/c 

  X & Co Y & Co   X & Co Y & Co 

 Particulars A B B C  Particulars A B B C 

To  XY Firm 195,000 130,000 87,500 57,500 By Balance b/d 150,000 100,000 75,000 50,000 

 Realization    12,500 7,500  Reserve 30,000 20,000 25,000 15,000 

        15,000 10,000   

  195,000 130,000 100,000 65,000   195,000 130,000 100,000 65,000 

 

Conversion of Partnership Firm into Company:  

Question 3: ȿ7ɀɯÈÕËɯȿ8ɀɯÊÈÙÙàÐÕÎɯÖÕ business in partnership sharing Profits and Losses equally, 

ÞÐÚÏÌËɯÛÖɯËÐÚÚÖÓÝÌɯÛÏÌɯÍÐÙÔɯÈÕËɯÚÌÓÓɯÛÏÌɯÉÜÚÐÕÌÚÚɯÛÖɯÕÌÞÓàɯÍÖÙÔÌËɯȿ7ɀɯ+ÐÔÐÛÌËɯ"ÖÔ×ÈÕàɯÖÕɯƗƕ-3-

ƖƔƔƚȮɯÞÏÌÕɯÛÏÌɯÍÐÙÔɀÚɯ×ÖÚÐÛÐÖÕɯÞÈÚɯÈÚɯÍÖÓÓÖÞÚȯ 

 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities   Assets  

7ɀÚɯCapital  1,50,000 Land and Building  1,00,000 

8ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓ 1,00,000 Furniture  40,000 

Sundry Creditors  60,000 Stock 1,00,000 

  Debtors 66,000 

  Cash  4,000 

 3,10,000  3,10,000 

 

The arrangement with X Limited Company was as follows:  

1. Land and Building was purchased at 20% more than the book value. 

2. Furniture and stock were purchased at book values less 15%. 

3. The goodwill of the firm was valued at 40,000. 
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4. 3ÏÌɯÍÐÙÔɀÚɯËÌÉÛÖÙÚȮɯÊÈÚÏɯÈÕËɯÊÙÌËÐÛÖÙÚɯÞÌÙÌɯÕÖÛɯÛÖɯÉÌɯÛÈÒÌÕɯÖÝÌÙȮɯÉÜÛɯÛÏÌɯÊÖÔ×ÈÕàɯagreed to 

collect the book debts of the firm and discharge the creditors of the firm as an agent, for 

ÞÏÐÊÏɯÚÌÙÝÐÊÌÚȮɯÛÏÌɯÊÖÔ×ÈÕàɯÞÈÚɯÛÖɯÉÌɯ×ÈÐËɯƙǔɯÖÕɯÈÓÓɯÊÖÓÓÌÊÛÐÖÕÚɯÍÙÖÔɯÛÏÌɯÍÐÙÔɀÚɯËÌÉÛÖÙÚɯÈÕËɯ

ƗǔɯÖÕɯÊÈÚÏɯ×ÈÐËɯÛÖɯÍÐÙÔɀÚɯÊÙÌËÐÛÖÙÚȭ 

5. The purchase price was to be discharged by the company in fully paid equity shares of 10 

each at a premium of 2 per share. 

The company collected all the amounts from debtors. The creditors were paid off less by 1,000 

allowed by them as discount. The company paid the balance due to the vendors in cash. Prepare 

the Realization a/c, the Capital a/c of the partners and the Cash a/c in the books of partnership 

firm.  

{CA inter N06}  

Answer:  

Realisation A/c  

To Land & building  1,00,000 By Sundry Creditors  60,000 

 Furniture  40,000  Purchase consideration  2,79,000 

 Stock 1,00,000  Cash A/c [WN2]  1,930 

 Debtors 66,000    

 7ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊȯɯ 17,465   

 8ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊȯ 17,465   

  3,40,930   3,40,930 

 

Capital Accounts  

  X Y   X Y 

To Shares in X Ltd. Co.9 1,63,980 1,15,020 By Balance b/d 1,50,000 1,00,000 

 Cash ɬ Final Payment 3,485 2,445  Realization A/c ɬ Profit  17,465 17,465 

  1,67,465 1,17,465   1,67,465 1,17,465 

 

Cash Account  

To Balance b/d 4,000 By  ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊȯɯ×ÈàÔÌÕÛ 3,485 

 X Ltd. Co. (Drs ɬ Crs) 1,930  !ɀÚɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊȯɯ/ÈàÔÌÕÛ 2,445 

  5,930   5,930 

 

WN1 Calculation of Purchase consideration:  

 Land & Building  1,20,000 

 Furniture  34,000 

 Stock 85,000 

 Goodwill  40,000 

  2,79,000 
 

 
9 Shares distributed using final claim ratio [other way: capital ratio can be used for share distribution] 
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WN 2  Calculation: Debtors less creditors less commission   

 Amount realized from Debtors  66,000 

 Amount paid to creditors 59,000 

 Commission for debtors (5% on 66,000) 3,300 

 Commission for creditors (3% on 59,000) 1,770 

 Net amount received  1,930 

  

Sale to a Company / Conversion into company:  

Question  4: A and B were carrying on business as equal ×ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚȭɯ3ÏÌɯÍÐÙÔɀÚɯ!ÈÓÈÕÊÌɯ2ÏÌÌÛɯÈÚɯÖÕɯƗƕst 

December 2000 was as follows: 

 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital Accounts :   Fixed Assets :  

A 1,38,000 Leasehold Building  80,000 

B 1,52,000 Plant and Machinery  1,80,000 

Bank Loan 40,000 Furniture  20,000 

Current Liabilities :   Current Assets:   

Sundry Credi tors 70,000 Stock 60,000 

Bills Payable 10,000 Book Debts 68,000 

  Cash at Bank 2,000 

 4,10,000  4,10,000 

 

The business was carried on till 30th June, 2001. The partners withdrew in equal amounts half the 

amount of profits made during the period of six months (from January to June 2001) after charging 

depreciation on 

Leasehold Building  10% per annum 

Plant and Machinery  10% per annum 

Furniture  10% per annum 

Meanwhile Sundry Creditors were reduced by 15,000, Bills Payable by 2,500 and Bank Loan by 

20,000. On 30th June stock was valued at 70,000, Book Debts were 75,000 and Cash at Bank was 

2,500. On 30th June, 2001 the firm sold the business to a limited company for 4,00,000 payable in 

Equity Shares of 10 each. The partners decided to take shares in the profit sharing ratio, any 

difference to be settled in cash. 

You are required to prepare:  

1. Statement of Net Assets as on 30th June 2001; 

2. Statement of Profit earned during the period six months ended on 30.06.2001: 

3. Realisation Account; 

4. Capital Accounts of the partners.  

{CMA inter J02, 16 marks} 
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[WN1] Statement of Net Assets as on 30.06.01 

Liabilities   Assets  

Capital (Balancing Figure) 3,31,000 Lease Hold Building  76,000 

Bills Payable 7,500 Plant & Machinery  1,71,000 

Creditors (70,000 ɬ 15,000) 55,000 Furniture  19,000 

Bank loan 20,000 Stock 70,000 

  Cash at Bank 2,500 

  Debtors 75,000 

 4,13,500  4,13,500 

 

WN2   A  B Total  

 Capital opening  1,38,000 1,52,000 2,90,000 

 Net Profit  41,000 41,000 82,00010 

 Drawings  20,500 20,500 40,000 

 Closing Capital  1,58,500 1,72,500 3,31,000WN1 
 

Realisation A/c  

Particulars   Particulars   

To Lease Hold Building   76,000 By Sundry Creditors  55,000 

 Plant & Machinery   1,71,000  Bills Payable 7,500 

 Furniture   19,000  Bank Loan 20,000 

 Stock  70,000  New Co. Ltd. (PC) 4,00,000 

 Cash at Bank  2,500    

 Debtors  75,000    

 Profit       

 A  34,500     

 B 34,500 69,000    

   4,82,500   4,82,500 

 

/ÈÙÛÕÌÙÚɀɯ"È×ÐÛÈÓɯ ɤÊ 

Particulars  A B Particulars  A B 

To Equity Share in Company Ltd. 2,00,000 2,00,000 By Balance b/d 1,58,500 1,72,500 

 Cash A/c  7000  Realisation on Profit 34,500 34,500 

     Cash 7,000  

  2,00,000 2,07,000   2,00,000 2,07,000 
 

 
10 (Net Profit ï Drawings) = (Closing Capital ï Opening Capital) = 40,000 

Drawings = 0.5 Net Profit [given], hence 

Net Profit ï 0.5 Net Profit = 41,000 

Net Profit = 82,000 



Departmental accounts 10.1 

10 DEPARTMENTAL ACCOUNTS  

 

Problem Types  

1. Basic Problem 

a. Prepare Trading and P/L A/c for department wise & company as a whole  

Involves allocation or apportionment of costs to department with appropriate base  

b. Prepare consolidated B/S 

2. Problem with inter departmental transfer  

a. Transfer of stocks between the departments (reciprocal)  

b. Transfer of stock from first department to second department and so on  

Calculation:  unrealized profit on unsold stock  

ὛὸέὧὯ Ὢὶέά ὸὶὥὲίὪὩὶέὶ ὨὩὴὥὶὸάὩὲὸ

Ὕέὸὥὰ ίὸέὧὯ Ὥὲ ὸὶὥὲίὪὩὶὩὩ ὨὩὴὥὶὸάὩὲὸ
ὋὖϷ έὪ ὸὶὥὲίὪὩὶέὶ ὨὩὴὥὶὸάὩὲὸ 

3. Tricky illustration  

4. Mark up model  

 

Practical Problems  

Question 1: M/s. Star & Co. has two departments which maintain separate records. Prepare Trading 

and Profit & Loss A/c for each department and Balance Sheet for the company for the year ended 

ƗƕȭƔƗȭƖƔƕƚȭ/ÙÖÝÐËÌɯËÌ×ÙÌÊÐÈÛÐÖÕɯÖÕɯ/ÓÈÕÛɯÈÕËɯ,ÈÊÏÐÕÌÙàɯɑɯƗƗǘɯǔȮɯ!ÜÐÓËÐÕÎɯÉàɯƙǔȮɯ%ÜÙÕÐÛÜÙÌɯɑɯƕƔǔȮɯ

other un-allocated expenses to be allocated on the basis of net sales of each department. 

 

 Dept. I  Dept. II  

   

Opening Stock (01.04.2002) 1,00,000 80,000 

Purchases 9,20,000 7,60,000 

Purchase Returns 8,000 4,000 

Sales 25,32,000 19,68,000 

Sale Return 12,000 8,000 

Wages & Salaries 7,20,000 6,40,000 

Miscellaneous expenses 1,40,000 1,28,000 

Closing Stock (31.03.2003) 1,04,000 96,000 

 

General balances for the year  

        

Debtors 7,60,000 Building  4,80,000  Cash on 31.03.2016 32,000 

Creditors  6,92,000 Furniture  1,92,000  Bank on 31.03.2016 4,40,000 

Plant & Machinery  9,60,000 Sales overheads 5,12,000  Capital  20,00,000 

Land 3,20,000      

{CMA inter J04, 4+6+6=16 marks} 
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Answer: In the Books of Star Co. 

Trading and Profit and Loss Accounts for the year ended 31.03.2016 

 Particulars  Dept I  Dept II   Particulars  Dept I  Dept II  

To Opening stock 1,00,000 80,000 By Sales less return 25,20,000 19,60,000 

 Purchase less return 9,12,000 7,56,000  Closing Stock 1,04,000 96,000 

 Gross Profit 16,12,000 12,20,000     

  26,24,000 20,56,000   26,24,000 20,56,000 

 Wages & Salaries 7,20,000 6,40,000  Gross Profit 16,12,000 12,20,000 

 Misc. Expenses 1,40,000 1,28,000     

 Sales Overheads 2,88,000 2,24,000     

 Depreciation        

 Plant & Machinery  1,80,000 1,40,000     

 Building  13,500 10,500     

 Furniture  10,800 8,400     

 General P/L A/c 2,59,700 69,100     

  16,12,000 12,20,000   16,12,000 12,20,000 

Note: Sales OH &  Depreciation are allocated on the ratio of net-sales basis. [25,20,000 : 19,60,000] [9:7] 

 

Balance Sheet of M/s. Star Co. as at 31.03.2016 

 Liabilities    Assets  

 Capital  20,00,000  Land 3,20,000 

Add  Profit ɬ I 2,59,700  Building  4,56,000 

 Profit - II  69,100 23,28,800 Plant & Machinery  6,40,000 

 Creditors   6,92,000 Furniture  1,72,800 

    Stocks 2,00,000 

    Debtors 7,60,000 

    Cash and Bank 4,72,000 

   30,20,800  30,20,800 

 

Calculation of Unrealised Profit on Unsold Stock  

Question 2: X Ltd, has two departments, A and B. From the following particulars prepare the  

consolidated Trading Accounts and Departmental Trading Account for the year ending 31.12.15.  

  A( ) B ( ) 

 Opening Stock (at cost) 20,000 12,000 

 Purchases 92,000 68,000 

 Sales   1,40,000 1,12,000 
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 Wages 12,000  8,000 

 Carriage  2,000  2,000 

 Closing Stock:    

(i) Purchased goods 4,500  6,000 

(ii)  Finished goods 24,000 14,000 

 Purchased goods transferred:   

 By B to A 10,000  

 By A to B  8,000 

 Finished goods transferred:    

 By A to B 35,000  

 By B to A  40,000 

 Return of finished goods:    

 By A to B 10,000  

 By B to A   7,000 

 

You are informed that purchased goods have been transferred mutually at their respective 

departmental purchases cost and finished goods at departmental market price and that 20% of the 

finished stock (closing) at each department represented finished goods received from the other 

department.  

{CA inter M86}  

Answer:  

Departmental Trading A/c for the year ended 31st March Dec, 2015. X Ltd 

 Particular Dept. A Dept. B Total  Particular Dept. A Dept. B Total 

To Op Stock 20,000 12,000 32,000 By Sales 1,40,000 1,12,000 2,52,000 

 Purchases 92,000 68,000 1,60,000  RM Transferred 8,000 10,000  

 Wages 12,000 8,000 20,000  F.G. Transferred 35,000 40,000  

 Carriage 2,000 2,000 4,000  Return of F.G. 10,000 7,000  

 RM transferred 10,000 8,000   Closing Stock:    

 F.G. Transferred 40,000 35,000   Raw Material  4,500 6,000 10,500 

 Return of F.G. 7,000 10,000   Finished goods 24,000 14,000 38,000 

 Gross Profit 38,500 46,000       

  2,21,500 1,89,000 3,00,500   2,21,500 1,89,000 3,00,500 

 

Consolidated A/c  

 Particular    Particular   

To Stock Reserve A 1,555 By Gross Profit A  38,500 
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 Stock Reserve B 642  Gross Profit B 46,000 

 Net Gross Profit c/d  82,303    

  84,500   84,500 

 

 Working Notes  Dept A  Dept B  

 Sales 1,40,000 1,12,000 

Add  Transfer 35,000 40,000 

  1,75,000 1,52,000 

Less Return 7,000 10,000 

[a] Net sales plus transfer  1,68,000 1,42,000 

[b]  Gross Profit 38,500 46,000 

[c] Rate of gross Profit [c] = [b]/[a]% 22.92%  32.39% 

[d]  Closing stock of Finished Goods 24,000 14,000 

[e] Closing stock out of transfer [20%] 4,800 2,800 

[f]  Unrealized profit % included  32.39% 22.92% 

[g]  Unrealized Profit [e]×[f]  1,555 642 

 

Question 3: FGH Ltd. has three departments I, J and K. The following information is provided  for 

the year ended 31.3.2016: 

 

 I  J K 

    

Opening stock 5,000 8,000 19,000 

Opening reserve for unrealised profit  ɮ 2,000 3,000 

Materials consumed 16,000 20,000 ɮ 

Direct labour  9,000 10,000 ɮ 

Closing stock 5,000 20,000 5,000 

Sales ɮ ɮ 80,000 

Area occupied (sq. mtr.) 2,500 1,500 1,000 

Number of employees 30 20 10 

 

Stocks of each department are valued at costs to the department concerned. Stocks of I are 

transferred to J at cost plus 20% and stocks of J are transferred to K at a gross profit of 20% on 

sales. Other common expenses are salaries and staff welfare 18,000, rent 6,000. 

Prepare Departmental Trading, Profit and Loss Account for the year ending 31.3.2016. 

{CA inter N04, 10 marks}  
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Answer:  

FGH Ltd. - Departmental Trading and P/L A/c for the year ended 31st March, 2016 

To I J K Total By I J K Total 

          

Op. stock 5,000 8,000 19,000 32,000 Sales   80,000 80,000 

Material 16,000 20,000  36,000      

Direct labour 9,000 10,000  19,000      

Inter-dept. tr.  30,000 60,000 90,000 Inter-dept. tr. 30,000 60,000  90,000 

GP [Note1]  5,000 12,000  6,000  23,000 Cl. Stock 5,000 20,000 5,000 30,000 

 35,000 80,000 85,000 2,00,000  35,000 80,000 85,000 2,00,000 

Salaries 9,000 6,000 3,000 18,000 Gross profit 5,000 12,000 6,000 23,000 

Rent 3,000 1,800 1,200 6,000      

Net profit   4,200 1,800  6,000 Net loss 7,000   7,000 

 12,000 12,000 6,000 30,000  12,000 12,000 6,000 30,000 

 

General P/L a/c 

To Net loss (I)  7,000 By Stock reserve b/d (J + K) 5,000 

 Stock reserve [note 2] 3,000  Net profit (J + K) 6,000 

 Balance Transferred to B/S 1,000    

  11,000   11,000 

 

Note1: Calculation of Gross Profit and Transfer Price:  

  Dept. I  Dept. J 

      

 Material Consumed   16,000  20,000 

Add  Direct Labour   9,000  10,000 

Add  Received from Transfers  -  30,000 

 Cost of Production   25,000  60,000 

Add  Opening Stock of Finished Goods  5,000  8,000 

 Cost of Goods Available for Sale  30,000  68,000 

Less Closing Stock of Finished Goods  5,000  20,000 

 Cost of Goods Transferred 100 25,000 80 48,000 

 Profit  20 5,000 20 12,000 

 Transfer Price  120 30,000 100 60,000 

Note 2: Calculation of unrealized profit on closing stock  

ὛὸέὧὯ Ὢὶέά ὸὶὥὲίὪὩὶέὶ ὨὩὴὥὶὸάὩὲὸ

Ὕέὸὥὰ ίὸέὧὯ Ὥὲ ὸὶὥὲίὪὩὶὩὩ ὨὩὴὥὶὸάὩὲὸ
ὋὖϷ έὪ ὸὶὥὲίὪὩὶέὶ ὨὩὴὥὶὸάὩὲὸ 
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1 /ÙÖÍÐÛɯÖÍɯ#Ì×Ûɯ(ɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯ2ÛÖÊÒɀÚɯÖÍɯ#Ì×Ûɯ) 
ςπȟπππ

σπȟπππ

φπȟπππ

ςπ

ρςπ
 

 1,667 

2 Profit of Dep t )ɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯ2ÛÖÊÒɀÚɯÖÍɯDept K 
υȟπππ

φπȟπππ

φπȟπππ

ςπ

ρππ
 

1,000  

 /ÙÖÍÐÛɯÖÍɯ#Ì×Ûɯ(ɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯ2ÛÖÊÒɀÚɯÖÍɯ#Ì×Ûɯ* 
υȟπππ ɀ ρȟπππ

σπȟπππ

φπȟπππ

ςπ

ρςπ
 

333 1,333 

 Total unrealized profit   3,000 3,000 

 

Question 4: Mr. D is earning uniform rate of gross profit in all three departments he is handling. 

Following are the relevant details  

 

Particulars  Department  Cartons Amount  

Purchases G 15,000 The total cost of purchases 

amounted to 600000. M 20,000 

N 15,000 

Sales G 16,000 20 per carton 

M 22,000 15 per carton 

N 17,000 10 per carton 

Opening stock G 4,000  

M 5,000  

N 4,000  

 

 You are required to prepare 

 The Trading account for the three departments in columnar form.  

 Also show the workings in respect of the following:  

1 Gross profit (%) assuming that there is no stock situation. 

2 Department wise purchase price value and 

3 Valuation of opening and closing stock.  

{CMA inter J12 & J13, 7~8 marks} 

Answer: Closing Stock = Opening stock + Purchases - Sales. 

Department G 3000 Units  

Department M  3000 Units  

Department N  2000 Units  

 

Purchase price is not available individually for departments G,M and N, but it is given that gross 

profit rate is uniform. Gross Profit margin can be fo und by calculating sale value of purchased units 
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 Department G 300,000 

 Department M  300,000 

 Department N  150,000 

 Total  750,000 

Less Purchases (cost) 600,000 

 Profit  150,000 

 
ὖὶέὪὭὸ ὓὥὶὫὭὲ  

ὖὶέὪὭὸ

ὛὥὰὩί
Ϸ 

20% 

 

Department  Selling Price  Margin 20%  Cost 

G 20 4 16 

M 15 3 12 

N 10 2 8 

 
 

Opening Stock  Purchases Sales Closing Stock  

Department G 64,000 240,000 320,000 48,000 

Department M  60,000 240,000 330,000 36,000 

Department N  32,000 120,000 170,000 16,000 

 

Departmental Trading Account:  

 Particulars D M G  Particulars D M G 

To Opening Stock 64,000 60,000 32,000 By Sales 320,000 330,000 170,000 

 Purchases 240,000 240,000 120,000  Closing Stock 48,000 36,000 16,000 

 Gross Profit 64,000 66,000 34,000          

   368,000 366,000 186,000    368,000 366,000 186,000 

 

Finding correct profit  

Question 5 : Department P sells goods to Department S at a profit of 25% on cost and to Department Q 

at a profit of 15% on cost. Department S sells goods to P and Q at a profit of 20% and 30% on sales 

respectively. Department Q sells goods to P and S at 20% and 10% profit on cost respectively. 

Departmental Managers are entitled to 10% commission on net profit subject to unrealised profit on 

departmental sales being eliminated. Departmental profits after  ÊÏÈÙÎÐÕÎɯ,ÈÕÈÎÌÙɀÚɯÊÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕȮɯÉÜÛɯ

before adjustment of unrealised profits are as below: 

 

Particulars   

Department P 90,000 

Department S 60,000 
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Department Q 45,000 

Stock lying at different Departments at the end of the year are as below; 

 Figures in  

 Departments  

Particulars  P S Q 

Transfer from P - 18,000 14,000 

Transfer from S 48,000 - 38,000 

Transfer from Q 12,000 8,000 - 

%ÐÕËɯÖÜÛɯÊÖÙÙÌÊÛɯ#Ì×ÈÙÛÔÌÕÛÈÓɯ/ÙÖÍÐÛÚɯÈÍÛÌÙɯÊÏÈÙÎÐÕÎɯ,ÈÕÈÎÌÙÚɀɯ"ÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕȭ 

Answer:  

Calculation of correct Departmental Profits  

 Particulars  Dept . P ( ) Dept . S ( ) Dept . Q ( ) 

 /ÙÖÍÐÛɯÈÍÛÌÙɯÊÏÈÙÎÐÕÎɯ,ÈÕÈÎÌÙɀÚɯ"ÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕ 90,000 60,000 45,000 

Add  ,ÈÕÈÎÌÙɀÚɯ"ÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕɯȹƕɤƝȺ 10,000 6,667 5,000 

  1,00,000 66,667 50,000 

Less Unrealised profit on Stock (WN) (5,426) (21,000) (2,727) 

 /ÙÖÍÐÛɯ!ÌÍÖÙÌɯ,ÈÕÈÎÌÙɀÚɯ"ÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕ 94,574 45,667 47,273 

Less ,ÈÕÈÎÌÙɀÚɯ"ÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕɯƕƔǔ (9,457) (4,567) (4,727) 

 "ÖÙÙÌÊÛɯ/ÙÖÍÐÛɯÈÍÛÌÙɯ,ÈÕÈÎÌÙɀÚɯ"ÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕ 85,117 41,100 42,546 

 

Working Notes:  

Unrealised Profit of Department P( ) Department S( ) Department Q( ) Total () 

Department P - ςυ

ρςυ
ρψȟπππσȟφππ 

ρυ

ρρυ
ρτȟπππρȟψςφ 

5,426 

Department S ςπ

ρππ
τψȟπππωȟφππ 

- σπ

ρππ
σψȟπππρρȟτππ  

21,00 

Department Q ςπ

ρςπ
ρςȟπππςȟπππ 

ρπ

ρρπ
ψȟπππχςχ 

- 2,727 

 

Mark up and Mark down Concept  

Question 6: Southern Store Ltd, is a retail store operating two departments. The company maintains a 

memorandum stock account and memorandum markup account for each of the departments. 

Supplies issued to the departments are debited to the memorandum stock account to the department 

at cost plus the mark-up, and departmental sales are credited to this account. The mark up on 

supplies issued to the departments is credited to the mark-up account for the department. When it is 

necessary to reduce the selling price below the normal selling price, i.e., cost plus mark-up, the 

reduction (mark down) is entered in the memorandum stock account and in the mark -up account. 

Department Y has a markup of 33-1/3% on cost, and Department Z 50% on cost. 

The following information has been extracted from the records of Southern Store Ltd, for the year 

ended 31st December, 2015: 
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 Dept Y ( )  Dept Z ( ) 

Stock, 1st January, 2015 at cost 24,000 36,000 

Purchases  1,62,000  1,90,000 

Sales  2,10,000  2,85,000 

 

1. The stock of Department Y at 1st January 2015 includes goods on which the selling price has been 

marked down by 510.These goods were sold in January 2015 at the reduced price. 

2. Certain goods purchased in 2015 for 2,700 for department Y, were transferred during the year to 

Department Z, and sold for 4,050.Purchase and sale are recorded in the purchases of department 

Y and the sales of department Z respectively, but no entries in respect of the transfer have been 

made. 

3. Goods purchased in 2015 were marked down as follows: 

 Dept Y ( ) Dept Z ( ) 

Cost 8,000 21,000 

Mark down  800 4,100 

At the end of the year there were some items in the stock of department Z, which had been 

marked down to 2,300. With this exception all goods marked down in 2015 were sold during the 

year at the reduced prices. 

4. During stock taking at 31 st December 2015 goods which had cost 240 were found to be missing in 

the department Y.It was determined that the loss should be regarded as irrecoverable. 

5. The closing stocks in both departments are to be valued at cost for the purpose of the annual 

accounts. 

You are requested to prepare for each department for the year ended 31.12.2015: trading Account, 

Memorandum Stock Account and a memorandum Mark -up Account.  

{CA inter M89}  

Answer:  

Southern Stores Ltd. Trading A/c for the year ended 31 st Dec, 2015 ( ) 

 Particular  Dept Y  Dept Z   Particular  Dept Y  Dept Z  

To Opening stock at cost 24,000 36,000 By Sales 2,10,000 2,85,000 

 Purchases 1,62,000 1,90,000  Transfer: Dept. Z 2,700 - 

 Transfer from Dept. Y  -  2,700  Goods lost 240 - 

 Gross Profit  51,518 92,496  Closing stock at cost  24,578 36,196 

  2,37,518 3,21,196   2,37,518 3,21,196 

 

Memorandum Stock A/c () 

 Particular Dept Y Dept Z  Particular Dept Y Dept Z 

To Balance b/d 32,000 54,000 By Balance b/d 510  
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 Purchases [at sale price] 2,16,000 2,85,000  Sales 2,10,000 2,85,000 

 Transfer  2,700  Transfer 2,700 - 

 Memorandum Mark up  1,350  Loss of Stock [at sale value] 320  

 Memorandum Mark up 

 

 1344  Memorandum Markup A/c 

(On transfer) 

900  

 (On marked down goods 

still in stock) 

   Memorandum Markup A/c 

(marked down) 

800 4,100 

     Balance c/d (cl. stock) 32,770 54,294 

  2,48,000 3,43,394   2,48,000 3,43,394 

 

Memorandum mark-up A/c 

 Particular  Y Z  Particular  Y Z 

To Balance b/d 510 - By Balance b/d 8,000 18,000 

 Memorandum stock A/c  

(on transfer) 

900 -  Memorandum Stock A/c  

(Mark-up on purchased) 

54,000 95,000 

 Memorandum stock a/c  

(Mark-down) 

800 4,100  Memorandum stock A/c  

(Mark-up on transfer) 

- 1,350 

 Memorandum stock A/c  

(mark-down on good lost) 

80 -  Memorandum stock A/c  

(Marked down on stock) 

- 1344 

 Balance c/d 8,192 18,098     

 To Gross Profit  51,518 92,496     

  62,000 1,14,694   62,000 1,14,694 

 

Working Notes  

Calculation of marked down value on unsold stock of Dept Z  

 Total  Cl. Stock  

Cost of marked down goods  21,000  

Mark up [cost plus 50%] 10,500  

Normal Sale Price 31,500  

Marked down  4,100 1344 

Revised Sale Price 27,400 2,300 

1ὟὲίέὰὨ ίὸέὧὯ ὥὸ άὥὶὯὩὨ Ὠέύὲ ὺὥὰόὩ  
    

   
 ςȟσππ 

ȟ

ȟ
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11 BRANCH ACCOUNTS  

 

Types of branches and accounting  

ü Dependent branch:  whole of the branch controlled by head office  

 Accounting for Dependent Branch  Cost Price Invoice Price 

1 Debtors System Ȅ Ȅ 

2 Stock and Debtors System Ȅ Ȅ 

3 Memorandum Trading and P/L System  Ȅ Ȅ 

 

ü Independent branch : Branch maintains independent accounting records 

1. Local branch 

2. Foreign branch 

{CMA inter D02, D04 & D12, 2~5 marks} 

 

Practical Problems  

Debtors System/  Stock and Debtors System  

Question 1: Widespread Ltd. invoices goods to its branch at cost plus 20%. The branch sells goods for 

cash as well as on credit. The branch meets its expenses out of cash collected from its debtors and cash 

sales and remits the balance of cash to head office after withholding 10,000 necessary for meeting 

immediate requirements of cash. On 31st March, 2012 the assets at the branch were as follows: 

 

 ȹȿƔƔƔȺ 

Cash in Hand 10 

Trade Debtors 384 

Stock, at Invoice Price 1,080 

Furniture and Fittings  500 

 

During the accounting year ended 31st March, 2013 the invoice price of goods dispatched by the head 

office to the branch amounted to 1 crore 32 lakhs. Out of the goods received by it, the branch sent 

back to head office goods invoiced at 72,000. Other transactions at the branch during the year were 

as follows: 

 

 ȹȿƔƔƔȺ 

Cash Sales 9,700 

Credit Sales  3,140 

Cash collected by Branch from Credit Customers 2,842 

Cash Discount allowed to Debtors 58 

Returns by Customers 102 

Bad Debts written off  37 

Expenses paid by Branch 842 
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On 1stJanuary, 2013 the branch purchased new furniture for 1 lakh for which payment was made by 

head office through a cheque. 

On 31st March, 2013 branch expenses amounting to 6,000 were outstanding and cash in hand was 

again 10,000. Furniture is subject to depreciation @ 16% per annum on diminishing balance method. 

Prepare Branch Account in the books of head office for the year ended 31.3.2013.  

{CA inter M01}  

Answer: Debtors Method  

In the Books of Head Office  

Branch A/c 

To Debit   By Credit   

 Balance b/d (Branch Assets)   Balance b/d (Branch Liabilities)   

 Cash in hand 10    

 Trade debtors 384    

 Stock 1,080    

 Furniture and fittings  500    

 HO to BO    BO to HO   

 Goods sent to branch A/c 13,200  Goods sent to branch A/c 72 

 Bank A/c (Payment for furniture)  100  Bank (Remittance by BO)  11,700 

 Unloading on    Unloading on   

 Goods return 12  Goods sent 2,200 

 Closing stock 245  Opening stock 180 

 Balance c/d (Branch Liabilities)    Balance c/d (Branch Assets)  

 Outstanding expenses 6  Cash in hand 10 

    Trade debtors 485 

    Stock 1,470 

    Furniture and fittings  516 

 Profit and L oss A/c (Net Profit)  1,096    

  16,633   16,633 

 

WN1: Branch Stock A/c  

To Opening Balance 1080 By Branch Cash (Sales) 9700 

  Goods Sent to HO 13200  Goods returned by BO 72 

  Sales Return 102  Branch Debtors 3140 

    Closing Balance 1470 

  14382   14382 

WN2: Branch Debtors  

To Balance b/d 384 By Branch Cash 2842 

To Branch Stock 3140  Branch expenses [Discount] 58 

    Branch Stock [Return] 102 
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    Branch Expenses [Bad Debt] 37 

    Balance c/d 485 

  3,524   3,524 

WN3: Branch Cash to Calculate Remittance to HO  

To Balance b/d 10 By Expenses 842 

 Sales 9700  Remittance branch 11700 

 Cash 2842  Balance c/d 10 

  12,552   12,552 

WN4: Branch Furniture  

To Opening Balance 500 By Depreciation (80 + 4) 84 

 Bank 100  Balance c/d 516 

  600   600 

 

WN5: Invoice Price and Cost Price Calculation  

 Let Cost be  100 5 

Less Profit on cost 20 1 

 Invoice Price 120 6 

 

Answer: under Stock and Debtors Method:  

Branch Stock A/c  

To Opening Balance 1080 By Branch Cash (Sales) 9700 

  Goods Sent to HO 13200  Goods returned by BO 72 

  Sales Return 102 By Branch Debtors 3140 

    Closing Balance 1470 

  14382   14382 

Branch Adjustment  

To Closing Stock 245 By Opening Stock(loading)  180 

To Gross Profit 2123 By Goods Sent (consignment) 2188 

  2368   2368 

Branch Debtors  

To Balance 384 By Branch Cash 2842 

To Branch Stock 3140  Branch expenses [Discount] 58 

    Branch Stock [Return] 102 

    Branch Expenses [Bad Debt] 37 

    Balance C/d 485 

  3,524   3,524 
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Branch Cash 

To Balance 10 By Exp 842 

 Sales 9700  Remittance branch 11700 

 Cash 2842  Balance c/d 10 

  12,552   12,552 

Branch Expenses 

To Discount  58 By Branch Profit and Loss 1027 

 Bad Debt 37    

 Expenses 842    

 Outstanding Expenses 6    

 Depreciation 84    

  1027   1027 

Branch Furniture  

To Opening Balance 500 By Depreciation (80 + 4) 84 

 Bank 100  Balancec/d 516 

  600   600 

Branch Profit and Loss  

To Branch Expenses 1027 By Branch Adjustment a/c (GP) 2123 

 Net Profit  1096    

  2123   2123 

 

Under Double Column Method  

Branch Account 

 Particulars  CP IP  Particulars  CP IP 

To  Opening Balance 900 1080 By Branch Cash (Sales) 9700 9700 

  Goods Sent to HO 11,000 13200  Branch Debtors 3140 3140 

  Sales Return 102 102  Goods returned by BO 60 72 

 Gross Profit 2,123   Closing Balance 1,225 1470 

  14,125 14,382   14,125 14,382 

 

Memorandum Trading and P/L Method  

Trading and Profit and Loss A/c  

To Opening Stock 1,080 By Sales  

  Goods Sent 13,200   Cash 9,700 

  Sales Return 102   Credit  3,140 
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    Goods returned 72 

    Closing Stock [BF] 1,470 

  14,382   14,382 

 Unload the reserve   Unload the reserve   

 Closing Stock 245  Opening Stock 180 

 Goods return 12  Goods sent 2,200 

 Gross Profit 2,123    

  2,380   2,380 

To Discount  58 By Gross Profit 2,123 

 Bad Debt 37    

 Expenses 842    

 Outstanding Expenses 6    

 Depreciation 84    

 Net profit  1,096    

  2,123   2123 

 

Treatment of abnormal losses in Branch Account.  

Stock and Debtors System  

Branch Adjustment A/c [up to the loading]  Dr . ×××  

Branch P/L A/c [profit beyond loading]  Dr . ×××  

 To Branch Stock A/c   ××× 

Note:  4ÕËÌÙɯËÌÉÛÖÙÚɀɯÚàÚÛÌÔȮɯÈÉÕÖÙÔÈÓɯÓÖÚÚɯÐÚɯÕÖÛɯÙÌÊÖÙËÌËȭ 

{CMA inter D08, 5 marks}  

 

Stock and Debtors System  

Question 2: Concept & Co., with its Head Office at Mumbai has a branch at Nagpur. Goods are 

invoiced to the Branch at cost plus 33 1/3%. The following information is given in respect of the 

branch for the year ended 31st March, 2013: 

 

  

Goods sent to Branch (Invoice Price) 4,80,000 

Stock at Branch on 1.4.2012 (Invoice Price) 24,000 

Cash sales 1,80,000 

Return of goods by customers to the Branch 6,000 

Branch expenses (paid in cash) 53,500 

Branch debtors balance on 1.4.2012 30,000 

Bad debts 1,500 
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!ÙÈÕÊÏɯËÌÉÛÖÙÚɀɯÊÏÌØÜÌÚɯÙÌÛÜÙÕÌËɯËÐÚÏÖÕÖÜÙÌË 5,000 

Collection from Debtors  2,70,000 

Stock at Branch on 31.3.2013 (Invoice Price) 48,000 

Branch debtors balance on 31.3.2013 36,500 

Discount allowed  1,000 

 

Prepare, under the Stock and Debtors system, the following Ledger Accounts in the books of the 

Head Office: 

1. Nagpur Branch Stock Account  

2. Nagpur Branch Debtors Account 

3. Nagpur Branch Adjustment Account.  

Also compute shortage of Stock at Branch, if any. 

{CA inter M06}  

Answer: Stock and Debtors System  

In the books of head office: Nagpur Branch Stock Account  

 Debit    Credit   

To Balance b/d 24,000 By Bank A/c (Cash Sales) 1,80,000 

 Goods sent   Branch 4,80,000  Branch Debtors (Credit Sales) 2,80,000 

 Branch Debtors  6,000  Stock shortage [Balance]  

    Branch P/L a/c 1500  

    Branch Adjustment a/c 500 2,000 

    Balance c/d 48,000 

  5,10,000   5,10,000 

Nagpur Branch Debtors Account  

 Balance b/d 30,000  Bank A/c (Collection)  2,70,000 

 Bank (dishonour of cheques) 5,000  Branch Stock A/c11 6,000 

 Branch Stock A/c [Balance]12 2,80,000  Bad debts 1,500 

    Discount allowed  1,000 

    Balance c/d  36,500 

  3,15,000   3,15,000 

Nagpur Branch Adjustment Account  

 Branch Stock (loading of loss)  

[Balance] 

500  Stock Reserve A/c 6,000 

 Stock Reserve13 12,000  Goods sent to Branch A/c14 1,20,000 

 Gross Profit c/d15 1,13,500    

  1,26,000   1,26,000 

 
11Loading on opening stock = 24,000 ³ 25% = 6,000 
12The balancing figure of Branch Debtors Account is taken as credit sales 
13Loading on Closing Stock = 48,000 ³ 25% = 12,000 
14Loading on goods sent = 4,80,000 ³ 25% = 1,20,000 
15Gross Profit: (Total sales ï Sales Return) × ¼ = {(180,000+ 280,000)-6,000}× ¼ =113,500 
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Profit and Loss A/c  

 Branch Stock A/c (Cost of loss) 1,500   Gross Profit b/d 1,13,500 

 Branch Expenses16 56,000    

 Net Profit (General P & L A/c)  56,000    

  1,13,500   1,13,500 

 

Note: Loading is Ϸ on Cost or 25% on invoice price 

 

Memorandum Trading and P/L A/c  

Question 3:  From the following particulars, prepare a Memorandum, Trading and Profit & Loss A/c 

of Branch and also show the Branch Account as it would appear in the Head Office Books at the end 

of the year. 

Branch Cash Account 

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Balance 10,500 By Bank 59,000 

 Sundry Debtors 37,000  Petty Expenses 1,500 

 Cash Sales 22,500  Balance 9,500 

  70,000   70,000 

 

Branch Debtors Account  

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Balance 4,000 By Cash 37,000 

 Sales 60,000  Bills Receivable 2,000 

    Discount  1,000 

    Bad debts 500 

    Balance 23,500 

  64,000   64,000 

 

Branch Account  

 Particulars     Particulars    

To Balance b/d   By Balance b/d   

 Stock 5,000   Expenses outstanding  1000 

 Cash 10,500   Bank  59,000 

 Sundry Debtors 4,000   Balance  28,000 

 Prepaid Expenses 500 20,0000     

 
16Total Branch Expenses = Cash expenses + Bad debt + Discount allowed [53,500 +1,500 +1,000 =56,000] 
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 Goods Transferred  60,000     

 Sundry Expenses  8,000     

   88,000    88,000 

Closing Stock at Branch was 6,000 and Expenses outstanding were 2,000. 

{CMA inter D09, 10 marks} 

Answer:  

Memorandum Trading and Profit Account of the Branch  

For the year ended 31st March 2009 

 Particulars     Particulars    

To Opening Stock  5,000 By Sales Cash 22,500  

 Goods Transferred from HO   60,000  Credit  60,000 82,500 

 Gross Profit  23,500  Closing Stock  6,000 

   88,500    88,500 

  Petty Expenses  1,500  Gross Profit  23,500 

  Other Expenses 8,000      

 + Closing Outstanding  2,000      

 ῐ Opening Outstanding  1,000      

 + Opening Prepaid Expenses 500 9,500     

 Discounts  1,000     

 Bad Debts  500     

 Net Profit   11,000     

   23,500    23,500 

 

Branch Account  

 Particulars    Particulars   

To Balance b/d 28,000 By Balance b/d 41,000 

 Net Profit  11,000  Cash 9,500  

 Balance c/d    Debtors 23,500  

 (O/s Expenses) 2,000  Stock 6,000  

    B/R 2,000  

  41,000   41,000 
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Inter -branch transfer s: [Goods | Remittance | BR & BP]  

Goods sent to BO B by BO A as per the direction of HO  

'.ɀÚɯ!ÖÖÒ !.ɯ ɀÚɯ!ÖÖÒ !.ɯ!ɀÚɯ!ÖÖÒ 

B A/c Dr    HO A/c  Dr    Goods A/c Dr    

To A A/c      To Goods A/c     To HO A/c     

 

Question 4: Show adjustment Journal entry in the books of Head Office at the end of April, 

2013 for incorporation of inter -branch transactions assuming that only Head Office maintains 

different branch accounts in its books.  

A.  Delhi Branch:  

(1) Received goods from Mumbai ɬ 35,000 and 15,000 from Kolkata. 

(2) Sent goods to Chennai ɬ 25,000, Kolkata ɬ 20,000. 

(3) Bill Receivable received ɬ 20,000 from Chennai. 

(4) Acceptances sent to Mumbai ɬ 25,000, Kolkata ɬ 10,000. 

B. Mumbai Branch (apart from the above):  

(1) Received goods from Kolkata ɬ 15,000, Delhi ɬ 20,000. 

(2) Cash sent to Delhi ɬ 15,000, Kolkata ɬ 7,000. 

C. Chennai Branch (apart from the above):  

(1) Received goods from Kolkata ɬ 30,000. 

(2) Acceptances and Cash sent to Kolkata ɬ 20,000 and 10,000 respectively. 

D.  Kolkata Branch (apart from the above):  

(1) Sent goods to Chennai ɬ 35,000. 

(2) Paid cash to Chennai ɬ 15,000. 

(3) Acceptances sent to Chennai ɬ 15,000.  

{CA inter M96 & M03 } 

Answer:    

Journal entry in the books of Head Office  

Date Particulars   Dr.  Cr. 

30.4.03 Mumbai Branch Account  Dr . 3,000  

 Chennai Branch Account Dr . 70,000  

  To Delhi Branch Account    15,000 

  To Kolkata Branch Account    58,000 

 

  WN: Inter ɬ Branch transactions [ ɀƔƔƔȼ 

  Delhi  Mumbai  Chennai  Kolkata  

A Delhi Branch  Dr.  Cr. Dr.  Cr. Dr.  Cr. Dr.  Cr. 

(1) Received goods 50   35    15 

(2) Sent goods  45   25  20  

(3) Received Bills receivable 20     20   

(4) Sent acceptance  35 25    10  

B Mumbai Branch          

(1) Received goods  20 35     15 
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(2) Sent cash 15   22   7  

C Chennai Branch          

(1) Received goods     30   30 

(2) Sent cash and acceptances      30 30  

D Kolkata Branch          

(1) Sent goods     35   35 

(2) Sent cash     15   15 

(3) Sent acceptances     15   15 

 Balance c/d 15   3  70 58  

  100 100 60 60 120 120 125 125 

 

Reasons for disagreement of balances between balances in BO as per HO and vice versa  

 Goods in Transit 

 Cash in Transit 

 Proxy Transactions [HO by BO | BO by HO | Depreciation]  

 

 '.ɀÚɯ!ÖÖÒ  !.ɯ ɀÚɯ!ÖÖÒ 

1 Goods / Cash in transit       

 Goods / Cash in Transit   Dr    Or Goods / Cash in Transit Dr    

 To A A/c       To HO A/c     

 Proxy Transaction  

[Expenses of  BO paid by HO]  

        

2 A A/c  Dr    &  Expenses A/c Dr    

  To Bank A/c      To HO A/c     

3 [Expenses of  HO paid  by BO]          

 Expenses A/c Dr    &  HO A/c  Dr    

  To A A/c       To Bank A/c    

 

Question 5: Give Journal Entries in the books of Branch A to rectify or adjust the following:  

1. HO expenses 3,500 allocated to the Branch, but not recorded in the Branch Books. 

2. Depreciation of branch assets, whose accounts are kept by the HO not provided earlier for 

1,500. 

3. Branch paid 2,000 as salary to a H.O. Inspector, but the rupees paid has been debited by the 

Branch to Salaries account. 

4. H.O. collected 10,000 directly from a customer on behalf of the Branch, but no intimation to 

this effect has been received by the Branch. 

5. A remittance of 15,000 sent by the Branch has not yet been received by the H.O. 

6. Branch A incurred advertisement expenses of 3,000 on behalf of Branch B. 

{CA inter N04}  
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Answer:  

Journal Entries 

In the books of Branch A In the books of Head Office 

 Particulars  Dr.( ) Cr.( )  Particulars  Dr.( ) Cr.( ) 

1 Expenses a/c Dr. 3,500  1 Branch Office a/c Dr. 3,500  

 To Head office a/c   3,500  To Expenses a/c   3,500 

2 Depreciation a/c Dr. 1,500  2 Branch Office a/c Dr. 1,500  

 To Head office a/c   1,500  To Depreciation a/c   1,500 

3 Head office a/c Dr.  2,000  3 Salaries a/c Dr.  2,000  

 To Salaries a/c   2,000  To Branch Office a/c   2,000 

4 Head office a/c Dr. 10,000  4 Cash a/c Dr. 10,000  

 To Debtors a/c   10,000  To Branch Office a/c   10,000 

5 
No entry in branch books 

  5 Cash in transit a/c Dr. 15,000  

    To Branch Office a/c   15,000 

6 Head Office a/c Dr. 3,000   6 Branch B a/c Dr. 3,000   

 To Cash a/c   3,000  To Branch A a/c   3,000 

 

Question 6:  Mr. Shiv Sunder of Pune has a branch at Dibrugarh. The branch does not maintain 

separate books of accounts. The branch has the following assets and liabilities on 31st August, 2001 

and 30 September 2001: 

 

 31.08.2001 30.09.2001 

   

Stock of tea 1,80,000 1,50,000 

Advance to suppliers  5,00,000 4,50,000 

Bank balance 75,000 1,00,000 

Prepaid expenses 10,000 12,000 

Outstanding expenses 13,000 11,000 

Creditors of purchases 3,00,000 To be ascertained 

 

During the month, Dibrugarh branch  

a) Received by electronic mail transfer 10,00,000 from Pune Head Office. 

b) Purchased tea worth 12,00,000 

c) Sent tea costing 12,30,000 to Pune, freight of 80,000 being payable at the destination by the 

receiver; 

d) Spent 25,000 on office expenses; 

e) Paid 3,00,000 as advance to suppliers; 

f) Paid 6,50,000 to suppliers in settlement of outstanding dues. 

 

In addition, Mr. Shiv Sunder informs you that the Pune office had directly paid 3,50,000 to 

Dibrugarh suppliers by cheques drawn on bank accounts in Pune during the month.  
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Mr. Shiv Sunder informs you that for the purpose of accounting Dibrugarh branch is not treated as an 

outsider. He wants you to write the detailed accounts relating to transactions of the Dibrugarh 

branch, namely Dibrugarh Tea Stock A/c, Advance to Suppliers A/c, Suppliers A/c, Bank A/c and 

Branch Expenses A/c, as would appear in the books of Pune Head Office. 

{CA inter N97, 10 marks | CMA inter D01, 16 marks}  

Answer: In the Books of Pune Head Office  

Dibrugarh Tea Stock A/c  

Date Particulars   Date Particulars   

01.09.01 To Balance b/d 1,80,000 30.09.01 By Tea in Transit to Pune 12,30,000 

30.09.01  Purchases 12,00,000 30.09.01  Balance c/d 1,50,000 

   13,80,000    13,80,000 

 

Advance to Supplier A/c  

Date Particulars   Date Particulars   

01.09.01 To Balance b/d 5,00,000 30.09.01 By Suppliers adjustment (b/f)  3,50,000 

30.09.01  Dibrugarh Bank  3,00,000 30.09.01  Balance c/d 4,50,000 

   8,00,000    8,00,000 

 

Dibrugarh Suppliers A/c  

Date Particulars   Date Particulars   

03.09.01 To Advance to Supplier  3,50,000 01.09.01 By Balance b/d 3,00,000 

30.09.01  Dibrugarh Bank A/c  6,50,000 30.09.01  Tea Stock A/c 12,00,000 

30.09.01  Pune Bank A/c 3,50,000   (Purchases)  

30.09.01  Balance c/d (b/f) 1,50,000     

   15,00,000    15,00,000 

 

Dibrugarh Bank A/c  

Date Particulars   Date Particulars   

01.09.01 To Balance b/d 75,000 30.09.01 By Advance to Supplier A/c  3,00,000 

30.09.01  Pune Bank A/c 10,00,000 30.09.01  Supplier A/c  6,50,000 

      Expenses A/c 25,000 

      Balance c/d 1,00,000 

   10,75,000    10,75,000 
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Branch Expenses A/c 

Date Particulars   Date Particulars   

01.09.01 To Balance b/d 10,000 01.09.01 By Balance b/d 13,000 

30.09.01  Dibrugarh Bank  25,000 30.09.01  Branch P/L b/d  21,000 

30.09.01  Balance c/d 11,000 30.09.01  Balance c/d 12,000 

   46,000    46,000 

 

Final A/c System:  

Question 7: On 31st March, 2013 Kanpur Branch submits the following Trail Balance to its Head 

Office at Lucknow:  

 

Debit Balances in lakhs Credit Balances in lakhs 

Furniture and Equipment  18 Outstanding Expenses 3 

Depreciation on furniture  2 Goods Returned to Head Office 5 

Salaries 25 Sales 360 

Rent 10 Head Office 80 

Advertising  6   

Telephone, Postage and Stationery 3   

Sundry Office Expenses 1   

Stock on 1st April, 2012 60   

Goods Received from Head Office 288   

Debtors 20   

Cash at bank and in hand 8   

Carriage Inwards  7   

 448  448 

 

Additional Information: Stock on 31st March, 2013 was valued at 62 lakhs. On 29th March, 2013 the 

Head Office dispatched goods costing 10 lakhs to its branch. Branch did not receive these goods 

before 1st April, 2013. Hence, the figure of goods received from Head Office does not include these 

goods. Also, the head office has charged the branch 1 lakh for centralised services for which the 

branch has not passed the entry. 

You are required to: 

1. Pass Journal Entries in the books of the Branch to make the necessary adjustments 

2. Prepare Final Accounts of the Branch including Balance Sheet, and 

3. Pass Journal Entries in the books of the Head Office to incorporate the whole of the Branch Trial 

Balance.  

{CA inter M02}  
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Answer:  

Journal entry in the books of Branch Office  

Date Particulars   Dr.  Cr. 

 Goods in Transit A/c  Dr. 10  

  To Head Office A/c   10 

 Expenses A/c Dr. 1  

  To Head Office A/c   1 

 

Trading and Profit & Loss Account of the Branch for the year ended 31st March, 2013  

   in lakhs     in lakhs  

To Opening Stock  60 By Sales  360 

 Goods received from HO 288   Closing Stock  62 

 Less: Returns 5 283     

 Carriage Inwards   7     

 Gross Profit c/d  72     

   422    422 

 Salaries  25  Gross Profit b/d  72 

 Depreciation on Furniture   2     

 Rent  10     

 Advertising   6     

 Telephone, Postage & Stationery  3     

 Sundry Office Expenses  1     

 Head Office Expenses  1     

 Net Profit Transferred HO   24     

   72    72 

 

Balance Sheet as on 31stMarch, 2013 

 Liabilities  in lakhs   Assets in lakhs  

 Head Office 80   Furniture & Equipment  20  

Add  Goods in transit  10  Less Depreciation 2 18 

 Head Office    Stock in hand  62 

 Expenses 1   Goods in Transit  10 

 Net Profit  24 115  Debtors  20 

 Outstanding Expenses  3  Cash at bank and in hand  8 

   118    118 

 

Journal entry in the books of Head Office  

Particulars   Dr.  Cr. 

Branch Trading A/c  Dr  355  

 To Branch A/c   355 

[Opening stock + Goods received from HO + carriage inwards] (60+288+7) 
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Branch A/c Dr  427  

 To Branch Trading A/c    427 

[Total sales + closing stock + Goods returned to HO] [360+62+5] 

 

Branch Trading A/c  Dr  72  

 To Branch Profit and Loss A/c   72 

(Gross profit credited to Branch Profit and Loss Account)  

 

Branch Profit and Loss A/c Dr  48  

 To Branch A/c   48 

(Total of branch expenses [25+16+3+1+1+2]) 

 

Branch Profit and Loss A/c Dr  24  

 To Profit and Loss A/c   24 

(Net profit at branch credited to (general) Profit & Loss A/c)  

 

Branch Furniture & Equipment  Dr  18  

Branch Stock Dr  62  

Branch Debtors Dr  20  

Branch Cash at Bank and in Hand Dr  8  

Goods in Transit Dr  10  

 To Branch A/c   118 

(Incorporation of different assets at the branch in H.O. books) 

 

Branch A/c Dr  3  

 To Branch Outstanding Expenses   3 

(Incorporation of Branch Outstanding Expenses in H.O. books) 

 

In the Books of HO  

Branch Office A/c  

Opening Balance 91 Branch Trading A/c  355 

Branch Trading A/c  427 Branch P/L A/c 48 

Liabilities  3 Assets 118 

 521  521 

 

Final A/c System:  

Question 8: M/s Shah & Co. commenced business on 1.4.2012 with Head Office at Mumbai and a 

Branch at Chennai. Purchases were made exclusively by the Head Office, where the goods were 

processed before sale. There was no loss or wastage in processing. Only the processed goods received 

from Head Office were handled by the Branch. The goods were sent to branch at processed cost plus 
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10%. All sales [whether by Head Office or by the Branch] were at uniform gross profit of 25% on their 

respective cost 

Following is the Trial Balance as on 31.3.2013. 

 Head Office  Branch 

 Dr.  Cr. Dr.  Cr. 

Capital   3,10,000   

Drawings  55,000    

Purchases 19,69,500    

Cost of processing 50,500    

Sales  12,80,000  8,20,000 

Goods sent to Branch  9,24,000   

Administrative expenses 1,39,000  15,000  

Selling expenses 50,000  6,200  

Debtors 3,09,600  1,13,600  

Branch Current account 3,89,800    

Creditors   6,01,400  10,800 

Bank Balance 1,52,000  77,500  

Head Office Current account     2,61,500 

Goods received from H.O.    8,80,000  

 31,15,400 31,15,400 10,92,300 10,92,300 

 

Following further information is provided:  

1. Goods sent by Head Office to the Branch in March, 2013 of 44,000 were not received by the 

Branch till 2.4.2013. 

2. A remittance of 84,300 sent by the Branch to Head Office was also similarly not received up 

to 31.3.2013. 

3. Stock taking at the Branch disclosed a shortage of 20,000 (at selling price). 

4. Cost of unprocessed goods at Head Office on 31.3.2013 was 1,00,000. 

5. Prepare Trading and Profit and Loss account in columnar form and Balance Sheet of the 

business as a whole as at 31.3.2013. 

{CA inter N06}  

Answer:  

Trading and P/L A/c for the year ended 31st March, 2005 i n the Books of Shah & Co.  

Particulars  H.O. Branch Total   H.O. Branch Total  

        

Purchases 19,69,500 - 19,69,500 Sales 12,80,000 8,20,000 21,00,000 

Cost of processing 50,500 - 50,500 Goods sent to Branch 9,24,000 - - 

Goods received     Stock shortage - 16,000 16,000 

from H.O.  - 8,80,000 - Goods in transit    44,000 

Gross profit c/d  3,40,000 1,64,000 5,04,000 Closing stock:    

    Processed goods 56,000 2,08,000 2,64,000 

    Unprocessed goods  1,00,000 -  1,00,000 
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 23,60,000 10,44,000 25,24,000  23,60,000 10,44,000 25,24,000 

Admn. Expenses 1,39,000 15,000 1,54,000 Gross profit b/d  3,40,000 1,64,000 5,04,000 

Selling Expenses 50,000 6,200 56,200     

Stock shortage - 16,000 16,000     

Stock reserve 22,909 - 22,909     

Net profit  1,28,091 1,26,800 2,54,891     

 3,40,000 1,64,000 5,04,000  3,40,000 1,64,000 5,04,000 

 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2005 

 Liabilities    Assets   

 Capital  3,10,000  Debtors   

Add  Net profit  2,54,891   H.O.  3,09,600 

  5,64,891   Branch  1,13,600 

Less Drawings   55,000 5,09,891 Closing stock:   

 Creditors:    Processed goods   

  H.O. 6,01,400   H.O. 56,000  

  Branch  10,800 6,12,200  Branch 2,08,000  

     2,64,000  

    Less: Stock reserve  18,909 2,45,091 

    Unprocessed goods  1,00,000 

    Bank Balance   

     H.O.  1,52,000 

     Branch  77,500 

    Goods in transit  44,000  

    Less: Stock reserve  4,000 40,000 

    Cash in transit   84,300 

   11,22,091   11,22,091 

 

WN 1: Calculation of Closing Stock  

1 Stock at Head Office   

 Cost of goods processed (19,69,500 + 50,500 ɬ 1,00,000)  19,20,000 

Less Cost of goods sent to Branch: ωςτȟπππ  8,40,000  

 Cost of goods sold ρςȟψπȟπππ  10,24,000 18,64,000 

 Stock of processed goods with H.O.    56,000 

    

2 Stock at Branch   

 Goods received from H.O. (at invoice price)  8,80,000 

Less Invoice value of goods sold: ψςπȟπππ  6,56,000  

 Invoice value of stock shortage: ςπȟπππ   16,000 6,72,000 

 Stock at Branch at invoice price    2,08,000 
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Less Stock Reserve:ςπψȟπππ    18,909 

 Stock of processed goods with Branch (at cost)  1,89,091 

    

WN2: Stock Reserve:  

Unrealised profit on Branch stock: ςπψȟπππ  18,909 

Unrealised profit on goods in transit: ττȟπππ   4,000 

  22,909 

 

Question 9:  From the following information, prepare ɬ 

1. Reconciliation of head office a/c in branch office book and branch a/c in the head office book; and  

2. the Trading and Profit & Loss Account of the head office for the year ended 31st December, 2001. 

 

 Head Office  Branch 

   

Opening Stock 10,000 4,500 

Purchases 1,15,000 --- 

Sales 2,05,000 1,55,000 

Other Expenses 15,200 6,200 

Closing Stock 5,200 3,100 

The branch book shows the head office a/c as 9,000 (Cr) and the head office book shows the Branch 

a/c as 24,000 (Dr). The Branch receives all its supplies from the head office, which are invoiced at 

25% over cost. During the year, the head office sent invoices of 1,04,500to the Branch. The head office 

credits its sales a/c with the invoice price of the goods sent to the Branch. 

The head office billed the branch for 12,000 on 31st December, 2001 representing the bÙÈÕÊÏɀÚɯÚÏÈÙÌɯÖÍɯ

the expenses incurred by the head office. The said expenses had not been recorded in the books of the 

branch. 

The expenses of the branch are met by the head office from time to time for which cash is sent in 

advance to the branch. A sum of 3,000 sent to the branch by the head office on 29th December, 2001 in 

this connection, was received by the Branch on 3rd January, 2002. 

{CMA inter D02, 16 marks} 

Answer:  

In Branch Books Head Office A/c  

Date Particulars   Date Particulars   

31.12.01 To Balance c/d 24,000 01.01.01 By Balance b/d 9,000 

      Cash in Transit A/c 3,000 

      Branch Expenses 12,000 

   24,000    24,000 

      Balance b/d 24,000 
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In Head Office Books Branch A/c  

Date Particulars   Date Particulars   

31.12.01 To Balance b/d 24,000 31.12.01 By Balance c/d 24,000 

   24,000    24,000 

01.01.02  Balance b/d 24,000     

 

Trading and Profit & Loss Accounts  

  H.O.  Branch   H.O.  Branch 

To Opening stock 10,000 4,500 By Sales 2,05,000 1,55,000 

 Purchase 1,15,000 --  Closing Stock 5,200 3,100 

 Goods Sent to Branch -- 1,04,500     

 Goods Profit  85,200 49,100     

  2,10,200 1,58,100   2,10,200 1,58,100 

 Other Expenses 15,200 6,200  Gross Profit 85,200 49,100 

 Stock Reserve 620 --  Stock Reserve 900  

 Expenses by H.O. -- 12,000     

 Net Profit  70,280 30,900     

  86,100 49,100   86,100 49,100 

 

Foreign branch :  

 Usually accounts maintained independently  

 in the currency of the country in which they operate and 

 translated into Reporting Currency  

 

Foreign Currency Translation  

  Integral Foreign Operation  Non -Integral Foreign Operation  

1 Revenue Items 
Rate at the time of transaction 

(or average rate) 

Rate at the time of transaction 

(or average rate) 

2 B/S items   

ὥ Monetary  closing rate 

closing exchange rate  

[including contingent liability]  

ὦ Non-monetary   

 -Purchased Rate on the date of purchase 

 -Revalued Rate on the date of valuation  

ὧ Closing inventory  Closing rate 

3 Exchange difference  Charged to P/L A/c  Foreign currency translation reserve 
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Foreign Branch: [Reporting currency is ] 

Question 10: S & M Ltd., Bombay, have a branch in Sydney, Australia. At the end of 31stMarch, 2013, 

the following ledger balances have been extracted from the books of the Bombay Office and the 

Sydney Office: 

ÐÕɯȿƔƔƔ 

 Bombay HO  Sydney BO  

 Debit  Credit  Debit  Credit  

   A$ A$ 

Share Capital ɬ 2,000 ɬ ɬ 

Reserves and Surplus ɬ 1,000 ɬ ɬ 

Land 500 ɬ ɬ ɬ 

Buildings (Cost) 1,000 ɬ ɬ ɬ 

Buildings Dep. Reserve ɬ 200 ɬ ɬ 

Plant & Machinery (Cost)  2,500 ɬ 200 ɬ 

Plant & Machinery Depreciation  Reserve ɬ 600 ɬ 130 

Debtors / Creditors  280 200 60 30 

Stock (01.04.2012) 100 ɬ 20 ɬ 

Branch Stock Reserve ɬ 4 ɬ ɬ 

Cash & Bank Balances 10 ɬ 10 ɬ 

Purchases / Sales 240 520 20 123 

Goods sent to Branch ɬ 100 5 ɬ 

,ÈÕÈÎÐÕÎɯ#ÐÙÌÊÛÖÙɀÚɯÚÈÓÈÙà 30 ɬ ɬ ɬ 

Wages & Salaries 75 ɬ 45 ɬ 

Rent ɬ ɬ 12 ɬ 

Office Expenses 25 ɬ 18 ɬ 

Commission Receipts ɬ 256 ɬ 100 

Branch / H.O. Current A/c  120 ɬ ɬ 7 

 4,880 4,880 390 390 

The following information is also available:  

1. Stock as at 31.3.2013 : 

a. Bombay 1,50,000 

b. Sydney A $ 3,125 

2. Head Office always sent goods to the Branch at cost plus 25%. 

3. Provision is to be made for doubtful debts at 5%. 

4. Depreciation is to be provided on buildings at 10% and on plant and machinery at 20% on written 

down values.  

5. Outstanding commission to t he Managing Director ɬ 41 

6. Incomeɬtax is to be provided at 934. 

You are required:  

1. To convert the Branch Trial Balance into rupees; use the following rates of exchange 

Rate as on Opening  Closing  Average Fixed asset 

 / per A$ 20 24 22 18 
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2. To prepare the Trading and Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31 stMarch, 2013 showing to 

the extent possible H.O. results and Branch results separately. (Balance Sheet not required.)  

{CA inter M95}  

Answer: (a) 2ɯȫɯ,ɯ+ÛËȭɯ2àËÕÌàɯ!ÙÈÕÊÏɯ3!ɯȹÐÕɯȿƔƔƔɯRupees) as on 31stMarch, 2013 

 In  Rate per 

A$ 

In A$  

 Dr.  Cr. Dr.  Cr. 

Plant & Machinery (cost)  200 ɬ HR 18 36,00  

Plant & Machinery Dep. Reserve ɬ 130 HR 18  23,40 

Debtors / Creditors  60 30 CR 24 14,40 7,20 

Stock (1.4.94) 20 ɬ AR 20 4,00  

Cash & Bank Balances 10 ɬ CR 24 2,40  

Purchase / Sales 20 123 AR 22 4,40 27,06 

Goods received from H.O. 5 ɬ Act  - 1,00  

Salaries 45 ɬ AR 22 9,90  

Rent 12 ɬ AR 22 2,64  

Office expenses 18 ɬ AR 22 3,96  

Commission Receipts ɬ 100 AR 22  22,00 

H.O. Current A/c  ɬ 7 Act  -  1,20 

 390 390   78,70 80,86 

Exchange loss (balancing figure)      2,16  

     80,86 80,86 

[HR = Historical Rate, OR = Opening Rate, CR = Closing Rate, AR = Average Rate and Act = Actual] 

 

(b) Trading and P/L A/c for the year ended 31stMarch, 2013 (in thousands)  

  H.O.  Branch Total    H.O.  Branch Total  

To Opening Stock 1,00 4,00 5,00 By Sales 5,20 27,06 32,26 

 Purchases 2,40 4,40 6,80  Goods sent to 1,00 ɬ 1,00 

 Goods received ɬ 1,00 1,00  Branch    

 from Head Office      Closing Stock 1,50 75 2,25 

 Gross profit c/d  4,30 18,41 22,71      

  7,70 27,81 35,51   7,70 27,81 35,51 

 Salaries 75 9,90 10,65  Gross Profit B/d 4,30 18,41 22,71 

 Rent  - 2,64 2,64  Commission receipts 2,56 22,00 24,56 

 Office expenses 25 3,96 4,21      

 Provision for DD 14 72 86      

 Depreciation 4,60 2,52 7,12      

 Balance c/d 1,12 20,67 21,79      

  6,86 40,41 47,27   6,86 40,41 47,27 

 

General Profit and Loss A/c  

To Exchange loss 2,16 By Balance b/d 21,79 

 Branch Stock Reserve 75×1/5 15  Branch Stock reserve 4 
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 ,#ɀÚɯ1ÌÔÜÕÌÙÈÛÐÖÕ 30    

 ,#ɀÚ Commission 41    

 Provision for Income -tax 934    

 Balance c/d 947    

  21,83   21,83 
 

Balance Sheet 

Liabilities  HO  BO  Assets HO  BO  

S. Capital   2000 Land   500 

Reserves and Surplus   1,000 Building  1000   

Net Profit    947 Provision for depreciation  200   

Creditors  200 720 920  800   

Branch Stock Reserve   15 Depreciation (10%) 80   

,#ɀÚɯ"ÖÔÔÐÚÚÐÖÕ   41  720  720 

Provision for Taxation   934 Plant and Machinery  2500 3600  

    Provision for depreciation  600 2340  

     1900 1260  

    Depreciation (20%) 380 252  

     1520 1008 2528 

    Debtors  280 1440  

    Provision for D D 14 72  

     266 1368 1634 

    Cash 10 240 250 

    Stock in trade 150 75 225 

   5,857    5,857 
 

Foreign Branch: [Reporting currency is $] 

Question 1 1: Carlin & Co. has head office at New York (U.S.A.) and branch at Mumbai (India). 

Mumbai branch furnishes you with its trial balance as on 31st March, 2013 and the additional 

information given thereafter:  

ÐÕɯȿƔƔƔ 

 Dr.  Cr. 

Stock on 1stApril, 2012 300 ɬ 

Purchases and sales 800 1,200 

Sundry Debtors and creditors  400 300 

Bills of exchange 120 240 

Wages and salaries 560 ɬ 

Rent, rates and taxes 360 ɬ 

Sundry charges 160 ɬ 

Computers 240 ɬ 

Bank balance 420 ɬ 

New York office a/c  ɬ 1,620 

 3,360 3,360 
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Additional information:  

1. Computers were acquired from a remittance of US $6,000 received from New York head office 

and paid to the suppliers. Depreciate computers at 60% for the year. 

2. Unsold stock of Mumbai branch was worth 4,20,000 on 31st March, 2013. 

3. The rates of exchange may be taken as follows: 

on 1.4.2012 @ 40 per US $ 

on 31.3.2013 @ 42 per US $ 

average exchange rate for the year @ 41 per US $ 

4. Conversion in $ shall be made up to two decimals. 

You are asked to prepare in US dollars the revenue statement for the year ended 31st March, 2013 and 

the balance sheet as on that date of Mumbai branch as would appear in the books of New York head 

office of Carlin & Co. You are informed that Mumbai branch account showed a debit balance of US $ 

39609.18 on 31.3.2013 in New York books and there were no items pending reconciliation. 

{CA inter M99}  

An swer: Carlin & Co. Ltd. Mumbai Branch Trial Balance in (US $) as on 31st March, 2013  

 Dr.  Cr Rate  Dr.  Cr 

 ÐÕɯȿƔƔƔ $ In $ 

Stock on 1st April, 1998 300 ɬ OR 40 7,500.00 ɬ 

Purchases and sales 800 1,200 AR 41 19,512.20 29,268.29 

Sundry Debtors and creditors 400 300 CR 42 9,523.81 7,142.86 

Bills of exchange 120 240 CR 42 2,857.14 5,714.29 

Wages and salaries 560 ɬ AR 41 13,658.54 ɬ 

Rent, rates and taxes 360 ɬ AR 41 8,780.49 ɬ 

Sundry charges 160 ɬ AR 41 3,902.44 ɬ 

Computers 240 ɬ Act  ɬ 6,000.00 ɬ 

Bank balance 420 ɬ CR 42 10,000.00 ɬ 

New York office a/c  ɬ 1,620 Act    39,609.18 

 3,360 3,360   81,734.62 81,734.62 

[OR = Opening Rate, CR = Closing Rate, AR = Average Rate and Act = Actual] 

 

Trading and Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31stMarch, 2013 

  US $   US $ 

To Opening Stock 7,500.00 By Sales 29,268.29 

 Purchases 19,512.20  Closing stock 10,000.00 

 Wages and salaries 13,658.54  Gross Loss c/d 1,402.45 

  40,670.74   40,670.74 

 Gross Loss b/d 1,402.45  Net Loss 17,685.38 

 Rent, rates and taxes 8,780.49    

 Sundry charges 3,902.44    

 Depreciation on computers  3,600.00    

  (US $ 6,000 × 0.6)     

  17,685.38   17,685.38 
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Balance Sheet of Mumbai Branch as on 31st March, 2013 

Liabilities   US $ Assets US $ US $ 

New York Office A/c  39,609.18  Computers 6,000.00  

Less: Net Loss 17,685.38 21,923.80 Less: Depreciation 3,600.00 2,400.00 

Sundry creditors   7,142.86 Closing stock  10,000.00 

Bills payable  5,714.29 Sundry debtors  9,523.81 

   Bank balance  10,000.00 

   Bills receivable  2,857.14 

  34,780.95   34,780.95 
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AS1. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOU NTING POLICIES  

 

Fundamental Accounting Assumptions  

1. Going concern:  an enterprise will continue its operations in the foreseeable future  

2. Consistency:  practice of using same accounting policies  for similar transactions  in all 

accounting period . This will improve comparability  of financial statements 

3. Accrual:  Earned or incurred is recorded not received or paid [matching concept]  

Mandatory as per S.128(1)(iii) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Disclosure:  If the fundamental accounting assumption is 

Followed ɬ no disclosure is required 

Not followed  ɬ disclosure required  

 

Accounting Policies  

 Specific accounting principles 

 Methods of applying those principles  

 adopted by the enterprise in preparation of financial statements  

Note: As per AS5, accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and 

practices applied by an entity in preparing and presenting the financial statements  

 

Example: where two or more principles applicable  

 Items Methods of Valuation & Disclosure  

1 Inventories   FIFO, Weighted Average methods, etc. 

2 Cash Flow Statements  Direct method, indirect method  

3 Depreciation  CLM, WDVM, etc.  

4 Goodwill   Simple Average Method, Weighted Average Method, etc . 

 

The methods / criteria for the selection and application of Accounting Policies.  

1. Primary Consideration: The financial statements should represent a true and fair view  

2. Secondary Consideration [three major considerations]  

a. Prudence: making estimates under conditions of uncertainty  

 Uncertain profit ɬ not considered 

 Uncertain losses ɬ provided for [a damage suit, etc .,] 

Example: value of inventory is WEL of cost or NRV 

Note: hidden reserve is not permitted  

b. Substance over form:  the legal form of the transaction is ignored and substance is accounted 

Example: In transfer of property, property is transferred but deed is pending  

c. Materiality :  

 the knowledge of an items, 

 which influences the decision of the user of the financial statements  
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 is material & must be disclosed  

Examples: 

1. If expenses >WEH of 1% of the revenue or 1 lakh ɬ disclose by way of notes 

As per the preparation of  P/L in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

2. If shares held by a shareholder >5% of shares ɬ disclose by way of notes to accounts 

As per the instruction for B/S in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Note: materiality is not always a matter of relative size.  

A small loss may become greater losses in future  

3. Disclosure:  All significant accounting policies  adopted should be disclosed.  

 

Changes in Accounting Polices:  

 Cannot change regularly 

 Change of policies is allowed if the change required 

1. by law  / statute,  

2. by AS and  

3. for better presentation of financial statements 

 Disclosure : Any change in the accounting policies  

1. which has a material effect in the current period  and if  

a. amount is ascertainable ɬ should be disclosed along with the amount.  

b. amount is not ascertainable ɬ fact to be disclosed 

2. which has NO material effect in the current period  but ascertainable in the later period 

Fact of such change in later period is to be disclosed in current period. 

 

Disclosures : 

 All significant accounting policies  adopted  

 True & fair view of the financial accounts 

 The disclosure should form part of the financial statements  

to facilitate meaningful information to the users  

 In the absence of disclosure, it is assumed that the fundamental assumptions are followed 

 Any change in the accounting policies  

 

Disclosure requirement in a case where the companies do not comply with AS.  

1. Deviations from accounting standards  

2. Reasons for such deviations 

3. The financial effect, if any arising from such deviations  

{CMA inter D06 & J09, 2~3 marks} 

 

Question 1:  In the books of M/s Prashant Ltd., closing inventory as on 31.03.20X2 amount to 

1,63,000 (on the basis of FIFO method). 
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The company decides to change from FIFO method to weighted average method for ascertaining the 

cost of inventory from the year 20X1-X2. On the basis of weighted average method, closing inventory 

as on 31.03.20X2 amounts to 1,95,000. 

Discuss disclosure requirement of change in accounting policy as per AS1.1 

 

Question 2:  Jagannath Ltd. Had made a rights issue of shares in 20X2. In the offer document to its 

members, it had projected a surplus of 40 crores during the accounting year to end on 31st March, 

20X2. The draft results for the year, prepared on the hitherto follow ed accounting policies and 

presented for perusal of the board of director, showed a deficit of 10 crores. The board in 

consultation with the managing director, decided on the following:  

1. Value year-end inventory at works cost ( 50 crores) instead of the hitherto method of valuation 

of inventory at prime cost ( 30 crores).2 

2. -ÖÛɯÛÖɯ×ÙÖÝÐËÌɯÍÖÙɯȿÈÍÛÌÙɯÚÈÓÌÚɯÌß×ÌÕÚÌÚɀɯËÜÙÐÕÎɯÛÏÌɯÞÈÙÙÈÕÛàɯ×ÌÙÐÖËȭɯ3ÐÓÓɯÛÏÌɯÓÈÚÛɯàÌÈÙȮɯ×ÙÖÝÐÚÐÖÕɯ

ÈÛɯƖǔɯÖÍɯÚÈÓÌÚɯÜÚÌËɯÛÖɯÉÌɯÔÈËÌɯÜÕËÌÙɯÛÏÌɯÊÖÕÊÌ×ÛɯÖÍɯȿÔÈÛÊÏÐÕÎɯÖÍɯÊÖÚÛÚɯÈÎÈÐÕÚÛɯÙÌÝÌÕÜÌɀɯÈÕËɯ

actual expenses used to be charged against the provision. The board now decided to account for 

expenses as and when actually incurred. Sales during the year total to 600 crores.3 

3. Provide for permanent fall in the value of investments ɬ which fall h ad taken place over the past 

five years ɬ the provision being 10 crores.4 

As chief accountant of the company, you are asked by the managing director to draft the notes on 

accounts for inclusion in the annual report for 20X1 -X2. 

 

Question 3: XYZ Company is engaged in the business of financial services and is undergoing tight 

liquidity position, since most of the assets of the company are blocked in various claims / petitions in 

a Special Court. XYZ has accepted Inter-Corporate Deposits (ICDs) and, it is making its best efforts to 

settle the dues. There were claims at varied rates of interest, from lenders, from the due date of ICDs 

to the date of repayment. The company has provided interest, as per the terms of the contract till the 

due date and a note for non-provision of interest on the due date to date of repayment was affected in 

the financial statements. On account of uncertainties existing regarding the determination of the 

amount and in the absence of any specific legal obligation at present as per the terms of contracts, the 

ÊÖÔ×ÈÕàɯ ÊÖÕÚÐËÌÙÚɯ ÛÏÈÛɯ ÛÏÌÚÌɯ ÊÓÈÐÔÚɯ ÈÙÌɯ ÐÕɯ ÛÏÌɯ ÕÈÛÜÙÌɯ ÖÍɯ ȿÊÓÈÐÔÚɯ ÈÎÈÐÕÚÛɯ ÛÏÌɯ ÊÖÔ×ÈÕàɯ ÕÖÛɯ

ÈÊÒÕÖÞÓÌËÎÌËɯÈÚɯËÌÉÛɀȮɯÈÕËɯÛÏÌɯÚÈÔÌɯÏÈÚɯÉÌÌÕɯËÐÚÊÓÖÚÌËɯÉàɯÞÈàɯÖÍɯÈɯÕÖÛÌɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯÈÊÊÖÜÕÛÚɯÐÕÚÛÌÈËɯÖÍɯ

making a provision in the profit and loss accounts. State whether the treatment done by the company 

is correct or not.5 

 

 
1Situation: change in method | AS provision | Disclosure in note to accounts with amount [Profit ᴽ16,000] 
2Notes to Accounts: Profit ᴻ by 20 crores  

[valuing stock at works cost as production is more capital intensive [follows AS 2]] 
3Notes to Accounts: Profit ᴻ by 12 crores  

[the probability of defects is reduced with improved method of production] 
4Notes to Accounts: Profit Ȣ by 10 crores [valuing investment lower by 10 crores due to permanent fall] 
5 Not correct | Prudence ï in case of uncertainties | Fundamental Accounting Assumption ï accrual concept  





 

Valuation Of Inventories  AS2.1 

AS2: VALUA TION OF INVENTORIES  

 

Scope: Stock held 

 For sale in ordinary course of business (finished goods) 

 In the process of production (work -in-process) 

 In the form of material to be consumed (raw material, consumables)  

In cludes in AS 2 :machinery spare parts, servicing equipment & stand by equipment  Ȼ4ÚÌɯȀɯƕɯàÌÈÙȼ 

In cludes in AS 10:machinery spare parts, servicing equipment & stand by equipment  [Use > 1 year]  

 

Objectives: Guidance for  determining value & presentation in financial statements  

1. Determination of value: Whichever is lower of cost and net realizable value (prudence concept)  

(1) Cost (2) Net Realizable Value  

 Particulars   

 Direct Material (cost of purchase)  

 Purchase price ××× 

+ Carriage in ××× 

+ Non recoverable taxes ××× 

ῐ Rebate ××× 

ῐ Trade discounts ××× 

ῐ Duty drawbacks  ××× 

 Conversion Costs   

 Direct Labour  ××× 

 Direct Expenses ××× 

 Factory overhead (Variable) 

Based on actual production  

××× 

 Factory overhead (Fixed) 

Based on normal production  

or actual production WEH  

××× 

 Other Costs  

+ Cost incurred to bring inventory  

to its present location & condition  

××× 

+ Interest on borrowing  

(if stock takes substantial time  

to get ready for sale) 

××× 

+ Amortization of intangible assets  

Related to production [e.g. patent]  

××× 

 Cost ××× 
 

 Particulars   

 Sale value ××× 

ῐ Selling expenses ××× 

ῐ Cost to complete (WIP) ××× 

 Net Realizable Value  ××× 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Excluded Costs  

Holding & storage cost [FG]  

(Except for RM & WIP)  

××× 

Interest and penalties ××× 

Administration costs  ××× 

Selling & Distribution cost  ××× 

Abnormal Cots  ××× 

Exchange difference ××× 
 

 

Note: 1ÌËÜÊÛÐÖÕɯÐÕɯÛÏÌɯÙÈÞɯÔÈÛÌÙÐÈÓÚɀɯ×ÙÐÊÌÚɯÊÈÕɯÉÌɯÈËÑÜÚÛÌËɯÈÎÈÐÕÚÛɯ-15ɯÖÕÓàɯÐÍɯÛÏÌɯÍÐÕÐÚÏÌËɯÎÖÖËÚɯ

for which it is used is sold below cost.  
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2. Methods of computing cost (Cost formula)  

a. Not Interchangeable : Specific Identification Method  

b. Interchangeable (sequence based) 

1. Historical Cost Method:  FIFO or Weighted Average Cost Method  

Normal consumption and used regularly  

2. Non Historical Cost Method:  Standard Cost or Retail Method [SP ɬ GP] 

Large number of rapidly changing items  but sold with similar margin  

 

Non -applicability  

 WIP of Construction contracts (AS 7) 

 WIP of service provider  

 Financial instruments (shares and debentures) held as stock in trade 

 Produces of live stocks, agricultural & forest products + minerals, oils and gases 

 

Joint Products: Ratio of Sale value at split off or after split off  

By Products: Net realisable value 

 

Disclosure s 

1. Accounting policy (Cost formula)  

2. Classification of inventories with carrying amount  

Raw materials   Work -in-progress 

Finished goods   Stock-in-trade (for retailers)  

Stores and spares   Loose tools 

Others 

 

Practical Problems  

Valuation of WIP  

Question 1: Cost of a partly finished unit at the end of 2021-22 is 150. The unit can be finished next 

year by a further expenditure of 100. The finished unit can be sold at 250, subject to payment of 4% 

brokerage on selling price. Assume that the partly finished unit cannot be sold in semi -finished form 

and its NRV is zero without processing it further. What is the value of inventory? 1 

 

Absorption of fixed overheads  

Question 2: ABC Ltd. has a plant with the capacity to produce 1 lakh unit of a product per annum 

and the expected fixed overhead is 18 lakhs. Find out value of stock if units produced are  

1. 1,00,000 units2 

2. 90,000 units3 

 
1 Value = 140 WEL of [Cost: 150 and NRV 140 (250 ï 4% ï 100)] 
2Value = 18 lakhs & 18 per unit [ 18 lakhs / 1 lakh units]& 18 lakhs is debited to P/L A/c 
3Value = 16.2 lakhs & 18 per unit [ 18 lakhs / 1 lakh units] & 18 lakhs is debited to P/L A/c 
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3. 1,20,000 units1 

 

Retail method of valuation (adjusted SP)  

Question 3:  A trader purchased certain articles for 85,000. He sold some of articles for 1,05,000. The 

average percentage of gross margin is 25% on cost. Opening stock of inventory at cost was 15,000. 

Find out the cost of closing inventory. 2 

 

Joint Product and By Product  

Question 4:  In a manufacturing process of Vijay Limited, one by -product  BP emerges besides two 

main products MP1 and MP2 apart from scarp. Details of cost of production process are here under: 

 

Item  Unit  Amount [ ] Output (unit)  Closing inventory  

Raw material  15,000 1,60,000 MP1 ɬ 6,250 800 

Wages - 82,000 MP2 ɬ5,000 200 

Fixed overhead - 58,000 BP ɬ 1,600  

Variable overhead  40,000   

 

Average market price of MP1 and MP2 is 80 per unit and 50 per unit respectively, by product is @ 

25 per unit. There is a profit of 5,000 on sales of by-product after incurring separate process charges 

of 4,000 and packing charges of 6,000. 6,000 was  realised from sale of scrap. 

Calculate the value of closing inventory of MP1 and MP2.  

Answer : 

Joint costs for main products = [JC ɬ NRV of BP ɬ Scrap realised] 

3,40,000 ɬ [1,600 × 25 ɬ 4,000 ɬ 6,000] ɬ 6,000 = 3,04,000 

Allocated joint costs under sale value method 

ὅέίὸ Ὢέὶ ὓὖρ σȟπτȟπππ
φȟςυπψπ

φȟςυπψπ υȟπππυπ
σȟπτȟπππ

υ ὰὥὯὬί

υ ὰὥὯὬί ςȢυ ὰὥὯὬί
ςȟπςȟφφχ 

ὅέίὸ Ὢέὶ ὓὖς  σȟπτȟπππ
υȟπππυπ

φȟςυπψπ υȟπππυπ
σȟπτȟπππ

ςȢυ ὰὥὯὬί

υ ὰὥὯὬί ςȢυ ὰὥὯὬί
ρȟπρȟσσσ  

 

Raw material valued at cost if finished goods NOT sold at reduced price  

Question 5: How will you deal with the following as per AS2? On 31st March, 2014, the closing stock 

of X Ltd. includes 13,000 units costing 14 per unit but the current market price as on that date was 

12 per unit.3 

{CMA inter J14, 2 marks} 

 

 
1Value = 18 lakhs & 15 per unit [ 18 lakhs / 1.2 lakhs units]& 18 lakhs is debited to P/L A/c 
2Value = 16,000 | {[Sales value of (opening stock + purchases)ï Sales] ï GP} 

[{(15,000 + 85,000)×1.25 ï 1,05,000)ï 20%]} 
3 WEL of Cost or NRV = 12 
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Item -wise valuation  

Question 6:  Imran Co Ltd deals in manufacture of certain products. It gives you the following 

information for the year ended 31 st March, 2013, with respect to the closing stock of these items:  

 

Item  Historical Cost  Net realizable value  

X 25,00,000 19,00,000 

Y 62,00,000 60,00,000 

Z 15,00,000 21,00,000 

Compute the value of closing stock1 

{CMA inter D13, 3 marks}  

 

Valuation of WIP Stock  

Question 7: LUXOR LTD. deals in three products A, B and C which are neither similar nor 

interchangeable. At the time of closing of its Financial Account for the year ended March 31, 2015, 

Valuation of Closing Stock of the said products is to be determined.  

The details of Closing Stock of the three products extracted from the records of the company are as 

under; 

Type of  

Product  

Cost of  

Materials  

Production  

Expenses incurred 

Selling and Distribution  

expenses to be incurred  

Estimated  

Selling Value  

     

A  1,00,000 20,000 10,000 1,50,000 

B 50,000 5,000 5,000 50,000 

C 1,20,000 30,000 20,000 1,80,000 

 

You are required to compute the value of stock as per AS-2 for inclusion in the financial statement as 

on 31.03.2015. 

{CMA inter D15, 4 marks}  

Answer:  

Items  Cost NRV  Value per AS -2 

A  1,00,000 + 20,000  = 1,20,000 1,50,000  - 10,0000  = 1,40,000 1,20,000 

B 50,000 + 5,000 = 55,000 50,000 ɬ 5,000 = 45,000 45,000 

C 1,20,000 + 30,000 = 1,50,000 1,80,000 ɬ 20,000 = 1,60,000 1,50,000 

   3,15,000 

Value of stock as per AS-2 is 3, 15,000 

 

  

 
1 X ï 19 lakhs; Y ï 60 lakhs; Z ï 15 lakhs & total 94 lakhs 
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Valuation of stock in trade at WEL of cost or NRV  

Question 8 : MENZ LTD. purchased goods at the cost of 20 lakh in Oct 2014. Till March31, 2015, 75% 

of the Stocks were sold. The company wants to disclose stock at 5 Lakh. The expected Sales Value is 

5.5 Lakh and a Commission at 10% on sale is payable to the agent. 

What is the correct Closing Stock to be disclosed as at 31.03.2015 as per AS-2?1 

{CMA inter J15, 2 marks} 

 

Valuation of RM where FG produced and sold using such RM  

Question 11: The cost of production of product X is 450 which includes per unit cost of material, 

labour and overheads of 250, 110 and 90 respectively. At the end of the accounting year on 

31.03.2013 the replacement cost of raw material is 210 per unit. There are 500 units of raw material in 

stock on 31.03.2013. Calculate as per AS2 the value of closing stock of raw material when: 

1. Finished product is sold at 420 per unit2 

2. Finished product sold at 490 per unit 3 

{CMA inter J13, 5 marks} 

 

Valuation of FG with fixed overhead  

Question 12: Determine the value the inventories in the following case:  

Per kg. of finished goods consisted of : 

Material cost 100 per kg. 

Direct labour cost 20 per kg. 

Direct variable production overhead 10 per kg. 

Fixed production charges for the year on normal capacity of one lakh kgs is 10 lakhs. 2,000 kg. of 

finished goods are on stock at the year end. 

{CA final N00}  

Answer:  

Material cost  100 

Direct labour cost  20 

Direct variable production overhead   10 

Fixed production overhead 
ȟ ȟ

ȟ ȟ
 10 

Value per finished goods  140 

Value of 2,000 kgs of finished goods [2,000kgs×140] 2,80,000 

Abnormal Loss  

Question 1 3: In a production process, normal waste is 5% of input. 5,000 MT of input were put in 

process resulting in a wastage of 300 MT. cost per MT of input is 1,000. The entire quantity of waste 

is on stock at the year end. If waste has nil realizable value. What is the cost per unit?4

 
1 4.95 lakhs 
2 210; WEL of Cost or NRV as FG sold less than cost 
3 250; valued at cost as FG sold NOT less than cost 
4ὅέίὸ ὴὩὶ όὲὭὸ  υπππ  ρπυςȢφσ 
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AS7: CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS  

 

Construction contracts: Directly related to  

1. construction  of assets and  

2. demolition  of assets or restoration of assets 

 

Applicability:  to contractors only  

Types of contracts:  

1. Fixed price 

2. Cost plus 

 

Determination of profit or loss  

Profit:  Percentage completion method (stage of completion method) 

Loss: Recognize completely [by debiting P/L A/c]  

Recognition only if:  reliable measure + certainty of collectability  

 

Recognition conditions for fixed price contracts:  

1. Total contract revenue can be measured reliably 

2. Economic benefits will flow to the enterprise  

3. Contract cost & stage of completion ɬcan be measured reliably on reporting date  

4. Attributable contract costs can be identified and measured reliably  

So that actual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates 

 

Recognition conditions for cost plus contracts: 

1. Economic benefits will flow to the e nterprise 

2. Attributable contract costs (whether or not specifically reimbursable)  

can be identified and measured reliably  

 

If outcome of a construction contract could not be measured reliably:  

Percentage completion method should not be applied 

In such cases 

1. Revenue should be recognized to the extent of the probable recovery 

2. Contract costs should be recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred 

 

Treatment of costs relating to future activity  ɬ Assets and WIP 

Uncollectable contract revenue  ɬ reverse the contract revenue 

 

Stage of completion method:  

1. #ÏÓÔ ÍÅÔÈÏÄ  
  

 
Ϸ 
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2. Survey method 

3. Completion of physical proportion method  

 

Combining and segmenting construction contracts  

1. Contract covers a number of assets, but treated as a separate contract when 

a. Separate proposals have been submitted for each asset 

b. Contract for each asset is acceptable after separate negotiation 

c. The costs and revenues of each asset can be identified 

2. A gr oup of contracts (with a single customer or not) ɬ treated as a single contract when 

a. The group of contracts is negotiated as a single package 

b. The contract are so closely interrelated that they are, in effect,  

part of a single project with an overall profit margin  

c. The contracts are performed concurrently or in a continuous sequence 

3. Change in scope of contract ɬ treated as a separate contract when 

a. The new asset differs significantly in design, technology or function etc.,  

b.  The price of new asset is negotiated separately 

 

Question: XYZ construction Ltd., a construction company undertakes the construction of an 

industrial complex. It has separate proposals raised for each unit to be constructed in the industrial 

complex. Since each unit is subject to separate negotiation, he is able to identify the costs and 

revenues attributable to each unit. Should XYZ Ltd., treat construction of each unit as a separate 

construction contract according to AS7?1 

 

Calculation of Profit / Loss 

 Contract Revenue [up to the stage of completion]   

 As per the agreement ×× 

 Escalation clause ×× 

 Claims reimbursed  ×× 

Ⱦ  For change in Scope ×× 

  Penalty ×× 

 A ×× 

 Contract Costs  

 Directly related costs   

 Site labour costs, including site supervision  ×× 

 Material  ×× 

 Depreciation ×× 

 Costs of moving plant, equipment, and material  ×× 

 Costs of hiring plant, equipment  ×× 

 
1Yes. Separate contract. (write the provisions also) 
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 Costs of design and technical assistant  ×× 

 Costs of rectification, guarantee ×× 

 Claims from third party  ×× 

 Allocated costs  [based on normal levels]   

 Insurance ×× 

 Costs of design and technical assistant not directly related ×× 

 Construction overheads ×× 

 Interest (as per AS 16) ×× 

 Costs cannot be allocated  

 General administration costs [reimbursed]  ×× 

 Selling costs ×× 

 R&D costs ×× 

 Depreciation of idle plant and equipment  ×× 

 B ×× 

 Estimated Cost  

 Future cost ×× 

 Payment to sub-contractors in advance ×× 

 C ×× 

 Profit / Loss up to the date [A -B-C] ×× 

 Profit / Loss of Previous Year ×× 

 Profit / Loss of Current Year  ×× 

  ×× 

 

Changes in estimates: apply AS 5 

 

Disclosure:  

1. Contract revenue recognized 

2. Method the recognize the contract revenue for the period 

3. Method used to determine the stage of completion  

4. In case of work in progress 

a. Cost and revenue recognized up to the reporting date 

b. Advance received 

c. Retention money 

5. Present 

a. The gross amount due from customers ɬ asset 

b. The gross amount due to customers ɬ liabilities  

 Particulars   

 Costs incurred  ××× 
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Ⱦ  Recognized P/L ××× 

 Progress billings ××× 

 Gross amount due from customers (due to customers) ××× 

 

Practical Problems  

1. Computation of stage of completion [cost method]  

2. Determination of profit or loss  

3. Treatment of estimated loss 

4. Disclosure  

 

Profit contract  

Question 1:  Compute the percentage of completion and the Contract Revenues and Costs to be 

recognized from the following data.  

Contract Price 150 Lakhs 

Materials issued to the Contract 36 Lakhs (unused material 6 lakhs) 

Labour paid for workers engaged at site  24 Lakhs ( 4 Lakhs is still payable) 

Specific Contract Costs 12 Lakhs, 

Sub-Contract Costs for work executed 10 Lakhs, 

Advances paid to sub-Contractors 6 Lakhs 

Cost estimate to complete the Contract 60 Lakhs. 

 

Answer: Computation of stage of completion [cost method]  

   in lakhs  

 Materials Cost (net of Closing Stock) [ 36 ɬ 6] 30 

 Labour Costs (paid + payable) [ 24 + 4] 28 

 Specific Contracts Costs 12 

 Subcontract costs (except advances) 10 

 Costs Incurred Till Date  80 

 Further Costs to be incurred 60 

 Total Contract Costs  140 

 ἜἭἺἫἭἶἼἩἯἭ ἍἷἵἸἴἭἼἱἷἶ ÃÏÓÔ ÍÅÔÈÏÄ 

ὅέίὸ ὸέ ὨὥὸὩ

ὉίὸὭάὥὸὩὨ ὸέὸὥὰ ὧέίὸ

ψπ

ρτπ
Ϸ υχȢρτϷ 

 

 Contract Revenue [57.14% × 150] 85.71 

 Contract Costs to date 80.00 

 Contract Profit  5.71 
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Profit contract for multiple years  

Question 2:  Shiv Buildcom Ltd. obtained a contract to construct a bridge for 50,00,000. The contract 

will be completed within 4 years. The details are as follows  

 

 

( in 000) 

Particulars  Years 

 I  II  III  IV  

Total Cost incurred  800 2,100 3,000 4,200 

Estimated cost to be incurred for completion  2,200 1,400 800 - 

Progress payment to be received 560 1,800 2,400 3,600 

 

The company seeks your advice in presentation of accounts keeping in view the requirement of AS-7. 

{CMA inter J14, 8 marks} 

Answer:  

 in thousands  

Calculation of Estimated Profit on completion  

 Particulars  Year ɬI  Year-II  Year-III  Year -IV  

          

 Total Contract price  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000 

 Cost of contract:         

 Incurred  800  2,100  3,000  4,200  

 To be incurred 2,200 3,000 1,400 3,500 800 3,800 --- 4,200 

 Estimated Profit   2,000  1,500  1,200  800 

 % of Completion  

of work  

ψππ

σȟπππ
Ϸ 

ςφȢφχϷ 

ςȟρππ

σȟυππ
Ϸ 

φπϷ 

σȟπππ

σȟψππ
Ϸ 

χψȢωυϷ 

τȟςππ

τȟςππ
Ϸ 

ρππϷ 

 

Loss Contract & Disclosure  

Question 3: A firm of contractors obtained a contract for construction of bridges across river Revathi. 

The following details are available in the records kept for the year ended 31st March, 2021. 

   in lakhs 

Total contract price 1,000 

Work certified for the cost incurred  500 

Work not yet certified for the cost incurred  105 

Estimated further cost to completion  495 

Progress payment received 400 

Progress payment to be received 140 
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The firm seeks your advice and assistance in the presentation of account keeping in view the 

requirements of AS 7. 

Answer:  

1 Foreseeable loss  in lakhs 

 Total cost of construction [500 + 105 + 495] 1,100 

 Total contract price 1,000 

 Loss to be recognized as expense 100 

   

2 Contract WIP   

 Work certified  500 

 Work not certified  105 

  605 

   

3 Percentage of completion   

 
#ÏÓÔ ÍÅÔÈÏÄ  

#ÏÓÔ ÔÏ ÄÁÔÅ

4ÏÔÁÌ #ÏÓÔ
Ϸ

φπυ

ρȟρππ
 

55% 

   

4 Contract revenue   

 ὅέὲὸὶὥὧὸ ὴὶὭὧὩ ὖὩὶὧὩὲὸὥὫὩ ὧέάὴὰὩὸὭέὲ ȿ ρȟπππυυϷ 550 

   

5 Amount due from / to customers   

 Costs incurred 605 

Ⱦ  Recognized P/L (100) 

 Progress billings [400 + 140] 540 

 Gross amount due from customers (due to customers) (35) 

   

6 Disclosure   

 Contract Revenue 550 

 Contract Expenses 605 

 Recognized P/(L) (100) 

 

 



 

Revenue Recognition  AS9.1 

AS9. REVENUE RECOGNITION  

 

Requirement of revenue recognition  

Revenue: the gross inflow of cash, receivables or other consideration from 

The ordinary activities such as 

1. Sale of goods 

2. Rendering of service 

3. Use of enterprise resources and generating income 

 

AS 9 ɬ Not Applicable for revenue from  

1. Construction contract ɬ AS 7 

2. Government Grants ɬ AS 12 

3. Leasing and Hire Purchase ɬ AS 19 

4. Insurance Contracts (for Insurance Companies) 

 

Items not included as revenue as per AS 9  

1. Profit or loss on sale of assets (PPE) including revaluation gain 

2. Unrealized holding gains resulting from the change in value of current assets,  

and the natural increases in herds and agricultural and forest products  

3. Realized and unrealized gains from foreign currency translation  

4. Realized and unrealized gains from discharge or restatement of obligations  

 

Sale of Goods [condition for recognition]  

1. Goods transferred 

2. Significant risks and rewards of ownership transferred  

3. No uncertainty for collectability of the consideration  

 

Renderin g of Services  

Methods of recognition  

1. Completed contract [single act] [e.g. installation of a machine or repair service etc.] 

2. Proportionate completion [many acts] [based on the performance ɬ SLM] 

 

Income for the use of enterprise resources and generating i ncome 

1. Interest ɬ time proportion  

2. Dividend ɬ on declaration (right to receive)  

3. Royalties ɬ Accrual basis (terms of agreement) 

 

Recognise only if  no uncertainty for collectability of the consideration  

Effects of uncertainties on revenue recognition  

1. Any uncertainty on raising the claim ɬ postpone the revenue recognition 
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2. Any uncertainty after the claim ɬ make a provision  

3. Revenue is not reasonably determinable ɬ postpone the revenue recognition.  

Disclosure:  Circumstances necessitating the postponement of recognition 

 

Question 1:The board of directors decided on 31.3.2022 to increase the sale price of certain items 

retrospectively from 1 st January, 2022. In view of this price revision with effect from 1 st January 2022, 

the company has to receive 15 lakhs from its customers in respect of sales made from 1st January, 

2022 to 31st March, 2022. Accountant cannot make up his mind whether to include 15 lakhs in the 

sales for 2021-2022. Advise.1 

 

Question 2:  Y Ltd., used certain resources of X Ltd. In return X Ltd. received 10 lakhs and 15 lakhs 

as interest and royalties respective from Y Ltd. during the year 2021-22. You are required to state 

whether and on what basis these revenues can be recognized by X Ltd.2 

 

Question 3:  A claim lodged with the Railways in March, 2020 for loss of goods of 2,00,000 had been 

passed for payment in March, 2022 for 1,50,000. No entry was passed in the books of the Company, 

when the claim was lodged. Advise P Co. Ltd. about the treatment of the following in the Final 

Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022.3 

 

Question 4:  In the year 2021-22, XYZ supplied goods on consignment basis to ABC ɬ a retail outlet 

worth 10,00,000. As per the terms, ABC will only pay XYZ for the goods which are sold by them to 

the third party. Rest of the goods can be returned to XYZ and ABC will not have any further liability 

for these goods. 

During th e year 2021-22, ABC has sold goods worth 5,50,000 only and rest of the goods are still lying 

in its store which may get sold by next year. Advice XYZ, how much revenue it can recognize in its 

books for the period 2021-22. 

 
1Can be recognised if collectability and is certain  
2 Recognition criteria: Interest ï time basis & Royalties ï as per agreement 
3 Not recognized in March 2020 is correct due to uncertainty and a prior period item. As per AS 5 ï not an 

extraordinary item but disclose separately. 
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AS10. ACCOUNTING FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

 

Objective:  

 To prescribe accounting treatment for PPE 

 Help the users of financial statements to understand 

o Information about investment in PPE  

o Changes in such investment 

 

Principal Issues in Accounting for PPE  

1. Recognition of PPE 

2. Determination carrying amounts of PPE  

3. Depreciation charge 

4. Recognition of impairment losses  

 

Scope: Applicable for PPE 

Exception (Non Applicability):  

1. Biological Assets (except bearer plant)  

2. Wasting assets (including mineral rights, expenditure on the exploration for and extraction of 

minerals, oil, natural gas and similar non -regenerative resources) 

3. If covered under other AS 

Note:  AS 10 applies to bearer plants but it does not apply to the produce on bearer plants 

Clarifications:  

1. AS 10 applies to PPE used to develop or maintain the assets described above 

2. Investment property (defined in AS 13), should be accounted for only in accordance with the cost 

model prescribed in this standard.  

 

PPE: Tangible Assets ɬ two conditions  

1. Useful life > 12 months 

2. Held for  

a. production or supply of goods or services  

b. rental to others 

c. administration purpose: includes all business purpose like PPE used for  

i. Selling and distribution  

ii.  Finance and Accounting 

iii.  Personnel and other functions of an enterprise 

Note:  items of PPE may also be acquired for safety or environment reasons 

as without which commercial operation is not allowed.  

Note: intangible items are covered under AS 26. 
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Other Definitions:  

1. Biological Asset: 

a. Living animal: AS 10 does not apply if definition of PPE not met  

b. Plant: AS 10 applies to bearer plants 

2. Bearer Plant: three conditions 

a. Is used in the production or supply of agricultural product  

b. Is expected to bear produce for more than 12 months 

c. Has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce, except for incidental scrap sale  

Incidental scrap sale: when bearer plants,are no longer used to bear produce, cut and sold as 

scrap (e.g. firewood) 

 

Not bear plants:  

1. Plants cultivated to be harvested as agricultural produce [e.g. trees grown for use as lumber]  

2. Plants cultivated to produce agricultural produce and  

harvest and sell the plant as agricultural produce  

e.g. trees which are cultivated both for their fruit and their lumber  

3. Annual crops [e.g. rice and wheat] 

Note:  agricultural produce is the harvested product of biological assets of the enterprise.  

 

Agricultural Activity:  is the management of biological assets of the enterprise of 

1. Biological transformation and  

2. Harvest of biological assets 

a. For sale or 

b. For conversion in to agricultural produce or  

c. Into additional biological assets  

 

Recognition Criteria for PPE:  

1. Probable future economic benefits will flow to enterprise  

2. Cost of the item can be measured reliably 

Notes:  

1. Insignificant items (moulds, tools and dies) ɬ is PPE, if aggregate value is material 

2. PPE is expenses, if the amount is not material 

 

Machinery spare parts, servicing equipment & stand by equipment  

If PPE as per the conditions, then included in AS 10 else included in AS 2  
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Capitalisation the cost of remode l ling ɬ a supermarket  

Question:  Entity A, s supermarket chain, is renovating one of its major stores. The store will have 

more available space for in store promotion outlets after the renovation and wil l include a restaurant. 

Management is preparing the budgets for the year after the store reopens, which include the cost of 

remodelling and the expectation of a 15% increase in sales resulting from the store renovations, which 

will attract new customers. State whether the remodelling cost will be capitalized or not. 1 

 

Cost incurred  

 Initial cost to acquire or construct PPE   ××× 

+ Subsequent cost for replacement / service    

 Increase in future economic benefits Capitalize  ××× 

 No increase in future economic benefits  Debit P&L A/c  NA  

 Integral (add to gross block) or Separate (account separately )  

 Cost of PPE  ××× 

 

Measurement of PPE 

1. At recognition: Cost Model  

2. After recognition: either  

a. Cost model [net of depreciation and impairment losses] or  

b. Revaluation model  

 

(i)  Purchased   (ii)  Self -Constructed   

 Purchase Price ××  Purchase Price ×× 

+ Non-refundable duties ×× + Directly Attributable Cost  ×× 

+ Directly a ttributable cost  ×× + Dismantling & Removal Cost ×× 

+ Dismantling & Removal Cost  ×× + Site restoration cost ×× 

+ Site restoration cost ×× - Internal Profit  ×× 

- Rebate & trade discount ×× - Abnormal cost / loss ×× 

- Govt. Grants ×× + Borrowing cost as per AS 16 ×× 

  ××   ×× 

Note:  Bearer plants are recognized as self-constructed asset 

 

  

 
1Yes. Reasons: (1) future economic benefit exist + (2) cost can be measured reliably 



 

Sahasri Singar Academy AS10.4 

Directly Attributable Costs:  

Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

 Directly Attributable Costs       

(i)  Includes   (ii)  Excludes  

 Employee benefits [if attributable]  ××  Introducing new project / service  ×× 

 Site preparation cost ××  Initial operating losses ×× 

 Initial delivery & handling costs  ××  Opening new facility  ×× 

 Installation assemble cost ××  Relocating & reorganizing costs ×× 

 Professional cost ××  Costs of staff training  ×× 

 Cost of testing ××  Administrative costs  ×× 

  ××  Other general overheads ×× 

  ××   ×× 

Note:  Finance cost is included as per AS 16. 

 

Question:  Entity A has an existing freehold factory property, which it intends to knock down and 

redevelop. During the redevelopment period the company will move its production facilities to 

another (temporary) site . The following incremental costs will be incurred:  

1. Setup costs of 5,00,000 to install machinery in the new location 

2. Rent of 15,00,000 

3. Removal costs of 3,00,000 to transport the machinery from the old location to the temporary 

location. 

Can these costs be capitalized into the cost of the new building?1 

 

Question:  Omega Ltd. contracted with a supplier to purchase machinery which is to be installed in its 

ÖÕÌɯËÌ×ÈÙÛÔÌÕÛɯÐÕɯÛÏÙÌÌɯÔÖÕÛÏÚɀɯÛÐÔÌȭɯ2×ÌÊÐÈÓɯÍÖÜÕËÈÛÐÖÕÚɯÞÌÙÌɯÙÌØÜÐÙÌËɯÍÖÙɯÛÏÌɯÔÈÊÏÐÕÌÙàɯÞÏÐÊÏ 

were to be prepared within this supply lead time. The cost of the site preparation and laying 

foundations were 1,40,000. These activities were supervised by a technician during the entire period, 

who is employed for this purpose of 45,000 per month. The machine was purchased at 1,58,00,000 

and 50,000 transportation charges were incurred to bring the machine to the factory site. An 

Architect was appointed at a fee of 30,000 to supervise machinery installation at the factory site. You 

are required to ascertain the amount at which the machinery should be capitalized. 2 

 

Capitalisation of directly attributable costs  

Question:  Entity A, which operates a major chain of supermarkets, has acquired a new store location. 

The new location requires significant ren ovation expenditure. Management expects that the 

renovations will last for 3 months during which the supermarket will be closed.  

 
1 No, as the cost is just relocation not the costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
2 1,58,00,000 + 1,40,000 + 45,000 × 3 + 50,000 + 30,000 = 1,61,55,000 
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Management has prepared the budget for this period including expenditure related to construction 

and remodelling costs, salaries of staff who will be preparing the store before its opening and related 

utilities costs. What will be the treatment of such expenditures? 1 

 

Operating costs incurred in the start -up period  

Question:   ÕɯÈÔÜÚÌÔÌÕÛɯ×ÈÙÒɯÏÈÚɯÈɯȿÚÖÍÛɀɯÖ×ÌÕÐÕÎɯÛÖɯÛÏÌɯ×ÜÉÓÐÊȮɯÛo trial run its attractions. Tickets are 

sold at a 50% discount during this period and the operating capacity is 80%. The official opening day 

of the amusement park is three months later. Management claim that the soft opening is a trial run 

necessary for the amusement park to be in the condition capable of operating in the intended manner. 

Accordingly, the net operating costs incurred should be capitalized. Comment. 2 

 

Treatment of subsequent cost:  

1. Cost of day to day servicing (repairs and maintenance)  ɬ transfer to P/L A/c  

a. Cost of labour 

b. Cost of consumables 

c. Cost of small parts 

2. Replacement of parts of PPE: Regular intervals 

e.g. 

a. A furnace may require relining after a specified number of hours of use  

b. Aircraft interiors such as seats and galleys may require replacement several times during the 

life of the airframe.  

c. Major parts of conveyor system, such as, conveyor belts, wire ropes, etc., may require 

replacement several times during the life of the conveyor system 

d. Replacing the interior wa lls of a building, or to make a non -recurring replacement  

If PPE recognition  conditions  are met, then included in the carrying amount  

The carrying amount of those parts are replaced is derecognized 

3. Regular major inspections cost ɬ accounting treatment 

E.g. Inspection cost for Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) 

Major inspection cost ɬ  

1. First cost: Capitalise and eligible for depreciation  

2. Subsequent cost:  

a. Existing unamortised cost is deducted from carrying amount  

b. Capitalise subsequent cost and eligible for depreciation  

Otherwise ɬ Transfer to P/L A/c 

 

Dismantling removal & site restoration cost:  [recorded at present value]  

Recognised & measured as per AS 29: 

 
1Capitalise. The new location is not capable of operation without it. 
2Not capitalised. Initial loss due to operating at below capacity ï charged to P/L A/c 
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Incurred on  

1. PPE, which is used other than to produce inventories ɬ capitalize 

2. PPE, which i s used to produce inventories ɬ AS 2 is applicable 

 

Valuation for Special Cases:  

1. Payment is deferred beyond normal credit terms ( Hire purchase) ɬ Cash price 

2. PPE acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or  

combination of monetary & non -monetary asset  

Cost in case of exchange of assets: Commercial Substance (profit)  

a. Does not exist: book value of asset given up 

b. Exist: whichever is more evidence of 

1. Fair value of asset given up 

2. Fair value of asset taken up 

Note:  Monetary value is deducted from the above value  

3. At consolidated price  ɬ Apportion under f air value basis by competent valuer 

4. PPE held by lessee under a finance lease (AS 19) 

5. Government grants related to PPE (AS 12) 

 

Consideration received comprising a com bination of non -monetary and monetary assets 

Question: Entity A exchanges land with a book value of 10,00,000 for cash of 20,00,000 and plant 

and machinery valued at 25,00,000. What will be the measurement cost of the assets received 

(consider that the transaction has commercial substance)?1 

 

Exchange of assets that lack commercial substances 

Question: Entity A exchanges car X with a book value of 13,00,000 and a fair value of 13,25,000 for 

cash of 15,000 and car Y which has a fair value of 13,10,000. The transaction lacks commercial substance 

as the companyôs cash flows are not expected to change as a result of the exchange. It is in the same position as 

it was before the transaction. What will be the measurement cost of the assets received?2 

 

Measurement after recognition [cost or revaluation]  

Revaluation: ( class of PPE: all the assets of same class are revalued simultaneously)  

1. First Time (Initial Revaluation)  

a. Upward: Credit  ɬ Revaluation Reserve A/c  

b. Downward: Debit ɬ P/L A/c  

2. Subsequent Revaluation 

a. Upward:  

1. First: Credit ɬ P&L A/c to the extent already debited  

2. Balance: Credit  ɬ Revaluation Reserve A/c  

 
1 P&M recorded at 25 lakhs [fair value of asset given up (land) ï cash] 
2Car recorded at 12.85 lakhs [book value of asset given up (car X) less ï cash] 
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b. Downward:  

1. First: Debit ɬ Revaluation Reserve to the extent already credited 

2. Balance: Debit ɬ P&L A/c for the balance amount  

 

Revaluation on a class by class basis 

Question:  Entity A is a large manufacturing group. It owns a number of industrial buildings, such as 

factories and warehouses and office buildings in several capital cities. The industrial buildings are 

located in industrial zones, whereas the office buildings are in central business districts of the cities. 

$ÕÛÐÛàɯ  ɀÚɯ ÔÈÕÈÎÌÔÌÕÛɯ ÞÈÕÛɯ ÛÖɯ È××Óàɯ ÛÏÌɯ ÙÌÝÈÓÜÈÛÐÖÕɯ ÔÖËÌÓɯ ÈÚɯ ×ÌÙɯ  2ɯ ƕƔɯ ÛÖɯ ÛÏÌɯ ÚÜÉÚÌØÜÌÕÛɯ

measurement of the office buildings but continue to apply the historical cost model to the industrial 

buildings.  

State whether this is acceptable under AS 10 or not with reasons?1 

 

Frequency of Revaluations (sufficient regularity)  

Changes in fair value of PPE is  

1. Significant ɬRevalue annually 

2. Insignificant ɬ Revalue once in every 3 or 5 years 

 

Determination of Fair Value  

1. Determined from m arket based evidence by qualified valuers  

2. If there is no market based evidence, then income approach is used 

a. Discounted cash flow projections or  

b. A depreciated replacement cost approach 

 

Depreciation:  

Depreciation ɬ allocation of depreciable amount over the useful life  

Depreciable asset = Cost ɬ Residual Value 

 

Component method of depreciation : 

A part of PPE with significant cost ɬ should be depreciated separately 

 

Accounting treatment of depreciation: In case of depr eciation for  

1. General PPE ɬ Charge to P/L A/c 

2. Manufacturing PPE ɬ include in cost of inventory [AS 2]  

3. PPE for development activities ɬ include in intangible asset [AS 26] 

 

Review: Change in accounting estimate (AS 5)  

Residual value  & useful life  should be revalued at the end of every financial year  

 
1Can apply. As office building is different class from industrial building. 




